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PREFACE

Accounting Trends & Techniques—1991, Forty-fifth Edition, is a compilation of data obtained by a
survey of 600 annual reports to stockholders undertaken for the purpose of analyzing the accounting
information disclosed in such reports. The annual reports surveyed were those of selected industrial and
merchandising companies for fiscal periods ending between February 23, 1990 and February 3, 1991.

Significant accounting trends, as revealed by a comparison of current survey findings with those of prior
years, are highlighted in numerous comparative tabulations throughout this publication. These tables show
trends in such diverse accounting matters as financial statement format and terminology and the accounting
treatment of transactions and events reflected in the financial statements.

Accounting techniques are illustrated by excerpts from the annual reports of the survey companies and
the annual reports of companies not included in the survey which presented items of particular interest or of
an unusual nature. References (in the form of a listing of company identification numbers—see the following
paragraph) to additional illustrations of an accounting technigue may be requested from the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants either by writing or by calling Richard Rikert—(212) 575-6394.

Each of the 600 survey companies included in this edition has been assigned an identification number
which is used for reference throughout the text in the discussion of pertinent information. 405 of the
companies were listed in the fortieth (1986) edition and each retained the number assigned in that edition.
The other 195 companies in the 1986 edition have been eliminated. Most of the eliminated companies were
eliminated because of a business combination with another company. The identification numbers of the
eliminated companies have not been reused. Numbers 776 through 795 have been assigned to the
replacement companies. The 600 companies in the current edition are listed in the Appendix of 600
Companies both alphabetically and by their identification number.

The American institute of Certified Public Accountants has established the National Automated
Accounting Research System (NAARS) as an additional means of information retrieval. NAARS includes a
computerized data bank consisting of the full text of several thousand company annual reports to stock-
holders supplemented by a literature file of authoritative pronouncements. Information may be retrieved
through individual computer terminal subscription or by requesting Institute personnel to perform searches
on an AICPA terminal. For further information concerning NAARS, contact Hal Clark, American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, 1211 Avenue of the Americas, New York, NY 10036. Telephone (212) 575-6393.

Special acknowledgement is due to Matthew Calderisi, CPA; J. Richard Chaplin, CPA; Gregory
Frydman, CPA; William A. Godla, CPA; Toni Monier, CPA; Joseph M. Nestor, CPA; and Anthony Tarallo,
CPA for their assistance in the analysis of the financial reports and preparation of the manuscript.

John F. Hudson, Vice President, Technical Standards and Services
AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Trends (212) 575-6394 AICPA Technical Hotline
NAARS (212) 575-6393 (800) 223-4158 (Except New York)
Order Department (800) 522-5430 (New York Only)

(800) 334-6961 (Except New York)
(800) 248-0445 (New York Only)
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TABLE 1-1: INDUSTRY CLASSIFICATIONS

1990 1989 1988 1987
Foods:
Meat products .............. 6 7 7 8
Dairy products .............. 2 2 2 3
Canning, etc................. 4 4 4 4
Packaged and butk ........... 15 16 17 17
Baking..................... 2 2 3 3
Sugar, confections ........... 3 3 3 4
Beverages.................... 7 7 7 7
Tobacco products . ............. 5 4 4 5
Textiles ..., 23 21 23 25
Paperproducts................ 21 23 25 25
Printing, publishing ............ 20 19 19 20
Chemicals.................... 32 31 28 25
Drugs, cosmetics .............. 26 25 30 29
Petroleum.................... 30 29 30 29
Rubber products. .............. 8 8 10 12
Shoes—manufacturing,
merchandising .............. 8 8 7 7
Building:
Cement.................... 5 4 4 4
Roofing, wallboard ........... 7 9 9 10
Heating, plumbing ........... 3 3 3 2
Other...................... 17 17 17 15
Steelandiron................. 19 20 20 17
Metal—nonferrous ............. 17 17 16 16
Metal fabricating .............. 20 21 20 21
Machinery, equipment
and supplies ................ 35 37 38 37
Electrical equipment,
appliances.................. 21 20 17 19
Electronic equipment ........... 36 34 33 3
Business equipment
and supplies ................ 22 22 21 21
Containers ................... 7 7 8 8
Autos and trucks (including
parts, accessories) ........... 26 26 27 27
Aircraft and equipment,
aerospace .................. 12 12 13 12
Railway equipment,
shipbuilding ................ 5 5 5 5
Controls, instruments,
medical equipment,
watches and clocks........... 25 25 23 20
Merchandising:
Department store ............ 4 4 4 4
Mail order stores,
variety stores.............. 2 2 2 2
Grocery stores .............. 13 12 12 13
Other................c..... 8 8 6 6
Motion pictures, broadcasting . . . . 4 4 5 5
Widely diversified, or not
otherwise classified .......... 80 82 78 82
Total Companies. ............ 600 600 600 600

Section 1: General
- |

THIS SECTION OF THE SURVEY is concerned with
general information about the 600 companies selected for
the survey and with certain accounting information
usually disclosed in notes accompanying the basic finan-
cial statements.

COMPANIES SELECTED FOR SURVEY

All 600 companies included in the survey are registered
with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Many of
the survey companies have securities traded on one of
the major stock exchanges—80% on the New York and
8% on the American. Table 1-1 presents an industry clas-
sification of the 600 survey companies; Table 1-2 indicates
the relative size of the survey companies as measured by
dollar amount of revenue.

TABLE 1-2: REVENUE OF SURVEY COMPANIES

1990 1989 1988 1987
Less than $100,000000 ......... 51 50 50 43
Between $100,000,000 and
$500000000 ............... 103 110 115 119
Between $500,000,000 and
$1,000000000 .............. 89 90 95 104
Between $1,000,000,000 and
$2,000,000000 .............. 117 128 114 129
More than $2,000,000,000 ....... 240 222 226 213
Total Companies ............ 600 600 600 600




INFORMATION REQUIRED BY RULE 14a-3
TO BE INCLUDED IN ANNUAL REPORTS TO
STOCKHOLDERS

Rule 14a-3 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
states that annual reports furnished to stockholders in
connection with the annual meetings of stockholders
should include audited financial statements—balance
sheets as of the 2 most recent fiscal years, and statements
of income and of cash flows for each of the 3 most recent
fiscal years. Rule 14a-3 also states that the following infor-
mation, as specified in Regulation S-K, should be included
in the annual report to stockholders:

1. Selected quarterly financial data.

2. Disagreements with accountants on accounting
and financial disclosure.

3. Summary of selected financial data for last 5
years.

4. Description of business activities.
Segment information.

6. Listing of company directors and executive
officers.

7. Market price of Company’s common stock for
each quarterly period within the two most recent
fiscal years.

8. Management’s discussion and analysis of finan-
cial condition and results of operations.

Examples of items 1, 3, and 8 follow. Examples of seg-
ment information disclosures are presented on pages
22-33.

o

Section 1: General

Quarterly Financial Data

CASTLE & COOKE, INC. (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note 13—Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited)

The following table presents summarized quarterly
results.

(in thousands, except per share data)
Gross Net  Earnings Per
Revenue  Margin __ Income Common Share

1990

First Quarter $ 657,960 $124,373 $ 18,075 $ .30
Second Quarter 792,459 155,311 38,924 .66
Third Quarter 879,022 185,822 44,039 74
Fourth Quarter 673,772 119,130 19,417 .33
Year $3,003,213 $584,636 $120,455 $ 2.03
1989

First Quarter $ 563,072 $ 99,388 $ 12,485 $ .21
Second Quarter 693,032 151,074 35,213 .59
Third Quarter 761,618 156,907 23,413 40
Fourth Quarter 700,099 143,717 23,813 .40
Year $2,717,821 $551,086 $ 94,924 $ 1.60

Note: Each of the quarters in 1990 and 1989 includes 12 weeks except
for the third quarter which has 16 weeks.



Information Required by SEC Regulations 3

COMMERCIAL METALS COMPANY (AUG)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

L. Quarterly Financial Data (unaudited):
Summarized quarterly financial data for 1990, 1989, and
1988 are as follows (in thousands, except share data):.

Three months ended (1990)

Nov.30 Feb.28 May31 Aug. 31
Net sales $276,886 $273,926 $282,902 $290,412
Gross profit 30,600 28,800 32,445 31,567
Net earnings 7,026 5,430 6,300 7,164
Net earnings per share .62 47 .55 .65
Three months ended (1989)
Nov.30 Feb.28 May31 Aug. 31
Net sales $326,114 $315,943 $334,930 $317,933
Gross profit 31,690 30,870 30,628 29,522
Net earnings 8,306 6,881 6,207 7,057
Net earnings per share 12 .60 .53 .61
Three months ended (1988)
Nov.30 Feb.29 May31 Aug. 31
Net sales $234,914 $295,698 $300,194 $298,366
Gross profit 22,903 29,491 31,997 24,161
Earnings before
extraordinary item
and accounting
change 4,028 7,066 8,069 5,644
Earnings per share
before extraordinary
item and accounting
change .33 .62 .70 .49
Net earnings 10,118 7,066 8,069 (804)
Net earnings per share .87 .61 .69 (.07)

The quantities and costs used in calculating cost of goods
sold on a quarterly basis include estimates of the annual
LIFO effect. The actual effect cannot be known until the
year-end physical inventory is completed and quantity
and price indices developed. The quarterly cost of goods
sold above includes such estimates.

As a result of the Company’s adoption of SFAS 96 in
the fourth quarter of 1988, earnings of $6,090 were
:eg%tgred to be presented as if earned in the first quarter of

Significant items decreasing the fourth quarter of 1988
net earnings are as follows:

Extraordinary item—litigation settlement

$(6,448)
LIFO effect

(5.608)

CURTISS-WRIGHT CORPORATION (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
18. Quarterly Results of Operations (unaudited)
(in thousands except per share amounts)

1990 Quarters: First Second  Third  Fourth
Sales $51,880 $49,854 $47,053 $50,097
Other revenues 1,078 6,680 4,814 2,864
Gross profit 19,585 17,018 15,757 13,883
Net earnings (loss) 4382 7,248 (8,812) 4,066
Net earnings (loss) per

common share .87 1.45 (1.75) .80
1989 Quarters: (a)
Sales $46,175 $47,698 $47,914 $45,296
Other revenues 6,069 4,221 13,260 1,679
Gross profit 15,085 17,707 13,673 15,648

Earnings before cumulative

effect on prior years of a

change in accounting for

income taxes 7,725 6,796
Cumulative effect on prior

years of a change in

accounting for income

taxes 1,237
Net eamings 8,962 6,796
Earnings per common share:
Earnings before cumulative

effect on prior years of a

change in accounting for

income taxes 1.55 1.36 2.60 33
Cumulative effect on prior

years of a change in

accounting for income

taxes .25
Net earnings 1.80 1.36 2.60 33

12,993 1,662

12,993 1,662

(a) Quarterly results for 1989 have been restated to reflect the full
impact of the adoption of SFAS No. 96 as a first quarter adjust-
ment. This restatement did not have a material effect on the
results as originally reported. The restatements for the 1989
quarters, as well as the year, also reflect the treatment of tax
benefits resulting from the utilization of a capital loss carryfor-
ward as components of the provision for income taxes, rather
than as the extraordinary credits as originally reported in 1989.

1990

Net earnings in the first quarter of 1990 were reduced by
the recognition of unrealized losses in short-term equity
securities of $4,573,000 or $.91 per share and the acceler-
ated amortization of a restricted stock bonus amounting to
$1,094,000 or $.22 per share.

The second quarter of 1990 includes revenue received in
connection with the 1984 sale of the Corporation’s rotary
engine business to John Deere Technologies Interna-
tional, Inc., adding $1,250,000 or $.25 per share to net
earnings for the quarter.

The third quarter 1990 includes a provision for environ-
mental clean-up costs of $21,000,000, reducing net
earnings by $13,860,000 or $2.76 per share for the quarter.
1989

The third quarter 1989 includes a gain on the sale of a



common stock investment in International Minerals &
Chemical Corporation adding $10,210,000 or $2.05 per
share to net earnings for the quarter.

The fourth quarter 1989 includes the settlement of a con-
demnation litigation resulting in additional net earnings of
$3,077,000 or $.62 per share, and the recognition of unreal-
ized losses in short-term equity securities of $7,893,000 or
$1.58 per share, reducing net earnings for the quarter. by
those amounts.

OAK INDUSTRIES INC. (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12, Quarterly Results of Operations (Unaudited):

Section 1: General

The following is a summary of the unaudited quarterly results of operations for 1990 and 1989, (Dollars in thousands,

except per share data):

Quarter Ended

1990 March 31  June 30 September 30 December 31  Full Year
Net sales $38,020 $37,810 $33,089 $ 30,406 $139,325
Gross margin $ 8,320 $ 8,017 $ 7,603 $ 4668 $ 28,608
Income (loss) from continuing operations $ 110 $ 1,543 $ 568 $ (832) $ 1,389
Net income (loss) $ 550 § 1,801 $ 7,850 $ (532) $ 9,669
Income (loss) per common share:

Continuing operations $ — $ .02 $ .01 $ (01) § .02
Net income (loss) $ .01 $ .02 $ .10 $ (01) § .12
1989 March 31 June 30  September 30 December 31 Full Year
Net sales $37,887  $37,626 $32,286 $ 30,933 $138,732
Gross margin $ 8001 $7,719 $ 6,156 $ 5152 § 27,028
Loss from continuing operations $ (141) $(5,829) $ (894) $(13,358) $(20,222)
Net loss $ (511) $(7,078) $ (710) $(17,182) $(25,481)
Loss per common share:

Continuing operations $ — $ (.07) $ (01) $ (17) 8§ (.25
Net loss $ (01) $§ (.09 $ (.01) $ (21) $ (31)

Continuing Operations

Fourth Quarter—1990

The Company recognized a $550,000 charge for costs
related to the consolidation of certain operations within
the frequency control group.

The Company recognized $294,000 of losses and antici-
pated losses on discontinued products.

Second Quarter—1990
The Company settled certain patent litigation with Zenith
Electronics Corporation resulting in a gain of $1,224,000.

First Quarter— 1990

The Company soldits interest in a film joint venture result-
ing in a gain of $901,000.

The Company’s Switch Division wrote-off $852,000
related to the discontinuance of a product line.

Fourth Quarter—1989

The Company released $3,446,000 of excess reserves
and related accrued interest no longer considered neces-
sary. Goodwill totaling $13,578,000 was written-off during
the quarter (see Note 1).

Second Quarter—1989 :
The Company was involved in a proxy contest which
resulted in the election of five new board members. As a
result of the contest, the Company incurred $1,861,000in
related expenses. The new board’s subsequent reorgani-
zation of the Corporate headquarters resulted in additional
expense of $955,000.

The Company’s wholly owned subsidiary, Harper-
Wyman Company, wrote-off $679,000 of obsolete inven-
tory and established an environmental cleanup reserve
for the Princeton, lllinois manufacturing facility of
$577,000.

First Quarter—1989
The Company sold undeveloped property in Oceanside,
California in March, 1989, realizing a gain of $970,000.

Discontinued Operations (see Note 2).
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WOLVERINE WORLD WIDE, INC. (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note K—Quarterly Results of Operations (unaudited)

The following is a tabulation of the unaudited quarterly results of operations:

Earnings

Net Sales (Loss) Net
and Other Before Net  Earnings
Operating Grosse  Income  Earnings (Loss)
(Thousands of Dollars Except Per Share Data) Income Margin Taxes (Loss) Per Share

Fiscal year 1990: '
Firstquarter ... i e $ 68,095 $20,203 § 362 $ 251 $ .04
Second quarter ... .. ... e 69,273 20,839 326 222 .03
Third Quarter ... ...t e 82,865 22,927  (12,912)  (10,347) (1.55)
Fourthquarter .......... ... .. 101,937 33,445 5984 4,153 62
$322,170 $97414 § (6,240) § (5,721) $ (86)

Fiscal year 1989:

First Quarter .. ... e $ 64190 $19,043 §$ 1,078 § 851 $ 13
Second QUAter ........... .. e 66,176 19,446 628 462 .07
ThirdQuarter ............c o it 85,331 25,386 2,713 2,050 .30
Fourthquarter ... ... ... .. i 107,894 32,755 5,868 3924 58
$323,591 $96630 $ 10287 §$ 7287 1.08

The Company reports its quarterly results of operations on the basis of 12-week periods for each of the first three

quarters and a 16-week period for the fourth quarter.

The Company recognized a pre-tax provision of $13,600,000 in the third quarter of 1990 for restructuring and other non-
recurring charges, which amounted to $10,600,000 ($1.59 per share) after related income taxes (see Note 1). Additional
nonrecurring charges of $2,600,000 were recognized in the fourth quarter of 1990 and were substantially offset by
nonrecurring fourth quarter income items. Net sales for the fourth quarter of 1989 include $5,900,000 relating to product
lines discontinued and retail stores closed at the end of the third quarter of 1990.

The Company recognized adjustments in the fourth quarter of 1989 related principally to the liquidation of LIFO invento-
ries (see Note B) which increased earnings before income taxes by $1,700,000 and net earnings by $900,000 ($.13 per

share).
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Selected Information For Five Years

DSC COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION (DEC)

FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY OF SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

1990(2) 1989 1988 1987(1) 1986
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)
SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS FOR THE*YEAR ENDED:
ReVenue ... i $519,298 $429,730 $339,671 $266,332 $195,031
Gross profit. . ... 191,667 175,360 145,302 107,815 75,946
Operating costs and expenses:
Research and product development ........................... 51,792 43,944 44,990 40,137 44,096
Selling, general and administrative . ........................... 86,782 77,892 69,026 58,185 43,080
Nonrecurringcharges .............cooiveineiii s, 7,544 - 1,000 - -
Other operating coSts . .............ccoininieiiiinenninns 1,977 - - - -
Interest and other expense, net .................ccoiiiiiiiiin 16,341 9,156 5,921 7,352 9,201
Income (loss) from continuing operations before extraordinary items .. 20,331 34,164 20,015 634 (20,821)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations ...................... - (840) (8,303) 13,928 31,859
Extraordinary items, net........... ...t (209) — 856 3,806 5,913
Netineome . ... e $ 20,122 §$ 33324 § 12,568 ¢ 18,368 § 16,951
Income (loss) per share: - - - -
Continuing operations . ................ccoiiiiirii i $ 47 $ 81 $ 48 § 02 § (49
Discontinued operations ............. ... ... . oiiiiiiiii... — (.02) (.20) .33 .76
Extraordinaryitems, met . ........ ... .. ... .. — — .02 .09 14
NetinCome ..........oviniii i e $ 47 $ 79 $ 30 & 4 8 4
FINANCIAL POSITION AT YEAR END:
Working capital . ... $153,331 $233,604 $111,289 $97,876 $162,825
Property and equipment, net 187,456 146,510 124,668 104,046 110,833
Total @ssets . .. ..o 759,424 569,995 429250 368,349 406,338
Notes payabletobanks ...............cciiiiiiiiiiiine. 56,750 - 3,800 15,000 —
Long-term debt, including current maturities ..................... 258,964 190,840 107,234 62,302 136,020
Shareholders' equity . ................ . 279,221 253,916 215,914 210,840 201,339
OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION:
Book value per share of commonstock.......................... $ 68 $ 632 $ 553 $ 6528 § 4.91
Ratio of current assets to current liabilities ....................... 1.6 2.8 1.9 2.0 33
Ratio of long-term debt to shareholders’ equity ................... 92.7% 75.2% 49.7% 29.6% 67.6%
OTHER DATA:
Shares used to compute income (loss) per share (in thousands).. .. .. 42,874 42,319 41,893 41,531 41,850
Common shares outstanding at year end (in thousands) ............ 40,695 40,169 39,027 39,901 40,966
Shareholders of record atyearend ....................... ... ... 6,001 4,934 5,518 6,125 6,175
Total employees atyearend ...............c..ciiiiiiiieiininnn 4,043 3,317 2,766 2,543 2,365

() Reflects the change to the current method of accounting for income taxes. See **‘Summary of Significant Accounting Policies’ in the Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements. . o

@ See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements and Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations.
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FLUOR CORPORATION (OCT)

Selected Financial Data

In millions, except per share amounts 1990 1989 1988 1987 1986
Operating Results .
Revenues from continuing operations ..................... $7,446.3  $6,227.6  $5,132.5  $3,9245  $4,341.7
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes . 189.9 174.7 90.9 (126.1) (55.0)
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations ................. 138.9 108.5 56.4 (75.3) (18.6)
Net earnings (I0SS) ..........ovriiiriiiiiin it 146.9 108.5 56.4 26.6 (60.4)
Earnings (loss) per share

Continuing operations ............. ..o, 1.71 1.35 0.71 (0.95) (0.23)

Netearnings (I0SS) . ........ccoverieiinnniiiennns $ 1.81 $ 135 § 071 $ 033 $ (0.76)
Return on average shareholders’ equity .................... 18.6% 16.5% 10.0% 3.3% (6.00%
Cash dividends per commonshare........................ $ 024 $ 014 § 002 §$ 010 § 040
Financial Position .
CUMmeNt @SSetS ...ttt e $12228 $1,0364 $1,001.0 $1,2135 § 9221
Current liabilities ..............c it 984.0 797.7 786.1 698.0 656.8
Workingcapital ............ ... 238.8 238.7 214.9 515.5 265.3
Bondportfolio .............cciiiiiiii 150.1 151.6 154.8 4.0 —
Property, plant and equipment, net........................ 925.3 775.3 729.8 735.2 1,301.8
Total @SStS .. ... 2,475.8 2,154.3 2,075.7 2,061.2 2,565.4
Capitalization

Longtermdebt ......... ... .. 57.6 62.5 95.0 217.8 511.5

Sharehoiders’ equity ............ ... it 864.0 720.4 601.7 531.7 950.2
Total capitalization .................cciiiiii $ 9216 $ 7829 $ 6967 § 7495  $1,461.7
Percent of total capitalization

Longtermdebt ........ ... ... . 6.3 8.0 13.6 29.1 35.0

Shareholders’ equity .................. ...l 93.7 92.0 86.4 70.9 65.0
Shareholders’ equity per commonshare ................... $ 1075 $ 9.03 $ 7.61 $ 674 $ 11.99
Common shares outstanding at October 31 ................. 80.4 79.8 79.1 78.9 79.3
Other Data
Newawards .......... ..ot $7,632.3  $7,135.3  $5,955.2  $4,059.7  $2,992.2
Backlogatyearend............. ... .. ... ... 9,557.8 8,360.9 6,658.6 4,667.3 4,291.4
Capital expenditures ..............ceiiiiniiiiiniinnn. 165.7 139.2 86.3 99.8 91.6
Cash provided (utilized) by operating activities ............... $ 353.1 $ 265.1 $ 177 $§ 573 § (224.2)
Permanent employees . ...t 22,188 20,059 17,876 14,351 22,309

See Management'’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 25 to 27, Consolidated Statement of Earnings on page 29 and
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements and Quarterly Financial Data for information relating to significant items

affecting the results of operations.

At October 31, 1987, a quasi-reorganization was effected which resulted in a net reduction in shareholders’ equity of $438

million.

Dividends were resumed in the fourth quarter of 1988 following a suspension which began in the second quarter of 1987.
The quarterly dividend was increased from $.02 per share to $.04 per share in the second quarter of 1989, to $.06 per share
in the first quarter of 1990 and to $.08 per share in the first quarter of 1991.



GENERAL CINEMA CORPORATION (OCT)

Five-Year Summary (unaudited)

(In thousands except for per share data)

Section 1: General

1990 1989 1988 1987 1986
Revenues
Specialty retail operations ............................ $1,688,611 $1,467,504 $1,223,162 $ — $ -
Theatre operations . ....................ccovineen... 460,919 446,300 379,685 365,015 351,346
Total. ... 2,149,530 1,913,804 1,602,847 365,015 351,346
Operating Earnings
Specialty retail operations ............................ 99,191 83,212 63,023 — —
Theatre operations ..................ccovivinunn... (11,449) 9,201 16,449 17,633 26,735
Theatre restructuring charges ......................... (34,000) — - — —
Total. .o 53,742 92,413 79,472 17,633 26,735
Corporate Activities
Administrative expenses-net..................coiniinn. (26,886) (30,156) (26,238) (15,573) (9,399)
Interest eXpense . ...t (103,747) (88,817) (91,730) (58,718) (37,576)
investmentincome ................. ... .l 123,486 123,811 48,668 67,060 56,883
Gain on sale of securities............................. 129,298 82,864 33,281 26,087 4,069
Total. ..o 122,151 87,702 (36,019) 18,856 13,977
Earnings from continuing operations before
income taxes and minority interest ..................... 175,893 180,115 43,453 36,489 40,712
Incometaxes ...................oiiinntn. e 61,357 70,971 14,037 (3,064) 1,000
Minority interest........... ... ... .. 3,278 3,269 3,265 — -
Earnings from continuing operations...................... 111,258 105,875 26,151 39,553 39,712
Earnings from discontinued operations .................... — 865,935 61,593 29,889 86,108
Neteamings. ..., $ 111,258 § 971,810 $§ 87,744 $§ 69,442 §$ 125,820
Depreciation and amortization ........................... $ 62545 $ 658627 $ 54,078 $ 13,813 $§ 12,598
Capital expenditures................ ... ...l 106,440 137,652 76,699 45,775 35,305
Cashdividendspaid........................coviuin.n. 32,272 29,367 26,449 22,475 18,709
Total @8SSetS ...t e 3,068,395 3,403,568 1,838,729 1,647,418 1,042,389
Total long-termdebt (@) ................ ... ... ... ..., 803,136 749,766 860,680 686,693 313,248
Shareholders’ equity ............... ... ... ...l 1,629,040 1,548,929 604,950 542,299 494,395
Number of shares outstanding (b)........................ 73,823 73,842 73,557 73,579 73,420
Per share data
Earnings from continuing operations . ................... $ 151 § 143 § 36 8 54 $ .54
Netearnings ..............oiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinninn, 1.51 13.16 1.19 .94 1.71
Common dividends paid.............................. 45 4 37 .32 .26
Bookvalue ........... ... .. 2.1 21.06 8.25 7.42 6.78

(@) General Cinema is not responsible for NMG debt of $354.7 million in 1990, $308.5 million in 1989, $180.4 million in 1988 and $130.6 million

in 1987.

(o) Weighted average number of common shares and common share equivalents outstanding.
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MET-PRO CORPORATION (JAN)

Five Year Financial Summary

YEARS ENDED JANUARY 31, 1991 1990 1989 1988 1987
Selected Operating Statement Data:

Netsales ...t $38,939,499 $37,912,249 $31,107,085 $27,085,062 $24,730,524
Income fromoperations. .......................... 4,553,405 5,369,075 3,637,224 2,905,770 2,096,461
Netincome. ...t e 3,009,131 3,421,547 2,441,971 1,793,626 1,152,746
Netincomepershare ..................ccoovenn.. 1.01 1.15 .83 .62 40
Average common shares outstanding ................ 2,979,109 2,968,292 2,930,364 2,901,297 2,897,114
Cashdividendpershare .......................... .25 .20 .27 .10 10
Selected Balance Sheet Data:

Current assets ..........c.ciiiiii e $18,910,499 $18,521,209 $16,533,135 $16,002,497 $12,806,961
Current liabifities ............... ... ... .. in.s. 5,183,915 5,650,460 6,270,254 4,623,366 2,430,492
Workingcapital ................ ... ..l 13,726,584 12,870,749 10,262,881 11,379,131 10,376,469
Currentratio . ... 3.6 3.3 2.6 3.5 5.3
Capital expenditures. . ..................covvinn.n. 2,981,591 921,866 2,405,677 616,325 494,869
Depreciation........... ... ..o, 939,167 936,755 929,009 877,228 940,288
Total @sSets .......oooiiiiii i 30,943,427 28,694,139 26,842,429 23,336,229 20,437,245
Return on average total assets ..................... 10.1 12.3 9.7 8.2 5.7
Long-term debt and capital lease obligations .......... 1,800,467 2,208,333 2,602,715 2,598,937 3,129,873
Net stockholders’ equity .......................... .23,959,045 20,802,246 17,966,160 15,927,926 14,638,880
Return on average stockholders’ equity .............. 13.4 17.7 14.4 1.7 8.1
Bookvaluepershare ............................. 8.09 7.15 6.17 5.49 5.05

Management’s Discussion And Analysis of
Financial Condition And Results of Operations

APPLE COMPUTER, INC (SEP)
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto. All
information is based on Apple’s fiscal calendar. (Tabular information: Dollars in millions, except per share amounts)

Results of Operations 1990 Change 1989 Change 1988
NeLSalES ... e $5,558 5% $5,284  30% $4,071
Br0SS MIATgIN . L oottt e et e .$2,952 14% $2,589 24% $2,080

Percentage of net sales ...ttt e 53.1% 49.0% 51.1%
Operating XPBNSES . .. v v vttt e $2,240 15% $1,955  34% $1,460

Percentage of net sales . ......... ...ttt 40.3% 37.0% 35.9%
L T $ 475 5% § 454 13% §$ 400
Earnings Per Share ....... ...t $3.77 7% $ 3.53 15% §$ 3.08
Net Sales

In 1990, Apple’s revenues grew 5% over the prior year, compared with revenue growth of 30% in 1989 over 1988. The
reduced rate of revenue growth in 1990 reflects both lower demand for the Company's more established Apple Macintosh
and Apple Il family computers and the slow pace of business in the U.S. and certain international markets. These factors
were offset by strong demand for newer modular Apple Macintosh computers. Net sales of LaserWriter® printers
increased slightly over 1989. As a result of these demand patterns, the combined number of computer and LaserWriter
printer units sold during 1990, and the average aggregate revenue per unit, increased slightly compared with 1988.

During 1990, international net sales grew 23% over the prior year, representing 42% of total net sales in 1990, compared

with 36% in 1989. Domestic sales decreased in 1990 compared with 1989, primarily reflecting reduced sales of the
Company’s more established products and an overall siow-down in growth of the U.S. personal computer industry.

On October 15, 1990, Apple introduced three new, low-cost personal computers—the compact Macintosh Classic, and
the Macintosh LC and Macintosh lisi modular computers. These computers are designed to appeal to new customers in



10 Section 1: General

various markets, including business, government, and education, because of their lower prices and enhanced features.
Itis anticipated that a significant portion of the Company’s future revenues will come from these new products. However,
there can be no assurance that these new products will receive favorable market acceptance, and the Company cannot
determine the ultimate effect these new products will have on its sales or results of operations.

In 1989, the 30% increase in net sales over 1988 was primarily attributable to sales of new products—the Macintosh licx
and the Macintosh SE/30—in both domestic and international markets.

Gross Margin

Gross margin as a percentage of net sales improved to 53.1% in 1990 from 49.0% in 1989. This improvement resulted
primarily from lower component costs and stronger sales of newer Apple Macintosh products relative to more established,
lower-margin products. Favorable foreign currency effects on sales, as a result of the weaker U.S. dollar in 1990, also
contributed to the improvement of gross margin as a percentage of net sales compared with 1989. Gross margins declined
to 49.0% in 1989 from 51.1% in 1988 because of the high cost of dynamic random-access memory (DRAM) in early 1989
and, to a lesser extent, the negative effect on sales of a stronger U.S. dollar in 1989.

The Company anticipates lower gross margins as a percentage of net sales in 1991, compared with 1990, because of its

more aggressive pricing strategies, which are intended to increase unit volumes.

Operating Expenses 1990 Change 1989 Change 1988
Research and development $ 478 14% $ 420 54% $ 273
Percentage of net sales 8.6% 8.0% 6.7%

The increase in research and development expenditures
in 1990 and 1989 over the preceding years primarily
reflects additions to the Company’s engineering staff and
related costs to support its continued emphasis on
developing new products and enhancing existing
products in the areas of hardware and peripherals, system
software, and networking and communications. The

Company believes that continued investments in
research and development are critical to its future growth
and competitive position in the marketplace and are
directly related to continued, timely development of new
and enhanced products. The Company anticipates that
research and development expenditures will continue to
increase in 1991.

1990 Change 1989 Change 1968
Selling, general and administrative $1,762 15% $1,535 29% $1,188
Percentage of net sales 31.7% 29.0% 29.2%

Selling expenses increased as a percentage of net sales
in 1990 to strengthen Apple’s marketing, sales, and
support operations in its growing international markets,
and as a result of increased international and domestic
promotional activity. To a lesser extent, general and
administrative expenses increased because of higher
facilities costs, employment levels and compensation
expenses, and legal costs. The Company also recorded a
$34 million charge in the first quarter of 1990 related to
cost-reduction programs and, to a lesser extent, facilities
and equipment damages resulting from the October 1989
earthquake in the San Francisco Bay Area. The cost-
reduction programs were implemented in response to
slowing growth in the U.S. personal computer industry.
These actions will not affect the Company’s ability to mar-
ket or deliver its products.

The combined selling and general and administrative
expenses were slightly lower as a percentage of net sales
in 1989, compared with 1988, because of lower discretion-
ary marketing expenses, principally promotional activities
and advertising, which were offset slightly by increased
costs for the Company'’s information and control systems.

One of the challenges the Company faces in 1991 is to
manage expense growth in the selling and general and
administrative areas, particularly in light of the Com-
pany'’s anticipation of lower gross margins as a percent-
age of net sales and increased research and development
expenditures.

Interest and Other Income, Net 1990 Change 1989 Change 1988
Interest and other income, net $ 67 —-40% $ 110 207% $ 36
Percentage of net sales 1.2% 2.1% 0.9%

interest and other income, net, in 1989 included a $79
million gain from the Company’s sale in July 1989 of its
common stock holdings of Adobe Systems Incorporated.
Excluding this one-time gain, interest and other income,
net, increased from $31 million in 1989 to $67 million in
1990. The increased interest and other income

resulted primarily from additional interest income gener-
ated from a higher level of investments, and lower interest
expense. The decline in 1989 (excluding the one-time
gain) compared with 1988 was principally due to an
increase in interest expense and higher costs incurred to
hedge foreign currency positions.
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Provision for Income Taxes 1990 Change 1989 Change 1988
Provision for income taxes $ 304 5% $ 290 13% $ 256
Effective tax rate $ 39% 39% 39%

The Company’s federal income tax returns for 1981
through 1986 have been examined by the Internal Reve-
nue Service (IRS). Tax deficiencies have been assessed
by the IRS for the years 1981 through 1983, and the
Company has made prepayments thereon. Various
issues have been resolved, and the Company is pursuing
judicial remedies for the remaining issues. During 1990,
the IRS proposed tax deficiences for the years 1984
through 1986. The Company is contesting these alleged
deficiencies and is pursuing administrative and judicial

Factors That May Affect Future Results

remedies. Management believes that adequate provision
has been made for any adjustments that may resuit from
these examinations.

The Company has not elected early adoption of Financial
Accounting Standard No. 96, Accounting for Income
Taxes (FAS 96). FAS 96, as amended by FAS 103,
becomes effective no later than the beginning of the Com-
pany’s 1993 fiscal year. The Company believes that FAS
96, when adopted, will not have a material effect on its
financial position or results of operations.

A number of uncertainties exist that may affect the Com-
pany’s future operating results, including the possibility
of a further slowing of the rate of growth of the personal
computer market, uncertain general economic conditions,
market acceptance of the Company’s new products,
generally weak financial conditions of third-party com-
puter resellers, the Company’s ability to manage expense
growth, the availability and cost of components, and
numerous competitive factors.

On October 15, 1990, Apple introduced three new, low-
cost personal computers. The success of these new
products is dependent on a number of factors, including
market acceptance and the Company’s ability to
manufacture the products in sufficient quantity to meet
anticipated demand. It is anticipated that a significant
portion of the Company’s future revenues will come from
these new products, which generally have lower gross
margins than the Company’s other products. However,
the Company cannot determine the ultimate effect that
these new products will have on its sales or results of
operations.

Apple’s primary means of distribution is through third-
party computer resellers. The Company’s business and
financial results could be adversely affected in the event
that the generally weak financial condition of third-party
computer resellers worsens.

Operating results could be adversely affected should the
Company be unable to manage expense growth in the
selling and general administrative areas, particularly in
light of the Company’s anticipation of lower gross mar-
gins as a percentage of net sales and increased research
and development expenditures.

Certain components for the Company’s products are
currently available only from single sources, such as
Motorola microprocessors. Any interruption in supplies of

components could adversely affect the Company’s busi-
ness and financial results. The Company has also from
time to time experienced significant price increases
and limited availability of certain components, such as
DRAM. Any similar occurrences in the future could have
an adverse effect on the Company’s operating results.

New products anticipated from and introduced by the
Company could create uncertainty in the marketplace
and cause customers to defer or alter buying decisions. In
addition, new products or product enhancements from
competitors of the Company, or significant pricing pres-
sures, could have an adverse impact on the Company’s
operating results. Operating results could also be
adversely affected should the Company be unable to
introduce new products, or to increase or reallocate its
manufacturing capacity for existing products, quickly
enough to respond to changing customer demands.

Apple’s U.S. manufacturing plant, the majority of its
research and development activities, its corporate head-
quarters, and other critical business operations are
located near major earthquake faults. Operating results
could be materially adversely affected in the event of a
major earthquake. The Company has the ability to
increase manufacturing capacity at its plants in Cork,
Ireland, and in Singapore, but there can be no assurance
that the available capacity would be sufficient to meet the
demand for the Company’s products.

Because of the foregoing, as well as other factors affect-
ing the Company's operating results, past financial per-
formance should not be considered to be a reliable
indicator of future performance, and investors should not
use historical trends to anticipate results or trends in
future periods. In addition, the Company participates in a
highly dynamic industry, which often results in significant
volatility of Apple’s common stock price.
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Liguidity and Capital Resources 1990 1989 1988
Cash, cash equivalents, and short-term investments $ 997 $ 809 $546
Working capital $1,376 $1,399 $956
Cash generated by operations $ 964 $ 507 $294
Cash used for investment activities, excluding short-term investments $ 322 $ 206 $186

Cash used for financing activities

Apple’s financial condition remained strong as of Septem-
ber 28, 1990. Cash generated internally exceeded cash
required to support the Company’s operations. As a
result, cash, cash equivalents, and short-term invest-
ments increased $188 million during 1990 to a year-end
balance of $997 million.

Net cash generated by operations during 1990 totaled
$964 million, of which $678 million resulted from net income
plus noncash depreciation and amortization. Active man-
agement of inventory levels resulted in inventory declining
by $120 million between 1990 and 1989. Accounts receiv-
able declined $31 million between 1990 and 1989 because
of slightly reduced sales levels in the fourth quarter of 1990
versus the prior year, offset somewhat by an increase
in days sales outstanding—from 46 days in 1989 to 51
days in 1990. The net increase of $133 million, in current
liabilities, income taxes, and other assets reflects overall
growth in the Company’s operations.

Excluding short-term investments, net cash used for
investment activities during 1990 totaled $322 million, of
which $224 million was invested in property, plant, and
equipment, primarily as a result of increases in manufac-
turing machinery and equipment and worldwide office
occupancy costs. The Company leases the majority of its
facilities and certain of its equipment under noncancelable
operating leases. In 1990, rent expense under all operating
leases was approximately $139 million. The Company's
future lease commitments are discussed in the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements. The Company antici-
pates that its capital spending level in 1991 will increase
somewhat compared with 1990. The actual level of spending
willbe dependent on a variety of factors, including general
economic conditions and the Company’s requirements.

$ 454 $ 38 $128

Net cash used for financing activities during 1990 totaled
$454 million, of which $570 million and $54 million was
used to repurchase common stock of the Company and to
pay cash dividends, respectively. During 1990, the Com-
pany repurchased approximately 14.7 million shares in
the open market under stock repurchase programs. The
Company is authorized to purchase up to 10 million addi-
tional shares of its common stock in the open market
under a repurchase program authorized by the Board of
Directors in September 1990. Issuance of common stock
and related tax benefits, and an increase in short-term
borrowings, generated an additional $104 million and $66
million, respectively, in cash from financing activities
during 1990.

The Company expects that it will continue to incur
short-term borrowings from time to time to finance U.S.
working capital needs, because a substantial portion of
the Company’s cash, cash equivalents, and short-term
investments is held by foreign subsidiaries, generally in
U.S. dollar-denominated holdings. Amounts held by foreign
subsidiaries would be subject to U.S. income taxation
upon repatriation to the U.S. to meet domestic cash
needs; the Company'’s financial statements fully provide
for any related tax liability.

The Company believes the resolution of any tax liability for
proposed tax deficiencies by the Internal Revenue Serv-
ice for the years 1984 through 1986 will occur over the
course of the next several years. Payment of any assess-
ment would generally not occur until the end of such proc-
ess, and is therefore not expected to immediately affect the
liquidity of the Company.

The Company believes that its balances of cash, cash
equivalents, and short-term investments, together with
funds generated from operations and borrowing capabili-
ties, will be sufficient to meet its operating cash require-
ments in the foreseeable future.



Information Required by SEC Regulations 13

CINCINNATI MILACRON INC. (DEC)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Resulits of Operations

The company'’s financial results for the last three years,
presented on page 22, are discussed below.

1990 Compared to 1989

Sales and Other Income (Expense)

Sales in 1990 were $838 miillion, which represented a 2%
increase over the $820 million recorded in 1989. Sales of
the machine tool segment increased by 9% due primarily
to higher shipments of the new Sabre 750 vertical machin-
ing center and advanced manufacturing systems. The
increase in machine tools more than offset a decrease in
plastics machinery that was caused by reduced demand
for injection molding machines and price discounting in
the domestic market. The industrial products segment
achieved a 4% sales increase in 1990 after excluding the
$8 million of 1989 sales of the company’s semiconductor
materials operations which were sold early in 1989. This
increase resulted from record sales of the company’s
metalworking fluids.

Sales of all segments to foreign markets totaled $247
million in 1990, compared to $229 million in 1989. Export
shipments from the United States increased 6% after
excluding 1989 exports of the semiconductor materials
operations. The sales of the company’s foreign operations
to non-U.S. markets increased by $17 million due mainly to
higher shipments of the British-built Sabre 750 and the
appreciation of most foreign currencies in relation to the
U.S. dollar.

Other income (expense) represented a net expense of
$3.1 million in 1990, compared to income of $1.8 million in
1989. The latter amount included a gain of $3.4 million on
the sale of the semiconductor materials operations. After
reduction for income taxes of $2.6 million (including $1.2
million of investment tax credit recapture), the effect of the
sgle was to increase net earnings by $.8 million, or $.03 per
share.

New Orders and Backlog

New orders in 1990 totaled $788 million, compared to $800
million in 1989, with a majority of the decrease occurring
in the machine tool segment. The overall decrease was
reflective of economic uncertainty and lower levels of spend-
ing in the domestic capital goods market, especially by
the automotive industry. The year-end 1990 backlog was
$284 million, compared to $334 million at the end of 1989.

Margins, Costs and Expenses

The company’s manufacturing margin for 1990 was 22.7%
compared to 23.7% in 1989. Price discounting, reduced
demand for injection molding equipment and costs
related to new manufacturing capacity resulted in lower
margins in the plastics machinery segment. Price dis-
counting for standard machine tools also contributed to
the overall decrease. Grinding machine margins improved
during 1990 but were still inadequate due in part to excess
capacity. The appreciation of the British pound in relation
to the U.S. dollar reduced the profitability of coordinate
measuring machines and machining centers sourced in

the United Kingdom. The impact of inflation on margins
was not significant due to the moderate level of inflation
during the year and the use of the LIFO inventory method,
which matches current costs with revenues.

Selling and administrative expense increased from
$143 million in 1989 to $157 million in 1990 due to higher
selling costs. This increase resulted from the mix of orders
sold through dealers and distributors, higher costs
associated with efforts to increase domestic and Euro-
pean market share for plastics machinery products, and
the effects of currency exchange rate fluctuations. interest
expense decreased by approximately $3 million in relation
to 1989, due principally to the repayment of domestic
short-term debt from the proceeds of an equity offering
completed in June, 1990.

Special Charge

In the fourth quarter of 1990, the company recorded a pre-
tax special charge of $32.8 million to improve manufactur-
ing efficiency and to accelerate the phase-out of certain
product lines. Approximately one-half of the charge related
to the reorganization of grinding machine operations,
including the elimination of older products and the
implementation of new cost-reduction measures at the
company’s domestic focus factory, and the closing of its
European grinding machine manufacturing operation in
The Netherlands. The balance of the $26.6 million for the
machine tool segment related primarily to the discontinu-
ance of certain machining center products manufactured
in the United Kingdom. The remaining $6.2 million of the
charge related to the reorganization of LK Tool, the com-
pany’s coordinate measuring machine business, including
the elimination of older products and the consolidation
and reorganization of the domestic marketing organization.

Income Taxes

The 1990 provision for income taxes consisted primarily of
currently payable U.S. federal, and state and local income
taxes. Because of the unavailability of current tax benefits
for a majority of the special charge, the company had a
U.S. net operating loss carryforward for financial reporting
purposes of approximately $14 million at the end of 1990.
The company'’s effective tax rate in 1989 was 47.4% and
exceeded the U.S. federal statutory rate due primarily to
the combined effects of state and local income taxes,
investment tax credit recapture arising from the sale of the
semiconductor materials operations, and certain foreign
losses for which no tax benefits were available.

Earnings
Due to the special charge, the company incurred a loss
from continuing operations in 1990 of $22.1 million, or $.87
per share, compared to earnings of $19.1 million, or $.77
per share, in 1989. As described above, reduced margins
and increased selling expense contributed to the decline.
The losses from discontinued operations of $2.1 million,
or $.08 per share, in 1990 and $7.4 million, or $.30 per
share, in 1989 related to the sales of the company’s indus-
trial robot and laser machine businesses. The 1990 amount
includes a $1.7 million provision for sale of the robot busi-
ness and the phase-out of the manufacture of industrial
robots, while the 1989 amount includes a provision for loss
on the sale of the laser machine business of $4.5 million.
Incuding the loss from discontinued operations, the
company’s net loss in 1990 was $24.2 million, or $.95 per
share, compared to earnings of $17.4 million, or $.70 per
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share, in 1989. Included in the 1989 amount is an extraor-
dinary tax benefit of $5.7 million, or $.23 per share, from
utilization of a net operating loss carryforward that origi-
nated in 1987,

1989 Compared to 1988

Sales and Other Income (Expense)

Sales of $820 million in 1989 represented a modest
increase from the 1988 level, as gains in plastics machin-
ery and machine tool shipments offset a decline in indus-
trial products shipments. The sale of the semiconductor
materials operations early in 1989 resulted in a decrease
in sales of $34 million. Other income (expense) in 1989
included a $3.4 million gain from this sale.

Plastics machinery sales of $287 million were 9% higher
than the 1988 level, principally due to increased demand
for the segment’s U.S.-produced injection molding
machines. The machine tool segment’s sales of $394 mil-
lion were 4% greater than the 1988 level, due to increased
sales of standard machines and electronic controls, which
were partially offset by reduced sales of large integrated
metalcutting systems. Excluding the sales of the semicon-
ductor materials operations, industrial products sales
increased by 4%. Included in this segment are sales for
the company’s metalworking fluids operations, which set
a new record in 1989.

Sales of all segments to foreign markets totaled $229
million in 1989, compared to $224 million in 1988. This
increase resulted from the company’s foreign operations,
which were partially offset by reduced U.S. exports of $82
million, compared to $88 million in 1988.

New Orders and Backlog

New orders of $800 million in 1989 declined 9% from the
1988 level. Over half of the decrease was related to the
sale of the semiconductor materials operations, while the
remainder was due principally to a softening in demand
for certain machine tool products—especially from the
automative industry. At year-end 1989, the backlog was
$334 million, compared to $364 million at year-end 1988.
The principal reasons for the decrease were the sale of
the semiconductor materials operations and shipments in
excess of new orders in plastics machinery.

Margins, Costs and Expenses
in 1989, the company’s manufacturing margin fell to 23.7%
from 25.4% in 1988, as improved performances in plastics
machinery and metalworking fluids were offset by declines
in certain machine tool lines and coordinate measuring
machines. The decline in machine tool margins resulted
from the implementation of new manufacturing processes
and technologies at a time of greatly increased demand.
This situation led to temporary but costly delays and,
when production did increase, the result was shipment of
lower-margin products. By the end of the year, the com-
pany had increased production significantly in all its
machine tool focus factories but continued to address
manufacturing efficiency, especially in its grinding
machine operations, where losses persisted. Inflation did
not have a significant effect on the company's margins in
either 1989 or 1988.

Selling and administrative expenses of $143 million
increased by 2% from the 1988 level, as the company
continued to implement cost-control procedures which

substantially offset the effects of inflation. Interest expense
in 1989 was approximately equal to the 1988 level, as aver-
age debt declined and the company'’s average borrowing
rate rose slightly.

Income Taxes

The company’s effective tax rate increased to 47.4% in
1989, compared to 42.5% in 1988. The increase was
primarily a result of investment tax credit recapture and
foreign losses on which no tax benefits were available.

Earnings

Earnings from continuing operations before extraordinary
item were $19.1 million, or $.77 per share, compared to
$27.3 million, or $1.12 per share, in 1988. Net earnings in
1989 included losses of $7.4 million, or $.30 per share,
from the company’s discontinued industrial robot and
laser machine businesses, including a loss of $4.5 million,
or $.18 per share, on the sale of the laser machine opera-
tion. Net earnings in 1989 also included an extraordinary
tax benefit from loss carryforward of $5.7 million, com-
pared to $12.1 million in 1988. This U.S. net operating loss
carryforward was fully utilized during 1989. Net earnings
of $17.4 million, or $.70 per share, were $19.7 million lower
than the 1988 level of $37.1 million, or $1.52 per share.

Outlook

While the rate of new business increased in the second
half of 1990, compared to low levels in the first half, many
orders are for longer lead-time products. Consequently,
shipments in the first quarter of 1991 will decline from the
level of the fourth quarter of 1990, and the company
expects to report an operating loss.

The outlook for the balance of the year is uncertain, as
it depends to a large extent on the length of the recession
and the timing of an increase in capital spending. In par-
ticular, strong demand by aircraft manufacturers con-
tinues to be offset by general slowness in the US.
economy and low levels of spending on the part of the
automakers. Therefore, while the company’s prospects
are good for aerospace machine tools and in many plastic
machinery specialty areas, demand remains soft for other
machine tool products and injection molding machines.
Overall, however, assuming some improvement in the
automative and consumer goods sectors, the company is
more optimistic about the rest of the year.

Liquidity and Sources of Capital

Early in the third quarter of 1990, the company completed
a public offering of three million additional common
shares. The net proceeds of the sale of approximately $51
million are being used principally to support the com-
pany’s Wolfpack product development, process improve-
ment and modernization programs, as well as for general
corporate purposes, including the reduction of short-term
debt.

During 1990, cash and cash equivalents increased from
$33 million to $45 million and total debt decreased by $26
million, due in part to the proceeds of the equity offering.
Programs to reduce inventory and accounts receivable
levels also contributed to the overall liquidity improve-
ment, as did the proceeds from the sales of the com-
pany’s industrial robot and laser machine businesses.
Net working capital decreased by $6 million during the
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year but the current ratio remained constant in relation to
year-end 1989 at 2.1.

Capital expenditures totaled $34 million in both 1990
and 1989, compared to $21 million in 1988. The 1990
amount included additional capital spending related to
the continuation of an expansion and modernization of
parts-manufacturing capacity for plastics machinery
begun in 1989. Capital spending in both 1990 and 1989
also included increased expenditures in the machine tool
segment in support of the Wolfpack program. Capital
expenditures are expected to be approximately $30 mil-
lion in 1991.

The ratio of debt to total capital (debt and equity) was
41% at the end of 1990, compared to 46% at year end
1989. The improvement in 1990 is due principally to the
completion of the equity offering and the related reduc-
tions of domestic short-term borrowings. At year-end
1990, the company had unused lines of credit with major
U.S. and foreign banks totaling $223 million, of which
approximately $70 million was available under the terms
of the company’s most restrictive debt covenants.

THE EASTERN COMPANY (DEC)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OF FINANCIAL CONDITIONS AND RESULTS
OF OPERATIONS

Net income from continuing operations increased in 1990
to $3,524,191 or $1.27 per share from $2,628,845 or $.95 per
share in 1989. In 1988 it was $3,267,852 or $1.15 per share.
Total net income increased $91,711 or 6% over 1989 and
decreased $905,536 or 35% from the 1988 level. Cash from
operating activities totaling $6,468,297 was sufficient to
cover dividends, capital expenditures, partial prepayment
of long-term debt and normal operating needs.

During the second quarter of 1990 the Company
announced the phase out of the malleable iron castings
operation at the Alloy Foundries Division. The stainless
steel and high alloy casting business remained intact and
is expected to grow. Total after tax cost of this discontinued
operation was $1,807,872 or $.65 per share.

Results of Operations

The 1990 sales from continuing operations of $64,181,243
decreased $1,429,111 or 2% and $2,835,108 or 4%, respec-
tively, from the reclassified 1989 and 1988 levels. New
products in the stainless steel metalcasting, industrial
hardware and locking device areas contributed 1% in
increased sales over 1989. Price increases contributed 3%
in increased sales. Lower volumes decreased sales by 6%.
Fourth quarter 1990 sales were down 4% from the 1989
fourth quarter. While price increases and new products
both contributed 2% in sales, sales volume decreased 8%
in the comparable fourth quarter periods.

Volume increases in the roof fastener and some of the
Company’s lock areas were not sufficient to offset the
reduced sales levels in the industrial, vehicular, marine and
military locking and latching device areas as well as the
construction materials area. While some marketing re-
structuring is taking place in the locking device and con-
struction product lines, these areas are expected to be slow
until an upturn in the economy takes place.

Other income in 1990 included $485,321, versus

$502,190 in 1989, in sales commissions received from Bir-
mingham Bolt under a six-year sales agreement.

Total 1990 income was 6% higher than 1989 in spite of
lower sales. This increase was primarily due to product
mix, improved margins through increased efficiency and
controi of operating costs. Total 1990 income was lower
than 1988 because of lower sales and the higher discon-
tinued operation costs.

Total 1990 fourth quarter earnings from continuing oper-
ations were $868473 or $31 per share on sales of
$15,116,592 versus $855340 or $.31 per share on sales of
$15,790,581. The fourth quarter profit in 1988 was $.21 per
share or $576,064 on sales of $16,561,753. Profits were the
same in the fourth quarter 1990 and 1989 in spite of lower
sales because of product mix, improved margins,
increased efficiencies and control of costs.

The costs of products sold were 76.3% of 1990 sales;
78.3% of 1989 sales and 789% of 1988 sales. Improved
margins were due to product mix, reduced direct and
indirect labor through improved efficiency, lower payroll
charges, depreciation and overhead costs. Significantly
contributing to the margin improvement were the substan-
tial cost reductions experienced in the security products’
areas in the custom lock operations. Also contributing was
the increased capacity and improved labor efficiency of the
Company’s roof fastener facility as the resuit of its capital
investment program.

The Company plans to continue to improve margins
through the concentration of profitable segments, continued
improvement in operating efficiencies through capital
expenditure programs, additional product development
cost reduction programs and additional price increases
where possible. The program of increasing capacity and
reducing labor and overhead costs at the Company's
highly automated mine roof fastener plant and the empha-
sis on the expanded use of our worldwide facilities as cost
efficient suppliers will continue. A concentrated marketing
effort to expand the remaining specialty high alloy steel
casting business is taking place. While the construction
business remains soft, efforts are being made to expand
its product line.

In 1990 research and development costs were $561,436
versus $637,034 in 1989 and $437,381 in 1988. The Com-
pany continues to emphasize the importance of worth-
while research and development projects. The 1990
expenditures were on projects involving mine roof
fasteners, transportation and industrial hardware, and
locking device hardware.

The 1990 selling and administrative costs increased
$300,532 or 3% over 1989 and $736,235 or 8% over 1988
levels. The increases were primarily due to normal wage,
fringe benefit and other administrative costs. Also
included was a $97,723 increase in the provision for doubt-
ful accounts representing a 1% increase in 1990 over both
1989 and 1988. Continued attempts are being made to
control selling and administrative costs.

Interest costs in 1990 were $486,006 versus $614,390 in
1989 and $565,980 in 1988 representing a 21% and 14%
decrease because of advanced principal payments made
during the year.

Federal, foreign and state income tax rates collectively
were 37.7%, 38.2% and 36.6% of income from continuing
operations. The slight reduction between 1990 and 1989
was primarily due to lower foreign taxes on lower foreign
income. The increase between 1990 and 1988 was due to
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the recapture of some investment tax credit and higher
state income taxes.

Each year’s fourth quarter earnings are affected by
year-end adjustments to bring estimated accruals, LIFO
provisions and book inventories to actual. In 1990 such
adjustments for continuing operations had the effect on
increasing income by $.05 per share versus $.08 per share
in 1989 and $.03 in 1988.

Liquidity and Sources of Capital

The Company’s Balance Sheet continues to be strong
with a ratio of current assets to current liabilities of 3.3 at
the end of 1990 compared to 3.5 at the end of 1989 and 3.1
at the end of 1988. Working capital continues at a healthy
level with strong management controls on receivables
and inventories. Accounts receivable and inventories
decreased $470,927 and $72,227, respectively, between
1990 and 1989. Accounts receivable collections and
inventory turns were approximately the same as the previ-
ous year.

Current financial resources including the flexibility of
the short-term line of credit financing and anticipated
funds from operations are expected to be adequate to
meet normal requirements for the year ahead. The Com-
pany currently has a line of credit of $3,000,000, none of
which was used in 1990.

In February and November 1990 the Company made
advanced payments of $500,000 each against its $5,000,000
long-term note lowering the balance to $4,000,000. As a
result, the $250,000 quarterly installments covering
principal payments initially due January 1, 1991 will not
become due until January 1, 1992.

The Company in its long-term cash planning normally
covers capital expenditures with funds generated inter-
nally. Where abnormally large capital expenditure pro-
grams are involved, long-term financing vehicles are
sometimes used.

Additions to property, plant and equipment from con-
tinuing operations during the year totaled $3,975677
versus $1,877,279 in 1989. 1990 capital expenditures
included the replacement of equipment and the major
capital investment program at our Frazer & Jones facility.
Total 1991 capital expenditures will exceed the $2,200,000
level of depreciation and will include the completion of the
final stage of the capital investment program at our Frazer
& Jones mine roof fastener facility increasing its produc-
tion capacity and improving production efficiency. The
Company feels that funds generated internally should be
sufficient to finance the capital expenditure program.

Impact of Inflation and Changing Prices

inflation, while not quite as significant as in previous
years, continues to be a factor and the Company is con-
tinually seeking ways to cope with its impact. To the extent
permitted by competition, the Company passes increased
costs on by increasing sales prices over time. Price
increases for both 1990 and 1989 were 2.3% and 2.8%,
respectively.

The Company uses the LIFO method of accounting for
its U.S. inventories. Under this method, the cost of
products reported in the financial statements approxi-
mates current costs and thus reduces distortion in report-
ing income due to increasing costs.

The charges to operations for depreciation represent
the allocation of historical costs incurred over past years,
and are significantly less than if they were based on the
current cost of productive capacity being consumed. Pro-
vision for depreciation is generally computed using the
straight-ine method based upon estimated useful lives of
the assets.

Approximately 70% of the Company’s properties have
been acquired over the last five years and have a remain-
ing useful life ranging from two years for equipment to
twenty-five years for buildings.

Assets acquired in prior years will be replaced at higher
costs, but this will take place over many years. While these
new assets will result in higher depreciation charges, in
many cases, there will be operating savings due to tech-
nological improvements, improved efficiency and
increased productivity. The Company considers these
matters in setting its pricing policies.

KUHLMAN CORPORATION (DEC)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL RESULTS AND OPERATIONS

Introduction

In its recent history Kuhiman Corporation operated in two
major markets—electrical and automotive. Product offerings
included transformers and a variety of blow molded plas-
tic products, including fuel tanks, assorted springs, spring
assemblies, fasteners and marine hardware. Competition
was and is fierce in each business area. Management
was faced with a variety of choices. The ultimate decision
was to refocus. . .on the flagship business; that of supply-
ing products and services to the electrical utility industry;
and to dispose of the blow molded plastics operations.

For the three years ended December 31, 1990, the Com-
pany’s pre-tax earnings from continuing operations have
risen in an increasingly competitive business environment.
Much of this success is attributable to the Company’s
focus on its competitive position which has resulted in
stronger operating performance. Management's strategic
emphasis is on total quality and operating efficiency.
Accompanying the earnings growth, the cash dividends
per share have also increased the past two years.

Kuhlman Corporation’s strategic emphasis is to
enhance shareholder value by achieving a superior and
sustained rate of return on equity. The Company con-
tinued its progress in this regard during 1990. Book value
per share increased 17% to $8.06 from the 1989 level. The
return on average shareholder's investment rose from
14% in 1989 to 22% in 1990.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of June 30, 1990, Kuhiman Corporation sold its interest
in the blow molded plastics operations to Solvay America,
Inc. The Company received as partial consideration, cash
in the amount of $21,774,000 and the elimination of
$7,805,000 in debt, which was assumed by Solvay. Addi-
tionally, the Company will receive $1,250,000 annually for
the next five years in exchange for a covenant not to com-
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pete. This transaction enhanced the Company'’s liquidity
and provided a significant amount of borrowing capacity
for future expansion.

The Company measures its liquidity by its current ratio.
At December 31 of each year it was as follows: 1988 2.0:1,
1989 2.1:1 and 1990 3.2:1.

On December 31, 1990, Kuhiman's total outstanding
debt was $10,008,000, a reduction of $11,682,000 from
December 31, 1989. At the end of December 1990,
$5,008,000 was outstanding under Industrial Revenue
Bond financings for Associated Engineering Company
and the Power Transformer Division, and $5,000,000 in a
note payable to banks. The $10,008,000 includes a short
term portion of $532,000.

In order to pursue its business strategy, the Company
spent $5,213,000 for capital assets including the com-
mencement of construction of a new instrument transformer
plant in North Carolina. This project is being financed by
the aforementioned Industrial Revenue Bond.

Historically, Kuhiman Corporation has relied on a vari-
ety of internally-generated and borrowed funds to finance
its expansion strategies. The Company plans to grow
internally and through acquisition over the next few years.
it believes that its present working capital position com-
bined with forecasted cashflows and available borrowing
capacity will be sufficient to meet its anticipated cash
requirements for operating needs and capital expenditures.

Results of Operations

Consolidated Net Sales from continuing operations in
1990 were $117,578,000, which represents a decline of
$5,860,000 or 4.7% from 1989. Lower demand for distribu-
tion transformers due to the level of housing starts and a
decline in automotive production and boat building were
the primary causes. Indeed, sales of certain power and
instrument transformers fulfilled management’s expecta-
tions and outstripped prior year record levels.

In 1989, sales from continuing operations were
$123,438,000, virtually the same as the previous year.
Sales of transformers and related electrical apparatus
increased 5.6% over 1988 due in part to the re-facilitization
of substations throughout the United States.

Cost of Sales as a percentage of sales diminished from
78.8% in 1989 to 78.0% in 1990. The cost of sales percent-
age for electrical apparatus eased 0.8 percentage points
from 79.3% in 1989. The improvements were driven by
decreased costs from the availability of higher-quality
production materials and supplies, continuing benefits of
procurement and process improvement programs, ongo-
ing cost control efforts and a unified corporate effort at
eliminating waste, along with the favorable effect on mar-
gin of more fully utilizing the relatively fixed resources at
some operating units.

Cost of sales as a percentage of sales decreased from
83.6% in 1988 to 78.8% in 1989. The cost of sales percent-
age in 1989 for electrical apparatus decreased by 5.9 per-
centage points from 85.2% in 1988. The improvement in
this segment reflected improved pricing, a better product
mix, and cost reductions related to materials and
manufacturing overhead.

Selling and Administrative Expenses in 1990 were lowe. .
both dollars and as a percent of sales from the previous
year. Selling expense rose due to the expansion and
strengthening of the sales organization, the establish-

ment of a customer communications center in Lexington,
Kentucky, and greater outbound freight charges
associated with higher fuel prices and an expanded vol-
ume of shipments in some freight-intensive operations.

1990 administrative expenses were 20% below those of
the previous year. The contributing factors were a sub-
stantial reduction in employee hiring and relocation
expenses, lower professional fees, and the incurrence of
expense for training programs in 1989 which were virtually
completed by 1990. Included in administrative expense
is the gain on the sale of the headquarters building
which was largely offset by provisions for the headquar-
ters relocation.

Selling and administrative expenses rose from
$13,697,000 or 11.1% of sales in 1988 to $14,778,000 or
12.0% of sales in 1989. Selling expense declined in dollars
and percent because of unreplaced personnel and
administrative expense increased due to incentive com-
pensation and the absence during 1989 of a significant
gain on the sale of assets.

Interest Expense from continuing operations contracted
23.2% from $1,945,000 in 1989 to $1,493,000 in 1990. This
was a result of the reduction of consolidated debt and the
general weakening of interest rates. Due to the favorable
terms and conditions of existing debt, it is not anticipated
that there will be early retirements of the principal bal-
ance. The 1990 average interest rate of 7.6% was almost
two points lower than the 1989 average rate.

Interest Income rose dramatically from $91,000 in 1989 to
$667,000 in 1990. The increase in interest income was
primarily attributable to larger investments which were
made possible by the surplus cash generated from the
sale of the Kuhiman plastics operations.

The Income Tax Rate for 1990 reflects a rate in excess of
the U.S. Federal statutory rate primarily due to the inclu-
sion of state income taxes as well as additional taxes for
possible results of a recent IRS audit. The effective rate of
21% in 1989 was favorably affected by the recognition of
future tax deductions that were not benefited in 1988 and
the exercise of stock options. See Note 5 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements for a reconciliation of
the effective income tax rate.

1990 Net Earnings From Continuing Operations were
$5,807,000 or 4.9% of sales. The Company experienced
unusually high tax rates substantially reducing the level of
pretax earnings of $10,505,000 or 8.9% of sales.

Net earnings from continuing operations for 1989 were
$7,215,000, which were $3,752,000 more than the previous
year and resulted from improved volume and pricing in the
transformer business, a more favorable mix of products
and better utilization of the Company's relatively fixed
resources,

Earnings (Loss) From Discontinued Operations is com-
posed of two elements. . . net earnings from operations
and the after-tax gain on the sale of the plastics business.
They are substantially better than the $2,103,000 loss
incurred in 1989, which included the startup costs of the
Bristol, Pennsylvania plastics operation.

The loss in 1988 was due primarily to restructuring
costs associated with the closing of the Borse plant and
the performance of the plastics operations.
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The gain on the sale of the assets of the blow molded
plastics business and certain other assets which totalled
$3,215,000 is addressed in Note 3 of the Notes to Consoli-
dated Financial Statements. With the divestiture of the
plastics operations, the Company operates in one pri-
mary, reportable business segment instead of two.

Net Earnings (Loss) Per Share were $1.67 in 1990 and
arose from the operating performance of the Company
and gain on the sale of certain assets to Solvay America,
Inc. and is based on the weighted average number of
shares outstanding of 5,651,608.

The Outlook for 1991 is good. The Company is enjoying a
record backlog of orders for its electrical products.
Management believes that the recession will not seriously
affect the construction and replacement plans of the
domestic public utilities so that sales will increase over
1990. The electrical apparatus segment is by and large

the most significant portion of the Company’s business.

The Company’s products are highly material-intensive.
For the past two years the prices paid for base materials
have been relatively stable and management does not
see anything on the horizon that would significantly alter
the present condition. In the event of elevated inflation,
the Company’s plan would be to protect itself by hedge-
buying all or a portion of its significant production
materials.

The UAW contract covering the employees at the Ver-
sailles, Kentucky plant will expire in April, 1991. The Com-
pany does not expect a work stoppage or interruption of
production.

While 1990 net earnings were bolstered by interest
income on invested cash, this could decline dramatically
were the Company to utilize the cash for reinvestment in
the business. Federal income tax rates in future years are
more likely to approximate the statutory rate than those of
the past several years.

Labor Relations

During 1990, at Quality Spring/Togo Inc., a one year exten-
sion of the contract was negotiated with the UAW, with no
increase in wages or benefits. The current contract will
expire in November, 1991.

Retiree Medical Benefit Costs

Kuhlman Corporation currently provides continued
medical benefit coverage for retirees, subject to a monthly
payment by the retiree which may be increased from time
to time based on cost experience. We are currently evalu-
ating the projected future liabilities under this program in
accordance with the recent Financial Accounting Stand-
ards Board standard on accounting for non-pension,
post-retirement benefits.

Inflation

Management believes that inflation did not have a mate-
rial effect on the results of operations or the financial
condition in 1990.

MAXUS ENERGY CORPORATION (DEC)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

In 1990, Maxus achieved profitability and continued to
strengthen its financial position. Overall price improve-
ments combined with lower interest and debt expenses
and depreciation, depletion and amortization resulted in
positive earnings. Higher net cash provided by operating
activities, coupled with the issuance of Common Stock
and the repurchase and restructuring of $9.75 Preferred
Stock, strengthened the Company'’s financial position by
permitting the implementation of a $309.2 million explora-
tion and development program with essentially no increase
in long-term debt.

Financial Condition

Maxus continued to realize strong improvements in net
cash provided by operating activities over the three-year
period, reporting $236.6 million, $153.5 million and $134.3
million for the years 1990, 1989 and 1988, respectively.
The significant ($83.1 million) increase in 1990 over 1989
was largely attributable to a general improvement in
prices and lower cash interest costs. The 14% improve-
mentin 1989 from the 1988 level was mainly attributable to
stronger prices and increased crude oil volumes in
Indonesia.

Working capital (current assets less current liabilities)
decreased $59.6 million from year-end 1989, reflecting the
use of year-end 1989 cash and cash equivalents to par-
tially fund the Company’s exploration and development
program, specifically, the development of the Intan and
Widuri fields in Southeast Sumatra. The decrease in
accounts payable, due to the timing of certain payments
and accruals, was partially offset by an increase in
accrued liabilities resulting from development expendi-
tures in the Southeast Sumatra area of Indonesia and an
increase in the Indonesian overlift liability.

In June 1990, the Company issued 9,000,000 shares of
Common Stock and received net proceeds of $89.8
million, after deducting related fees and expenses. The
Company used $69.0 million of the net proceeds to fund its
obligations under an agreement dated April 12, 1990
between the Company and The Prudential Insurance
Company of America (‘‘Prudential’’). Pursuant to the
agreement, the Company repurchased 500,000 of the
3,000,000 shares of redeemable, convertible $9.75
Preferred Stock owned by Prudential. In addition, Pruden-
tial waived the right to convert 750,000 of the remaining
2,500,000 shares of $9.75 Preferred Stock and will receive
an additional cash payment of $.25 per share per quarter
(subject to increase to $.50 per share in certain circum-
stances) on the 750,000 shares of $9.75 Preferred Stock.
Further, certain covenants relating to the $9.75 Preferred
Stock were waived or amended.

The remaining net proceeds from the issuance of the
Common Stock ($20.8 million) combined with the 1990 net
cash provided by operating activities ($236.6 million) and
1989 year-end cash and cash equivalents ($72.4 million)
were used to fund the Company's 1990 expenditures for
property and equipment, including dry hole costs, ($272.9
million) and preferred dividend payments ($44.0 million).
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Cash proceeds from the sale of assets amounted to
$316.8 million in 1989, representing $141.6 million from the
sale of the stock of the Company’s Canadian subsidiary
and approximately $100.0 million from the sale of stock of
a wholly owned foreign subsidiary which owned a 10%
interest in a production sharing contract in the Northwest
Java area of Indonesia. The remaining balance was
primarily due to sales of nonstrategic United States oil and
gas properties. The 1989 proceeds from the sale of assets
plus the net cash provided by operating activities was
more than sufficient to cover the $165.8 million of expendi-
tures for property and equipment, including dry hole
costs, and preferred dividend payments of $46.6 million,
while allowing for a $129.8 million net cash debt reduction
and an increase in cash and cash equivalents of $83.1
million during 1989.

Cash proceeds from asset sales in 1988, primarily from
the sale of oil and gas properties, totaled $74.9 million. The
1988 net cash provided by operating activities and asset
sales was primarily used for property and equipment
expenditures of $160.3 million (including dry hole costs)
and preferred dividend payments of $46.6 million.

For the year 1990, expenditures for property and equip-
ment, including dry hole costs, were $272.9 million, as
compared to $165.8 million in 1989. The increase was the
result of the aggressive drilling and development program
and the completion in late 1990 of the permanent process-
ing facility in the Southeast Sumatra area of Indonesia,
which allowed production from the Widuri field to come on
stream in December. Higher exploration expenditures in
the United States also contributed to the increase over
1989. The $5.5 million increase in spending in 1989 over
1988 was the net result of higher Indonesian exploration
and development spending.

In January 1991, a shelf registration statement filed by
the Company with the Securities and Exchange Commis-
sion became effective for a public offering of up to $150.0
million in medium-term notes which are issuable in one or
more series, have maturities ranging from nine months to
fifteen years from the date of issuance and bear interest at
rates established by the Company at the date of issuance.
While the Company has no current specific plan for the
proceeds, the principal reason for the offering will be to
make funds available for general corporate purposes
which may, depending upon market conditions, include
repayment of certain existing indebtedness. Currently, the
Company has issued no notes pursuant to the registration
statement.

Effective July 31, 1990, the Company entered into a
$150.0 million revolving credit agreement which replaced
the $110.0 million amended and restated credit agree-
ment. The new bank credit agreement terminates on June
1, 1993 and requires an annual commitment fee of .50%
on any unused portion of the commitment. The interest
rate on borrowing is based, at the Company’s option, on
the prime rate, Eurodollar rate or certificate of deposit rate.
At December 31, 1990, borrowings under the credit agree-
ment were $20.0 million.

On February 16, 1989, the Company issued subordi-
nated zero-coupon convertible notes having an aggregate
principal at maturity of $287.5 million due February 16,
2004. The Company received net proceeds in the amount
of $80.0 million which were used to repay certain existing
indebtedness. The rate of accretion on the principal is
8.5% per annum. Each $1,000 note is convertible, at the

option of the holder, at any time until maturity unless previ-
ously redeemed or otherwise repurchased, into 35639
shares of Common Stock. The zero-coupon convertible
notes had an aggregate accreted balance of $96.3 million
at December 31, 1990.

At the end of 1990, the long-term debt to market capitali-
zation ratio (the relationship between debt and the market
value of debt plus equity) was 37%, as compared to 33%
and 45% at year-end 1989 and 1988, respectively. The
increase in the ratio in 1990 primarily reflects the effect of
the general downward trend in exploration and production
company stock prices in the last quarter of the year.

in December 1990, the Financial Accounting Standards
Board (‘'FASB’') issued Statement of Financial Account-
ing Standards No. 106 (‘'SFAS 106”), “‘Employers’
Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pen-
sions,” which requires the accrual, during the years that
the employee renders the necessary service, of the
expected cost of providing postretirement benefits other
than pensions (most notably, postretirement medical
benefits) to the employee and the employee’s
beneficiaries and covered dependents. The FASB
requires adoption of SFAS 106 in 1993. The transition obli-
gation can be recognized upon adoption or on a delayed
basis, amortized over 20 years. Management has begun
preliminary evaluation of the impact of adoption based
upon current benefit plans, historical experience and pos-
sible future plan amendments.

Environmental Matters

Substantially all of the Company’s operations are subject
to various laws relating to the handling of hazardous
substances and requiring the cleanup of deposits and
spills of hazardous substances. In addition, the Company
has retained responsibility for certain liabilities of its
chemicals company (‘‘Chemicals’) sold to Occidental
Petroleum Corporation in 1986 and certain other busi-
nesses which have been disposed of or otherwise discon-
tinued, including certain environmental liabilities. In
addition, the Company is subject to a number of legal
proceedings and other contingent liabilities arising out of
its continuing business and businesses that have been
disposed of or otherwise discontinued. See ‘‘Commit-
ments and Contingencies’ in the Financial Summary
accompanying the Consolidated Financial Statements for
a description of legal proceedings and other contingent
liabilities.

In the opinion of the Company, environmental remedia-
tion has been substantially completed at all discontinued
plant sites where remediation is required, except for the
Newark and Kearny plants located in New Jersey which
are discussed below.

The Company will be responsible for remediation at the
former agricultural chemical plant in Newark under a con-
sent decree entered in November 1990 with the U.S.
Environmental Protection Agency and the New Jersey
Department of Environmental Protection (the ‘‘DEP”’).

The Company will perform remedial investigation,
feasibility studies and remediation under an Administra-
tive Consent Order issued by the DEP in April 1990 cover-
ing sites in Kearny and Secaucus, New Jersey where
chromite ore residue from the Kearny plant was utilized,
as well as the plant site. The Company has provided finan-
cial assurance for performance under the order in the
form of, and limited to, a $20.0 million letter of creditand a
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$31.5 million working capital fund, which will be estab-
lished incrementally through April 1, 1993.

The Company will also have responsibility for Chemi-
cals’ share of the cost of remediation for a number of other
sites, off of the Company’s properties, where wastes from
plant operations by Chemicals were allegedly disposed of
or have come to be located, including several commercial
waste disposal sites.

The Company’s total expenditures for environmental
compliance were approximately $25.0 million in 1990 and
are expected to be approximately $30.0 million in 1991.
The increased level of such expected expenditures in
1991 as contrasted to the prior year is primarily attributa-
ble to the expectation that the Newark project and parts of
the .Kearl_'ly project will be moving from the preliminary
engineering to the advanced engineering and construc-
tion phase in 1991. The Company’s environmental compli-
ance expenditures included in 1990, and are expected to
include for 1991, expenditures such as installation of
environmental control facilities, as well as costs incurred
for on-site and off-site environmental remediation and for
compliance with applicable environmental laws in respect
pf both current and discontinued or disposed of operations,
including contractual indemnity obligations arising in
respect of Chemicals and other disposed of businesses.

The Company will continue to incur costs for environ-
mental compliance, especially those associated with
Chemicals; however, in the opinion of the Company, the
material probable environmental costs which can be
reasonably estimated are adequately covered by reserves
or cost sharing arrangements with its former subsidiary
Diamond Shamrock R&M, Inc. (now known as Diamond
Shamrock, Inc.) which was spun off to the Company’s
stockholders in 1987.

Results of Operations

Maxus reported net income in 1990 of $7.3 million as
compared to net losses of $31.0 million and $131.6 million
in 1989 and 1988, respectively. The 1989 results included
gains on the sales of assets in the amount of $76.9 million;
excluding these gains, the improvement in 1990 over 1989
was $115.2 million. The increased net income in 1990 was
attributable to improved prices, lower depreciation, deple-
tion and amortization and reduced interest and debt
expenses. The 1988 results included a one-time cumula-
tive adjustment of $70.0 million to reflect a change in the
accounting for income taxes as required by Statement of
Fiqagrgéial Standards No. 96, which the Company adopted
in .

Sales and operating revenues were $685.4 million in
1990, $600.8 million in 1989 and $571.8 million in 1988.
The 14% improvement in 1990 sales over 1989 was due to
increased prices ($110.4 million positive price variance)
partially offset by reduced volumes ($25.8 million negative
volume variance). The increase in sales from 1988 to 1989
was due to increased production of crude oil from Indone-
sian operatons ($54.2 million) combined with a $2.38 per
barrel increase in worldwide crude price realizations
($29.2 million). Improvement in natural gas price realiza-
tion ($8.6 million) was another positive factor. These gains
were offset in part by the loss in revenue during 1989 due
to the sale of the Canadian subsidiary ($21.0 million), the
sale of the 10% interest in the production sharing contract
in Northwest Java, (representing a reduction of approxi-

mately $13.1 million in revenues) and the sales of certain
non-strategic United States properties.

Net worldwide crude oil production was 52.1 thousand
barrels (**MB’’) per day in 1990, compared to the 1989
level of 54.9 MB per day. Maxus’ share of the total Indone-
sian production was 41.9 MB per day in 1990, down from
44.0 MB per day in 1989. This volume decrease reflected
the effect of higher worldwide prices for crude oil on the
cost recovery portion of net entitlements. (The price
increase equated to an 80 MB per day decrease in
volumes.) The 1989 worldwide crude oil production, rela-
tively flat from the 1988 level, included the mid-year start-
up of the Intan field in the Southeast Sumatra area of
Indonesia, offset by the effect of property sales and
changes in Indonesian cost recovery barrels. The average
worldwide realized price received for crude oil in 1990 was
$21.50 per barrel as compared to $17.60 per barrel in 1989
and $15.21 per barrel in 1988.

The Company’s United States natural gas sales for
1990 were 295 million cubic feet (**MMCF’) per day, as
compared to 296 MMCF per day for 1989 and 306 MMCF
per day for 1988. Production volume declines in the Texas
Panhandle in 1990, as compared to 1989, were offset by
increased volumes from offshore properties. The lower
1989 sales, as compared to 1988, were the result of United
States asset sales, normal declines and voluntary curtail-
ments. The average price received for natural gas was
$1.76 per thousand cubic feet (‘“MCF"’), $1.68 per MCF
and $1.64 per MCF during the years 1990, 1989 and 1988,
respectively.

Natural gas liquids sales in the United States in 1990
were 16.2 MB per day as compared to 17.9 MB per day in
1989 and 21.2 MB per day in 1988. Normal production
declines of natural gas in the Texas Panhandle area were
largely responsible for the gas liquids decline. Average
prices received for natural gas liquids increased to $13.56
per barrel in 1990 from $9.27 per barrel in 1989 and $8.82
per barrel in 1988.

In addition to gathering and processing a substantial
part of the Company’s own natural gas, the Company also
purchases, gathers and processes other natural gas,
primarily in the Texas Panhandle and western Oklahoma,
for resale. The average daily sales of purchased natural
gas, which were included in the sales volumes discussed
above, amounted to 61 MMCF per day, 60 MMCF per day
and 61 MMCF per day in 1990, 1989 and 1988, respec-
tively. The average daily sales of natural gas liquids,
extracted from purchased natural gas, alsoincludedin the
volumes discussed above were 7.7 MB per day in 1990, 86
MB per day in 1989 and 10.3 MB per day in 1988. )

Other revenues, net were $15.2 million, $62.9 million
and $25.3 million for the years 1990, 1989 and 1988,
respectively. The 1989 other revenues, net incuded a gain
of $27.7 million from the sale of the Canadian subsidiary
and a $34.8 million gain from the sale of the stock of the
foreign subsidiary which owned a 10% interest in the
production sharing contract in the Northwest Java area of
Indonesia. In 1988, the Company recorded an $11.3 mil-
lion gain on the sale of the Dutch North Sea properties,
a $12.5 million provision for relocation costs and a favora-
ble settlement of two disputes involving natural gas sales
contracts.

Purchases and operating expenses were $243.2 million
in 1990. The 10% increase over 1989 was primarily the
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result of new platforms which came on production in the
Southeast Sumatra area of Indonesia during 1990. The
1989 purchases and operating expenses of $221.9 million
were down from the 1988 level of $236.7 million reflecting
a reduction in production, operating and maintenance
expenses due to the sale of higher cost producing proper-
ties and lower gas volumes.

Exploration costs, including exploratory dry holes, were
$65.4 million in 1990, as compared to $49.8 million in 1989
and $54.0 million in 1988. The increase in 1990 over 1989
resulted from higher geological and geophysical expendi-
tures in new foreign exploration areas including Bolivia,
Colombia and Spain and from increased dry hole costs.
The dry hole costs were $21.7 million, $16.0 million and
$14.9 million for the years 1990, 1989 and 1988, respec-
tively. The increase in dry hole costs in 1990 over 1989
was a result of overall higher exploration activity in North
America.

The Company has continued to realize substantial
reductions in depreciation, depletion and amortization
("‘DD&A) over the three-year period; the expense was
$190.5 million, $234.0 million and $268.7 million in 1990,
1989 and 1988, respectively. This favorable trend has
been largely due to the impact of lower relative finding
costs from 1988 to 1990 (cumulative DD&A rate effect of
$48.5 million) and lower lease and well impairments ($17.0
million total from 1988 to 1990). On a worldwide per barrel
of oil equivalent basis, the DD&A rate dropped from $6.02
per barrel produced in 1988 to $4.63 per barrel produced
in 1990.

General and administrative expenses were $32.5 mil-
lion in 1990, relatively unchanged from the 1989 level and
slightly improved from the $34.8 million recorded in 1988.
The Company continues to successfully monitor and con-
trol its general and administrative expenses.

Interest and debt expenses were $80.6 million in 1990,
significantly down from 1989 due to lower average debt
levels in 1990 as compared to debt levels throughout
1989. The 1989 interest and debt expenses of $93.8 million
remained flat from 1988 as the higher debt level in early
1989 was substantially reduced later in the year through
the use of proceeds from asset sales.

The 1990 provision for income taxes of $62.0 million
primarily represents foreign taxes. The 1989 provision for
income taxes of $45.4 million represented foreign taxes
and United States alternative minimum tax, partially offset
by tax benefits attributed to prior year operating losses.
The income tax expense increase in 1990, as compared to
1989, was largely the result of increased taxable revenue
in Southeast Sumatra which more than offset the reduc-
tion in tax caused by the sale of the partial interest in the
production sharing contract in Northwest Java. in 1988
the Company recorded a tax benefit of $44.9 million,
largely the result of losses from United States operations.

Future Outlook

The oil and gas exploration and production industry is
highly competitive and subject to volatile oil and gas
prices which have fluctuated substantially in recent years
as a result of numerous factors, including changes in
worldwide production and demand levels which are out-
side of the Company’s control. The invasion of Kuwait by
Iraq is the latest of these events with an immediate rise in
worldwide crude oil prices, resulting in a positive effect on
the Company’s sales and operating revenues, and then a

subsequent fall in prices. Upon resolution of the Persian
Gulf situation, significant price instability could occur until
supply and demand come into balance.

Natural gas prices also continue to be volatile, primarily
due to weather and regional supply and demand
imbalances. Although mild weather and high inventory
levels caused recent drops in spot pricing, the Company
believes the desirability of natural gas as a fuel alternative
will result in continued growth in demand as well as a
general upward trend in prices. The Company has been
able to realize premium gas prices by focusing its market-
ing efforts and by aggregating supply in order to offer
large volumes backed by diversified supply sources.

While planning is uncertain in this environment,
management is of the opinion that the Company has the
financial resources and the flexibility to meet anticipated
needs for future operations, absent significant price
declines.

The exploration and development program budget is
$292.0 million for 1991, compared to $309.2 million spent
in 1990. The decrease reflects the completion in late 1990
of the permanent processing facility in Southeast
Sumatra, offset in part by increases in other international
areas and in the United States. The Company expects to
spend approximately $51.0 million in Southeast Sumatra
and $47.0 million in the Northwest Java area of Indonesia.
The United States program spending for 1991 is planned
to be $145.0 million, representing an increase over the
$123.1 million spent in 1990. Spending for other worldwide
activities is anticipated to be up $29.0 million to $49.0 mil-
lion, $17.0 million of which will be dedicated to the
development program in Ecuador. This is awell-balanced,
worldwide exploration and development program targeted
at growing the reserve base at a competitive finding and
development cost. This program is flexible and spending
could be adjusted if there were significant changes in oil
and gas prices or other economic factors.

Entering 1991, the Company has new Indonesian crude
volumes on stream (a projected increase in Indonesian
operations of 30.0 MB per day from 1990), new reserve
additions in North America to be developed and an inven-
tory of attractive acreage, both domestically and interna-
tionally, to exploit. By continuing to focus on its strengths,
management believes Maxus is well positioned for growth
and continued improvement in financial strength.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION TABLE 1-3: SEGMENT INFORMATION
Number of i
St@tement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 14 1990 198: cg?;: nle1ss187
requires that financial statements presented in conformity Industry segments
with generally accepted accounting principles include Revenue ................... 371 366 397 412
specnf;ed information relating to a reporting entity’s opera- Operating income or loss . . . ... 336 334 358 381
tions in different industries, its foreign operations and Identifiable assets............. 368 366 383 406
export sales, and its major customers. SFAS No. 14 Depreciation expense ......... 365 363 383 401
describes the information to be presented and the formats Capital expenditures .......... 367 355 374 397
for presenting such information. Statement of Financial Geographic areas
Accounting Standards No. 21 amends SFAS No. 14 by stat- Revenue ................... 216 210 202 211
ing that the requirements of SFAS No. 14 do not apply to Operating income orloss ..... 171 162 167 173
nonpublic enterprises. Identifiable assets ............ 207 205 204 213
Table 1-3 shows the type of segment information most Depreciation expense .......... 17 14 8 13
frequently presented as an integral part of the 1990 finan- Capital expenditures .......... 21 13 18 14
Exportsales .................. 131 127 121 107

cial statements of the survey companies. A
Sales to major customers ....... 151 148 139 127

Industry Segments

BAUSCH & LOMB INCORPORATED (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Industry Segment and Geographic Information

The company'’s operations are classified into two business segments: healthcare and optics.

Operations within the healthcare segment include the production, manufacture and sale of solutions used in the care
of contact lenses and for relief of eye irritation; contact lenses and materials; contact lens accessories; oral care products;
periodontal diagnostic equipment; hearing aids; over-the-counter and prescription ophthalmic pharmaceuticals; labora-
tory animals, principally rats, mice and guinea pigs, specially bred for use in biomedical research; and specialized biotech-
nical services primarily for production of monoclonal antibodies. This segment also includes a vision care services plan,
a contact lens frequent replacement program and insurance for lens wearers.

The optics segment manufactures and sells products used for the enhancement or protection of vision. These include
sunglasses, ophthalmic frames, binoculars, riflescopes and telescopes. This segment also includes optical thin film coat-
ing services.

Inter-area sales to affiliates represent products which are transferred between geographic areas on a basis intended to
reflect as nearly as possible the market value of the products.

Operating earnings by business segment and by geographic area are defined as sales less operating costs and
expenses. Income and expense not allocated to business segments or geographic areas include investment income,
interest expense, foreign currency gains and losses and corporate administrative costs.

Identifiable assets are those assets used exclusively in the operations of each business segment or geographic area,
or which are allocated when used jointly. Corporate assets are principally comprised of cash, short-term investments, and
certain property, plant and equipment.
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The following tables show sales, operating earnings and other financial information by industry segment and geo-
graphic area for the years 1990, 1989 and 1988.

Industry Segment
Corporate

Dollar Amounts in Thousands Healthcare Optics and Other  Consolidated
1990
SalBS . i $856,414 $512,166 $ — $1,368,580
Operating @arnings . ...... ...ttt e 142,275 112,417 — 254,692
DepreCiation ... .. e 33,902 13,660 2,628 50,190
Identifiable @SSBLS .. ... ..ot 918,429 357,612 401,333 1,677,374
Capital expenditures .. ..... ...ttt s 70,876 36,653 845 108,374
1989
SalBS L $779,625 $440,674 $ — $1,220,299
Operating @armings ... ...ttt e 136,249 95,051 - 231,300
DepreCiation ... ...t e 28,497 9,712 2,447 40,656
Identifiable assets . ... ...t e 827,156 288,433 313,567 1,429,156
Capital expenditures ............ . i e 67,772 28,698 3,872 100,342
1988
SalBS . $635,461 $342,815 $ — $ 978,276
Operating Barmings .. ..... ..ottt e e 126,111 60,048 - 186,159
Depreciation ... ... .. e 24,823 7,362 1,075 33,260
Identifiable assets . .......... .. e 738,640 215,161 258,834 1,212,635
Capital expenditures . ...... ... e 63,071 18,440 21,613 103,124
Geographic Area

' Asia and Other
Dollar Amounts in Thousands United States  Europe Pacific  international Consolidated
1990
Sales to unaffiliated customers .......................... $794,843 $287,976 $200,599 $85,162  $1,368,580
Inter-area sales to affiliates ............................. 118,952 47,095 g1 1,420 167,558
Operatingearnings .. ...ttt 145,640 61,532 33,920 13,600 254,692
Identifiable assets .............. ... ... el 826,348 632,396 158,286 60,344 1,677,374
1989
Sales to unaffiliated customers .......................... $772,296 $212,747 $163,428 $71,828  $1,220,299
Inter-area sales to affiliates ............................. 72,411 43,788 115 960 117,274
Operating €arnings . . ...ttt 122,780 59,808 36,066 12,646 231,300
Identifiable assets ........... ... ... 767,829 498,758 121,257 41,312 1,429,156
1988
Sales to unaffiliated customers .......................... $612,885 $181,448 $126,538 $57,405 $ 978,276
Inter-area sales to affiliates ............................. 69,992 39,361 92 66 109,511
Operatingearnings . . ........oovve i 96,226 52,261 26,101 11,571 186,159
Identifiable assets .............c.oiiiiiii 669,421 408,059 93,639 41,516 1,212,635

ADOLPH COORS COMPANY (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 10: Segment Information

The Company’s operations include four reportable segments: beer business, ceramics business, aluminum business and
packaging business. The beer segment is composed of those operations principally involved in the manufacture, sale and dis-
tribution of malt beverage products. The ceramics segment is made up of those operations which manufacture ceramic
products. The aluminum segment is involved in the manufacture of aluminum rigid container sheet products and reclamation
and recycling of used beverage containers and other secondary metals. The packaging segment produces high-performance
flexible packaging and folding cartons. Other businesses include those subsidiaries that acquire and develop oil and gas
properties; produce corn syrup, vitamin products and other food ingredients; and develop innovative products and processes
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based on expertise in engineering and technology. The operating results for the beer business in 1990 included a special
charge for remediation costs associated with the Lowry Landfill Superfund site, as discussed in Note 7.

The operating loss for other businesses in 1989 includes asset write-downs at Coors Energy Company and Coors Biolech,
Inc. as discussed in Note 7.

Intersegment activity is composed of sales, receivables and profit on the transfer of inventory between segments. Operating
income (loss) for reportable segments is exclusive of certain unallocated corporate expenses.

Financial information by reportable business segment is included in the following summary:

Depreciation,
Net Operating depletion and  Additions to
sales income (loss) Assets  amortization properties
(In thousands)
1990
Beer business—continuing ............. ... . ... ... $1,477,271 $100,662 $1,084,839 $ 90,757 $175,199
—Specialcharge . .............ooiiiaa.. — (30,000) = - -
Ceramics business .................ccoiiiiriinnnn. 181,673 (457) 168,317 10,207 15,051
Aluminum business ............. ... i 138,233 16,322 227,355 7,620 83,236
Packaging business. . ...t 155,809 9,804 139,868 9,141 4,187
Other businesses ..............ccoiiiiiiiiiinninnn.. 103,670 (7,013 151,290 11,832 19,855
Intersegment activity . . .............. ... ... il (193,302) 1,531 (163,403) — -
Corporate . ... — (16,465) 153,398 819 . 4,493
$1,863,354 $ 74,384 $1,761,664 $130,376 $302,021
1989
Beerbusiness............... ... i $1,366,108 $ 71,081 $ 967,486 $ 85,249 $ 81,499
Ceramics buSINESS ....... ... ...ttt 166,749 11,721 153,464 8,361 33,430
Aluminum business ................ ... .. 167,327 9,110 93,572 6,822 15,826
Packaging business. ................ .. ... .o il 136,848 772 110,961 8,281 3,108
Other businesses .......................ccoiiiiiia.t. 103,541 (45,209) 128,013 12,451 13,934
Intersegment activity . .............. ... ... .. ... . L (176,703) (2,300) (36,946) — -
COrporate ..........oovuiiiiie - (11,429) 114,233 1,275 1,819
$1,763,870 $ 33,746 $1,530,783 $122,439 $149,616
1988
Beerbusiness.............c.oiiiiii i $1,271,906 $ 82794 $ 981,716 $ 78,101 $ 97,531
Ceramics business ................. .. ..ol 151,983 12,517 118,375 8,005 17,849
Aluminum business ............. ... i 97,330 3,939 96,042 6,096 9,134
Packaging business. .................. . i, 77,434 (2,149) 115,675 5,223 9,398
Other businesses ................c i 76,340 (12,356) 163,707 12,609 18,595
Intersegment activity . . ................... ... (153,296) (295) (19,398) — -
COMPOTA . o\ttt e — (14,908) 114,648 1,398 5,488

$1,521,697 $ 69,542 $1,570,765 $111,432 $157,995
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GRUMMAN CORPORATION (DEC)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 13—Segment Information
The company’s operations are classified into four business segments as follows: '

“Aerospace” —Includes the design and production of military aircraft, space systems and commercial aircraft components
and subassemblies, as well as the modernization or conversion of previously completed aircraft.

“Electronics systems”—Includes the design, manufacture and integration of sophisticated electronics for aircraft, computer-
ized test equipment and other defense related products, such as airborne surveillance systems.

“Information and other services’—Includes electronic data processing services for affiliates and other customers as well as
real estate, insurance and leasing services. It also includes technical services that help ready the space shuttle for flight, pro-
vide space station program support, service and maintain flight simulators and trainers and support Grumman aircraft.

‘C;Sfpecial purpose vehicles’—Includes fabrication of long life vehicles for the U.S. Postal Service, aluminum truck bodies,
and fire trucks.

Information about the company’s operations in its different industry segments for the past three years is as follows:

Depreciation
Operating Identifiable and Capital
Sales Income (Loss) Assets Amortization  Expenditures

1990

ABIOSPACE . ..ot $2,922,398 $157,218 $1,558,6256 § 72,924 $ 34,586
Electronics systems . . ...t 493,040 13,031 289,013 11,518 4,621
Information and other services ......................... 642,635 34,287 445,698 14,694 9,097
Special purpose vehicles .............. ...t 390,789 24,927 148,493 4,566 1,030
Corporate items and eliminations. ....................... (407,556)  (2,700) 12,295 1,579 385
Consolidated . ........... ... ... ... . ... . ... . ... ..., $4,041,306 226,763 $2,454,124  $105,281 $ 49,719
Interest eXpense ......... ... 98,791

income before federal incometaxes ..................... $127,972

1989

ABIOSPACE . ..\ttt $2,532,547 $132,395 $1,717,785  $ 80,525 $ 44,756
Electronics systems . . ............ooi i, 445,805 8,337 303,561 14,285 7,501
Information and other services . ........................ 589,568 46,593 462,743 15,898 9,483
Special purpose vehiCles .. ..., 399,370 15,639 146,191 4,832 3,572
Corporate items and eliminations. . ...................... (408,470)  (1,573) (39,218) 1,915 413
Consolidated ..............ccvvii., $3,558,820 201,391 $2,591,062  $117,455 $ 65,725
Interest eXpense . ... 105,327

Income before federal incometaxes ..................... $ 96,064

1988

ABIOSPACE . .. ..ottt $2,643,086 $140,455 $1,630,934 § 82,178 $ 87,648
Electronics systems . . ...t 514,378 8,547 314,550 14,088 11,351
Information and other services .................. ... ... 544,272 58,096 484,504 16,487 14,315
Special purpose vehicles . ............. ..o, 380,682 10,918 166,958 4,536 4,437
Corporate items and eliminations........................ {433,526) (2,657) (30,961) 1,822 368
Consolidated ................ ... i M 215,359 $2,565,985  $119,111 $118,119
Interest expense ... 84,894

Income before federal income taxes ..................... $130,465

Sales to the U.S government and its agencies (including sales to foreign governments through foreign military sales contracts
with U.S. Igovernment agencies) for the years 1990, 1989, and 1988 amounted to $3618,284, $3066896 and $3,201,679,
respectively.

A summary of export sales by geographic areas follows:

1990 1989 1988
g = T PP $106,712 $117,336 $ 87,511
Middle Bast ... ..ot e e e 17,073 40,813 40,350
BUTODE . .ottt e e et 62,592 44,752 38,377
Western Hemisphere . ..............iuiiuioiiii et e e 7,265 11,765 10,314

$193,642 $214,666 $176,552
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THE DUN & BRADSTREET CORPORATION (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Dollar amounts in millions
Note 13. Operations by Business Segments

Financial information for each of the Company’s six segments is set forth below:

Risk-Management!  Directory  Marketing?

Financial

Information Information Information Information

Software Business

Year Ended December 31, 1990 Services Services Services Services  Services  Services Total
Operating Revenue .. ............... $ 955.7 $449.9  $1,937.5 $344.7  $538.7 $591.2 $4,817.7
Restructuring (Expense)

Income—Net3 ................... $ (38.0) $ 55 $ (15.2) $ 8 $(247) $85.1 § 254
Segment Operating Income .......... $ 1127 $178.0 § 316.4 $106.1 $ 166 $1454 § 875.2
General Corporate Expenses ......... (104.3y
Non-Operating Expense—Net. ... ..... (19.1)
Income Before Provision for

Income Taxes ................... $ 7518
Segment Depreciation and

Amortization .................... $ 60.2 $124 § 1197 $2568 $716 $502 $ 3399
Segment Capital Expenditures . .. .. ... $ 64.8 $ 80 § 1163 $181 $247 $378 $ 269.7
Identifiable Assets at

December 31,1990 .............. $ 827.2 $429.5  $1,572.8 $385.2  $814.9  $400.1 $4,429.7

Year Ended December 31, 1989
Operating Revenue ................. $ 953.6 $437.1  $1,714.7 $325.0 $232.6 $658.8 $4,321.8
Restructuring (Expense)

Income—Net3................... $ (7.3 $(@238) $ 335 $ (18 $ 2 $(255 $ (4.7p
Segment Operating Income .......... $ 261.6 $1378 § 3453 $1051 $ 355 $551 § 9404
General Corporate Expenses ......... (74.7¢
Non-Operating Income—Net ......... 49.0
Income Before Provision for

Income Taxes ................... $ 9147
Segment Depreciation and

Amortization .................... $ 564 $153 $ 1022 $200 $23.7 §$556 $§ 273.2
Segment Capital Expenditures ... ... ... $ 86.0 $ 65 § 1376 $124 $110 $557 $ 309.2
Indentifiable Assets at

December 31,1989 .............. $ 7115 $413.3  $1,332.9 $360.2  $778.55 $685.8 $4,282.2

Year Ended December 31, 1988
Operating Revenue ................. $ 891.8 $442.1 $1,611.0 $292.7 $201.4 $828.4 $4,267.4
Restructuring (Expense)

Income—Net.................... $(161.4) $(39.4) $ (344.3) $(11.4) $(25.6) $591.9 § 9.8¢
Segment Operating Income

(LOSS) ..o $ 894 $1226 $ (73.3) $89.8 $(12.8) $721.5 $ 937.2
General Corporate Expenses ......... (167.5p
Non-Operating Income—Net ......... 21.0
Income Before Provision for

Income Taxes ................... $ 790.7
Segment Depreciation and

Amortization .................... $ 424 $138 $ 86.7 $202 $250 $563 $ 2444
Segment Capital Expenditures . ... ... . $ 571 $ 92 § 1378 $254 $127 $746 $ 316.8
Identifiable Assets at

December 31, 1988 $ 675.7 $395.6 $1,224.9 $399.2 $213.3 $735.1 $3,643.8
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10perating revenue from worldwide credit services was $766.7 in 1990, $802.9 in 1989 and $797.1 in 1988.
2Njelsen Marketing Research’s operating revenue was $940.2 in 1990, $794.2 in 1989 and $735.0 in 1988.

3See Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

sGeneral Corporate Expenses include $(2.5), $24.7 and $(41.9) of restructuring income (expense) in 1990, 1989 and 1988, respectively.

SIncludes assets of MSA, acquired in December 1989.

Amortization of goodwill and certain other intangible
assets previously classified as a non-operating expense,
has now been classified as an operating expense and
totaled in 1990, 1989 and 1988, respectively: $7.3, $4.3 and
$3.1 for Risk-Management Information Services; $2.4,
$2.3 and $2.6 for Directory Information Services; $9.5, $9.0
and $7.8 for Marketing Information Services; $5.5, $4.3
and $5.2 for Financial Information Services; $20.5, $2.4
and $5.3 for Software Services; $6.1, $8.4 and $8.3 for
Business Services; and $.9, $1.4 and $1.5 for Corporate.

THE WALT DISNEY COMPANY (SEP)

Consolidated Statement of Income

(In millions, except per share data)
1990 1989 1988

Revenues

Theme parks and resorts $3,019.6 $2,595.4 $2,042.0

Filmed entertainment 2,250.3 1,587.6 1,149.2

Consumer products 573.8 4113 247.0
5,843.7 45943 3,483.2

Costs and Expenses

Theme parks and resorts 2,130.3 1,810.0 1,477.2

Filmed entertainment 1,937.3  1,331.1 962.9

Consumer products 350.6 224.2 113.3
4,418.2 3,365.3 2,553.4

Operating Income

Theme parks and resorts 889.3 785.4 564.8

Filmed entertainment 313.0 256.5 186.3

Consumer products 223.2 187.1 133.7
1,425.5 1,229.0 884.8

Non-operating assets of $324.7 million, $1,033.7 million
and $1,379.9 million at December 31, 1990, 1989 and 1988,
respectively, included primarily cash and cash equiva-
lents and marketable securities. These assets are not
identified with business segments and represent the
reconciling item between the identifiable assets shown
and the Company’s total assets.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11. Business Segments

(In millions) 1990 1989 1988
Capital Expenditures
Theme parks and resorts $ 5198 §$ 6654 § 559.0
Filmed entertainment 39.5 27.2 16.9
Consumer products 34.3 21.6 6.6
Corporate 122.7 35.4 13.2
$ 716.3 § 7496 $ 595.7
Depreciation Expense
Theme parks and resorts $ 1774 $ 1724 § 137.2
Filmed entertainment 12.9 12.2 6.8
Consumer products 5.8 3.1 .6
Corporate 7.0 38 4.0
$ 2031 $ 1915 § 148.6
Identifiable Assets
Theme parks and resorts $4,420.3 $4,066.9 $3,195.6
Filmed entertainment 1,672.8  1,262.1 631.2
Consumer products 236.4 193.1 148.8
Corporate 1,692.8 1,145.1 1,133.3
$80223 $6657.2  $51089
Supplemental Revenue Data
Theme Parks and Resorts
Admissions $1,179.9 §$1,021.7 §$ 816.3
Merchandise, food and
beverage 1,113.5 1,019.5 829.1
Filmed Entertainment
Theatrical product 1,545.7  1,090.1 824.9

Export revenues by domestic operations for the three years ended
September 30, 1990, 1989 and 1988, were $938.8 million, $653.3
million and $400.1 million, respectively.



28 Section 1: General

Foreign Operations

COMPAQ COMPUTER CORPORATION (DEC)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note 12—Certain Market and Geographic Data:

Compag Computer Corporation designs, develops, manufactures and markets personal computers for business and
professional users. The Company has subsidiaries in various foreign countries which manufacture and sell the Company’s
products in their respective geographic areas. Summary information respecting the Company's geographic operations in

1990, 1989 and 1988 follows:

United States Other

and Canada Europe countries  Eliminations  Consolidated
19% (in thousands)
Salestodealers ..., $1,657,640 $1,807,499 $133,629 $3,598,768
Intercompany transfers ............. .. ... ... .... 1,018,891 26,540 329,653 ($1,375,174)

$2,676,621  $1,834,039 $463,282 ($1,375,174) $3,598,768
Income from operations .............. ... ... ... ...... $ 414,297 § 169,280 $121,713 (§ 29,327) $ 675,963
Corporate expenses, Net ...................ccouvunn... 34,530
Pretaxincome ........... ... ... .. .. .. $ 641,433
Identifiable assets ............. ... ... ... ... . ... $1,565,876 $§ 662,942 $129,403 ($ 75,392) $2,282,829
General corporate assetS . .. .........oenenie s, 434,700
Total @SSetS ...t $2,717,529
1989
Salestodealers ...............o i $1,569,611  $1,201,638 $104,813 $2,876,062
Intercompany transfers ................. .ot 796,944 31,220 250,354 ($1,078,518)

$2,366,556 $1,232,858 §$355,167 ($1,078,518) $2,876,062
Income from operations ............................. $ 402316 §$ 85476 §$ 71,521 ($ 32,123) § 527,190
Corporate expenses, net ..................c.coovuennn. 42,651
Pretaxincome ........ ... i $ 484,539
Identifiable assets ................ ..o, $1,352,086 $ 510,214 § 90,472 ($ 23,696) $1,929,076
General corporate assets . ... ..............ouueiin... 161,313
Total @sSSets. . ..........ii e 2,090,389
1988
Salestodealers ...............coiiiiiiii $1,269,036 $ 734,502 § 62,024 $2,065,562
Intercompany transfers . ............................. 540,880 13,108 156,560 ($ 710,548)

$1,809.916 § 747,610 $218584 (5 710,548) $2,065,562
Income from operations ................... ...l $ 291497 § 81,009 §$ 42820 _( 19,790) $ 395,536
Corporate eXpenses, Nt ... ...........ooveeuunennnnn. _ 28,689
Pretaxincome ............. ..o $ 366,847
Identifiable assets ............ ... .. ... . L. $ 936,804 $ 348,366 $ 62,244 ($ 38,686) $1,308,818
General corporate assets . ..............oeirninan.n. 281,179
Total @Ssets ..........c.oviiirinii i $1,589,997

In each year, the Company’s hedging activities offset much of the effects of changes in the value of the United States dollar
relative to the currencies of those countries where the Company's foreign subsidiaries operate.

Products are transferred between countries at prices which are intended to approximate those that would be charged
to unaffiliated customers in the respective countries. Transactions with one of the Company’s Authorized Dealers

accounted for 10%, 11% and 13% of consolidated sales in 1990, 1989 and 1988, respectively.
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DATA GENERAL CORPORATION (SEP)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note 14. Geographic Segment Data in thousands

The company’s operations involve a single industry segment—the desigp, n)anutacture, and sale of general purpose
computer systems, including peripheral equipment, software, communications systems, and related products and

services.
Financial information, summarized by geographic area, is as follows:
Other
United Far Inter- Elimina- Consoli-
States Europe East national tions dated
Year ended September 29, 1990:
Total revenues:
Unaffiliated customers . ........................ $ 622,593 $398,773 § 80,470 $114,565 $1,216,401
Interareatransfers ...................cooiil.. 214,423 — 62,174 3,872 $(280,469) —
Total. . ... $ 837,016 $398,773 $142,644 $118,437 $(280,469) $1,216,401
Loss fromoperations.............. ... i $ (64,561) $(36,567) $ (9,140) $(20,855) $ (1,517) $ (132,640)
Identifiable assets ............... ... ... it $ 583,388 $277,194 $126,115 § 71,743 §(177,168) $ 881,272
Corporate @ssets .............vvrveinennnnenn.. 28,165
Total @SSetS . .. ..ot $ 909,437
Year ended September 30, 1989:
Total revenues:
Unaffiliated customers ......................... $ 675,979 $394,498 $111,259 $132,659 $1,314,395
interarea CUSIOMErS .. ..........ooovvuieennnnn. 290,803 — 90,658 4,393 $(385,854) —
Total. ... $ 966,782 $394,498 $201,917 $137,052 $(385,854) $1,314,395
Income (loss) from operations .................... $ (109,183) $(24,569) $ 6,119 $ 2,858 § (2,590) $ (127,365)
Identifiable assets ............. ... ... . ... $ 664,389 $292035 $159,177 § 86698 $(239904) $ 962,395
Corporate assets ........... e 77,770
Totalassets ... $1,040,165
Year ended September 24, 1988:
Total revenues:
Unaffiliated customers ......................... $ 736,739 $391,526 $109,965 $126,504 $1,364,734
Interareatransfers ............................ 275,018 — 117,994 8,851 $(401,863) —
Total. ... $1,011,757 $391,526 $227,959 $135,355 $(401,863) $1,364,734
Income (loss) from operations .................... $ (9.286) $ (3,818) § (3,361) § 8631 $ 1962 $ (5872
Identifiable assets ................ ... ... . ....... $ 700,740 $236,227 $176,693 §$ 78,471 §$(181,468) $1,010,663
Corporate assets ..............c.voeeeneunnnn.. 67,050
Totalassets ..., $1,077,713

United States interarea transfers primarily represent
shipments of equipment and parts to international subsidi-
aries. Far East and Other International interarea transfers
primarily represent shipments of work in process and
finished goods inventory from manufacturing facilities to
domestic operations. These interarea shipments are
made at transfer prices which approximate prices
charged to unaffiliated customers and have been elimi-
nated from consolidated net revenues. United States

revenues from unaffiliated customers include direct
export sales. Corporate assets consist primarily of tem-
porary cash investments.

Total liabilities of international subsidiaries, before inter-
company eliminations, were $384,768 at September 29,
1990 and $286,269 at September 30, 1989. Cumulative
retained earnings (deficits) of international subsidiaries
were $(4,956) at September 29, 1990 and $63,733 at Sep-
tember 30, 1989.
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CPC INTERNATIONAL INC. (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Operations by business segment and geographic area

Information concerning operations by business segment
and geographic area appears on pages 40 and 41.

Geographic Financial Information

$ Millions 1990 1989 1988
Sales to unaffiliated
customers
United States $2,322.2 $2,259.6 $2,043.5
Canada 247.6 222.5 191.8
North America 2,569.8 2,482.1 2,235.3
Europe 2,115.9 1,690.9 1,641,6
Latin America 904.6 760.2 677.8
Asia 190.8 169.9 145.3
5,781.1 5,103.1 4,700.0
Sales interarea
United States 12.1 7.5 45
Canada 67.3 63.3 48.0
North America 79.4 70.8 52.5
Europe 15.7 25.4 28.9
Latin America 3 3 1.5
Asia .1 q 5
95.5 96.6 83.4
Operating income
United States 335.5 294.3 244.3
Canada 36.3 24.5 18.9
North America 371.8 318.8 263.2
Europe 232.2 185.6 165.9
Latin America 122.8 119.9 120.4
Asia 36.6 32.6 24.5
Corporate expenses (17.1) (14.2) (12.8)
746.3 642.7 561.2
Assets at December 31
United States 1,430.3 1,410.0 1,420.6
Canada 277.2 249.8 225.0
North America 1,707.5 1,659.8 1,645.6
Europe 1,974.0 1,278.0 1,020.4
Latin America 583.7 502.8 465.9
Asia 112.5 98.7 83.1
Corporate 112.6 165.4 127.0
4,490.3 3,704.7 3,342.0

Interarea sales generally are priced with reference to prevailing
market prices.

MCDONALD’S CORPORATION (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Segment and geographic information

The Company operates exclusively in the foodservice
industry. Substantialy all revenues result from the sale of
menu products at restaurants operated by the Company,
its franchisees or affiliates.

(In millions of

dollars) 1990 1989 1988
u.s. $ 3,871.0 $3,887.3 $3,700.6
Europe 1,635.8 1,164.1 1,018.9
Canada 650.7 618.4 535.3
Pacific 339.9 289.9 200.1
Latin America 142.2 105.9 65.9
Total revenues $ 6,639.6 $6,065.6 $5,520.8
us. $ 986.2 $ 989.0 $ 916.9
Europe 325.3 192.0 162.5
Canada 129.5 116.9 108.0
Pacific 120.8 111.0 93.9
Latin America 34.1 28.8 6.3
Operating income 1,595.9 1,437.7 1,287.6
Interest expense 381.2 301.9 237.3

Other nonoperating

income (expense)—

net 31.6 21.4 (3.8)
Income before

provision for

income taxes $ 1,246.3 $1,157.2 $1,046.5
us. $ 6,059.8 $5,645.9 $5,147.7
Europe 2,925.8 2,062.9 1,702.6
Canada 600.9 561.7 510.6
Pacific 837.1 732.7 677.6
Latin America 243.9 171.8 120.2
Total assets $10,667.5 $9,175.0 $8,158.7

Operating income includes the Company’s share of oper-
ating results of affiliates. All intercompany revenues and
expenses are eliminated in computing revenues and
operating income. Fees received in the U.S. from subsidi-
aries outside of the U.S. were: 1990—$134.1 million;
1989—$98.3 million; 1988—3$79.7 million.

UNISYS CORPORATION (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16. Business segment information
The Company operates primarily in one business segment
—information systems and related services and supplies.
This segment represents more than 90% of consolidated
revenue, operating profit and identifiable assets. The Com-
pany’s operations are structured to achieve consolidated
objectives. As a result, significant interdependencies and
overlaps exist among the Company’s operating units.
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Accordingly, the revenue, operating profit and identifiable
assets shown for each geographic area may not be indica-
tive of the amounts which would have been reported if the
operating units were independent of one another.

Sales and transfers between geographic areas are gener-
ally priced to recover cost plus an appropriate mark-up for
profit. Operating profit is revenue less related costs and
direct and allocated operating expenses, excluding interest
and the unallocated portion of corporate expenses. Cor-
porate assets are those assets maintained for general pur-
poses, principally short-term investments, costs in excess
of net assets acquired and corporate facilities.

No single customer accounts for more than 10% of reve-
nue except that revenue from various agencies of the U.S.
Government approximated $2,472, $2,344 and $2,518 mil-
lion in 1990, 1989 and 1988, respectively.

A summary of the Company’s operations by geographic
area is presented below:

(Millions) 1990 1989 1988
United States
Customer revenue $ 48709 $51363 §$ 5,367.8
Affiliate revenue 1,706.6 1,906.5 2,012.9
Total $65775 $70428 $ 7,380.7
Operating profit
(loss) $ (60.9) $ (267.4) $ 1,044.5
Identifiable assets 3,696.7 4,677.0 5,377.6
Europe
Customer revenue $ 3,088.1 $2933 $28879
Affiliate revenue 164.1 155.9 136.1
Total $ 32522 $3,091.2 § 3,024.0
Operating profit
(loss) $ (196.00 $ (31.7) $ 240.0
Identifiable assets 2,194.8 2,124.3 2,281.0
Americas/Pacific
Customer revenue $21523 $202.3 $ 16795
Affiliate revenue 271.0 273.9 234.0
Total $2423.3 $2299.2 $ 1,913.5
Operating profit $ 5564 $ 3203 $ 2956
Identifiable assets 1,305.6 1,229.0 1,127.4
Adjustments and
eliminations
Affiliate revenue $(2,141.7) $(2,336.3) $(2,383.0)
Operating profit 66.3 51.8 (159.6)
Identifiable assets (173.4) (240.3) (322.4)
Consolidated ,
Revenue $10,111.3  $10,096.9 § 9,935.2
Operating profit $ 3658 $ 730 $14214
General corporate
expenses (256.4) (201.6) (158.3)
Interest expense (446.7) (425.7) (304.5)
Income (loss)
before income
taxes $ (337.3) $ (554.3) $ 958.6
Identifiable assets $702.7 $779.0 $8463.6
Corporate assets 3,264.9 2,961.0 3,071.0
Total assets $10,288.6  $10,751.0  $11,534.6

Major Customers

HASBRO, INC. (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Thousands of Dollars Except Share Data)

14. Segment Reporting
Industry and Geographic Information
The Company operates primarily in one industry segment
which includes the development, manufacture and mar-
keting of toys and related items and the licensing of
certain toy related properties.

Information about the Company’s operations in differ-
ent geographic locations for the three fiscal years ended
in December 1990 is shown below. The Company’s areas
of operation outside of the United States include Canada,
Western Europe, Australia and New Zealand and Hong
Kong. As the foreign areas have similar business environ-
ments and the Company'’s operations in those areas are
similar, they are presented as one category. Revenues
from unaffiliated customers represent total net revenues
from the respective geographic areas after elimination of
intercompany transactions which are not material. Oper-
ating profit is net revenues less operating costs and
expenses pertaining to specific geographic areas. Iden-
tifiable assets are those assets used in the geographic
areas and are reflected after elimination of intercompany
balances.

1990 1989 1988
Revenues from
unaffiliated
customers:
United States $ 938,771 954,306 925,125
Foreign 581,261 455,372 432,770
$1,520,032 1,409,678 1,357,895
Operating profit:
United States $ 63,600 100,263 82,846
Foreign 96,692 69,816 71,213
$ 160,292 170,079 154,059
Identifiable assets:
United States $ 911,977 944,243 790,653
Foreign 372,788 302,242 321,255
$1,284,765 1,246,485 1,111,908
Capital expenditures:
United States $ 23,453 29,949 34,679
Foreign 12,715 12,319 19,755
$ 36,168 42,268 54,434
Depreciation and
amortization:
United States $ 47,918 47,442 52,005
Foreign 12,339 12,477 10,969
$ 60,257 59919 62,974
Other Information

The Conipany markets its products primarily to customers
in the retail sector. Although the Company closely moni-
tors the creditworthiness of its customers, adjusting credit
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policies and limits as needed, a substantial portion of its
debtors’ ability to discharge amounts owed is dependent
upon the retail economic environment.

The Company does not believe that it is dependent
upon any single customer. Sales to the Company’s largest
customer, Toys R Us, Inc., amounted to 14% of consoli-
dated net revenues during 1990 and 1989 and 13% in
1988.

LORAL CORPORATION (MAR)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11. Sales to Principal Customers and Export Sales:
The Company operates primarily in one industry segment,
defense electronics. Sales to principal customers for the
years ended March 31, 1990, 1989 and 1988 are as follows:

(In thousands) 1990 1989 1988

U.S. Government
Agencies

Foreign (principally
foreign
governments)

Other (principally
U.S. Government
end use)

$ 708,474 § 803,077 § 651,088

188,372 137,864 111,717

377,460 246,101 372,887
$1,274,306  $1,187,042  $1,135,692

Export sales by geographic area for the years ended
March 31, 1990, 1989 and 1988 are as follows:

(In thousands) 1990 1989 1988
Asia $ 96,150 $ 93,618 $ 68,475
Europe 58,758 35,944 36,734
Other 26,521 8,302 6,508

$181,429 $137,864 $111,717

Export Sales

BRIGGS & STRATTON CORPORATION (JUN)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. Industry Segments:

Certain information concerning the Company’s industry
segments is presented below (in thousands of dollars):

Year Ended June 30
1990 1989 1988
SALES—
Engines & parts $ 931,638 $802,872 $854,825

Locks 71,219 73,507 59,232
$1,002,857 $876,379 $914,057

INCOME {(LOSS) FROM
OPERATIONS—
Engines & parts $ 61,246 $(13,638) $ 44,756
Locks 5,035 (2,475) (1,439)

$ 66,281 $(16,113) § 43,317
ASSETS—
Engines & parts $456,927 $479,132 $448,026
Locks 39,698 36,387 32,471
Unallocated 38,415 45,297 30,103
$ 535,040 $560,816 $510,600
DEPRECIATION
EXPENSE—
Engines & parts $ 38,080 ¢$ 36,825 $ 27,595
Locks 1,809 2,170 2,360
$ 39889 $ 38,995 § 29,955
EXPENDITURES FOR PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT—
Engines & parts $ 35010 $ 76284 $ 55,230
Locks 2,787 3,309 1,771

$ 37,797 §$ 79,513 § 57,001

Unallocated assets include cash, prepaid employee
health care, income taxes receivable, future tax benefits
and other assets.

Export sales for fiscal 1990 were $214,431,000 (21% of
total sales), for fiscal 1989 were $232,580,000 (27%) and
for fiscal 1988 were $180,864,000 (20%). These sales
were principally to customers in European countries and
Canada.

In the fiscal years 1990, 1989, and 1988 there were sales
to three major engine customers that exceeded 10% of
total net sales. Sales to these customers were:
1990—customer A $168,421,000 (17%) and customer B
$109,087,000 (11%);
1989—customer A $117,443,000 (13%);
1988—customer A $117,161,000 (13%) and customer C
$103,629,000 (11%0).
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JOSLYN CORPORATION (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11. Segment of Business Reporting:

The operations of the Corporation are divided into the follow-
ing business segments for financial reporting purposes:

Electrical Technologies: Electronic protection equipment,
connector accessories and switchgear are designed and
produced for use by the telecommunications, industrial,
aerospace, defense, electric utility and petrochemical
industries. These products include communication elec-
tronic transient suppression devices, electric switching
and interrupting systems, starters, contactors, fire pump
controllers, sulfur hexafluoride switches and air pressuriza-
tion and dehydration products for insulated cables,
antenna lines and waveguides and similar systems. The
Corporation's defense products include electromagnetic
pulse protection applications, electrical connector accesso-
ries and air and gas dehydration and purification systems
for the military.

Financial information by business segments is as follows:

Utility Systems: Construction and maintenance
materials and electric power protection equipment are
designed and produced principally for electric power dis-
tribution and for overhead telephone communication
lines. These products are manufactured and assembled
from metal, rubber and porcelain and include hardware,
earth anchors, power surge arresters, fused cutouts,
cable accessories, electrical terminating devices and
other products. In addition, the Corporation sells com-
plementary goods produced by other manufacturers.

Inter-segment sales are not material. Foreign operations
of the Corporation, which are not material, are located in
Canada and primarily serve markets in that country. No
single customer accounts for 10% or more of the Corpora-
tion's sales. General Corporate assets are principally
cash, cash equivalents, prepaid expenses and land.

(in thousands)

Net Income from
Customer Business Identifiable Capital
Sales Segments Assets Depreciation  Expenditures
1990
Electrical Technologies . ..., $109,606 $13,044 $ 62,300 $2,738 $2,136
Utility Systems .. ... 87,400 8,510 42,049 2,031 2,158
GeneralCorporate. . ....... ....cviiiriiiiiiiien, - - 34,870 147 37
Consolidated . .............coi i, $197,006 $21,554 $139,219 $4,916 $4,331
1989
Electrical Technologies .................coiiianinn.. $114,692 $ 6,515 $ 87,334 $2,993 $3,980
Utility Systems . ............o i 97,382 10,329 43,978 1,804 2,238
General Corporate. . ........coovvvrt i _ - - 33,106 134 168
Consolidated . .......... ...ttt $211,974 $16,844 $164,418 $4,931 $6,386
1988
Electrical Technologies ............. e $116,594 $15,939 $ 97,350 $2,716 $3,468
Utility Systems . ... 89,435 9,445 47,905 1,703 1,836
General Corporate. ...t - - 18,331 93 98
Consofidated . ..........cooiniiinii i $206,029 $25,384 $163,586 $4,512 $5,402
Export sales from the Corporation’s United States operations to unaffiliated customers were as follows:
(in thousands)
1990 1989 1988
ASIa . o e e e $ 8,916 $ 7,362 $ 6,683
BUTOPE. . oottt i e e e e 6,624 5,704 4,769
Western Hemisphere ... .. ..ot i e e e 4,686 5,807 5,445
017 O 1,076 1,402 1,087
L L $21,302 $20,275 $17,984
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NATURAL BUSINESS YEAR

For years, the accounting and legal professions,
printers, the Securities and Exchange Commission, and
others interested in various aspects of the year-end bottle-
neck have advocated that companies adopt a natural
business year. A natural business year is the period of 12
consecutive months which ends when the business activi-
ties of an entity have reached the lowest point in their
annual cycle. In many instances, the natural business
year of a company ends December 31.

Table 1-4 summarizes, by the month in which a fiscal
year ends, the fiscal year endings of the survey compa-
nies. For tabulation purposes, if a fiscal year ended in the
first week of a month, the fiscal year was considered to
have ended in the preceding month.

One hundred twenty survey companies use a 52-53
week fiscal year.

During 1990, ten companies changed the date of their
fiscal year end. Examples of such changes and examples
of fiscal year definitions follow.

Change in Date of Fiscal Year Ending

THE BLACK & DECKER CORPORATION

Consolidated Balance Sheet

Dec. 31, 1990  Sept. 24, 1989

Consolidated Statement of Earnings

Year Ended  Transition Year Ended
Dec. 31, 1990 Period  Sept. 24, 1989  Sept. 25, 1988

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

_Year Ended  Transition Year Ended
Dec. 31, 1990 Period  Sept. 24, 1989  Sept. 25, 1988

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Thousands of Dollars Except Per Share Data)

Note 2: Change in Fiscal Year

The Corporation changed its fiscal year from a fiscal year
ended on the last Sunday in September to a fiscal year
ended on December 31, effective for the 1990 fiscal year
ended December 31, 1990. The Consolidated Statement
of Earnings and the Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flows for the period from September 25, 1989 to Decem-
ber 31, 1989 (Transition Period) are presented in the finan-
cial statements. The Consolidated Statement of Earnings
and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the
three months ended December 25, 1988 are as follows:

TABLE 1-4: MONTH OF FISCAL YEAR END
1990 1989 1988 1987

January ...l 22 22 20 23
February ...l 15 15 13 13
March . ............o il 14 16 15 14
April ..o 7 8 7 8
May.......ooviee 16 15 16 14
dune ..., 62 57 54 42
July. o 16 16 14 14
August ...................... 17 16 15 15
September ................... 33 37 38 37
October...................... 21 20 22 23
November.................... 17 17 15 16
Subtotal ................... 240 239 229 219
December.................... 360 361 3N 381
Total Companies............. 600 600 600 600
{Unaudited)
Consolidated Statement Three Months Ended
of Earnings Dec. 25, 1988
Revenues
Product sales $705,519
Information systems and services —
Total Revenues 705,519
Cost of revenues
Products 448,089
Information systems and services —
Marketing and administrative expenses 193,308
Total operating costs and expenses 641,397
Operating Income 64,122
Interest expense (net of interest
income of $9,178) 12,053
Other expense 2,609
Earnings Before Income Taxes 49,460
Income taxes 11,100
Net Earnings $ 38,360
Net Earnings Per Share $§ .65

Net earnings and allocated after-tax interest expense of

$36,232 and $30,580 for businesses held for sale, as more

fully explained in Note 3, ‘‘Acquisition of Emhart,” were

'e)xc!uged from the results of operations for the Transition
eriod.

The pro forma results for the Transition Period and three
months ended December 25, 1988, respectively, are: Total
Revenues of $1,337,400 and $1,314,700; Net Earnings of
$6,000 and $25,000; and Earnings Per Share of $.10 and
$.42. The above unaudited pro forma results are prepared
on a basis consistent with the pro forma disclosures in
Note 3, “Acquisition of Emhart.”

For the Transition Period, the Corporation has domestic
taxable losses due primarily to acquisition-related interest
expense on which tax benefits were recorded. These
benefits were more than offset, however, by tax expense
recorded on foreign earnings. For the three-month period
ended December 25, 1988 tax benefits of approximately
$6,300 or $.11 per share were recorded as a result of utiliz-
ing net operating loss carryforwards.
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(Unaudited) aries as of December 31, 1990 and September 24, 1989

Consolidated Statement Three Months Ended and the related Consolidated Statements of Earnings and
of Cash Flows Dec. 25, 1988 Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 1990, Sep-
Cash Flow From Operating Activities $ 60,132 tember 24, 1989 and September 25, 1988 and for the

Investing Activities
Businesses held for sale -
Proceeds from disposal of assets 873

Capital expenditures (20,683)
Cash inflow from investing and hedging

activities 26,159
Cash outflow from investing and

hedging activities (26,614)

Cash Flow From Investing Activities (20,265)

Cash Flow Before Investing Activities 39,867
Financing Activities
Net decrease in short-term borrowings (9,671)
Proceeds from long-term debt

(including revolving credit facility) 68,790
Payments on long-term debt

(including revolving credit facility) (73,300)
Issuance of common stock 2,609
Cash dividends (5,868)

Cash Flow From Financing Activities (17,440)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash 12,976
Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 35,403
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning

of period 74,356
Cash and Cash Equivalents

at End of Period $109,759

Cash flow from operating activities is summarized as
follows:

three-month period ended December 31, 1989. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Corpora-
tion’'s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free
of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and dis-
closures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the consoli-
dated financial position of The Black & Decker Corpora-
tion and Subsidiaries at December 31, 1990 and
September 24, 1989, and the consolidated results of their
operations and their cash flows for the years ended
December 31, 1990, September 24, 1989 and September
25, 1988, and for the three-month period ended December
31, 1989, in conformity with generally accepted account-
ing principles.

JAMES RIVER CORPORATION OF VIRGINIA

Consolidated Balance Sheets

(Unaudited)
Three Months Ended December 30,  April 29,
Dec. 25, 1988 1990 1990
Operating Activities
Net earnings $38,360
Adiusltqn}fntsfto recongcile net earnings to Consolidated Statements of Income
cash flow from operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 23,562 3%‘%2‘;"5 5%%%%"5 sel’ir\{z%?iks S%nwdzzks
Changes in selected working captal December 30,  April 29 April30,  April 24,
Inventories (2,257) 1990 1990 1989 1988
Trade receivables (34,688)
Trade payables 2,962 .
IOther assets and liabilities 35,191 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
nvesting and financing activities
included in net eamings (2,998) 35;5[\3’1%%“5 5%%%%“3 ‘ 5%:{‘(’1%%"3 525251‘;%“8
Cash Flow From Operating Activities $60,132 December 30, April 29, April 30, April 24,
Income tax and interest payments for the three-month 1990 1990 1989 1988

period ended December 25, 1988 were $4,569 and
$20,075, respectively.

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors of
The Black & Decker Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Balance
Sheets of The Black & Decker Corporation and Subsidi-

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 (in Part): Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies

Fiscal Year

During 1990, the Company changed its fiscal year from
one ending on the last Sunday in April to one ending on
the last Sunday in December. Accordingly, the Com-
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pany’s transition period which ended on December 30,
1990, includes the 35 weeks from April 30 to December
30, 1990 (‘“Transition 1990’"). The Company’s full fiscal
years include either 52 or 53 weeks. Fiscal 1990 and 1988
each include 52 weeks while 1989 includes 53 weeks.
Certain foreign subsidiaries and affiliates have been
included on the basis of earlier closing dates.

Note 2. Change in Fiscal Year

During 1990, the Company changed its fiscal year from
one ending on the last Sunday in April to one ending on
the last Sunday in December. Accordingly, results of oper-
ations for the transition period which ended December 30,
1990, cover a 35-week period. The following are selected
financial data for Transition 1990 and for the comparable
34-week period of the prior year:

December 30, December 24,
(in thousands, except per 1990 1989
share amounts) (35 weeks) (34 weeks)
(Unaudited)
Net sales $3,391,481 $3,890,960
Cost of goods sold 2,564,024 3,012,243
Selling and administrative
expenses 499,922 544,312
Restructuring charge 199,976
Income from operations 127,559 334,405
Interest expense 104,207 118,515
Other income, net 28,135 32,946
Income before income taxes 51,487 248,836
Income tax expense 41,809 95,792
Net income $ 9,678 $ 153,044
Preferred dividend
requirements 16,578 13,580
Net income (loss) applicable
to common shares $ (6,900 $ 139,464

Fully diluted income (loss) per
common share and
common share equivalent $(.08) $1.70

Weighted-average number of
common shares and
common share equivalents 81,783 81,816

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
James River Corporation of Virginia:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated bal-
ance sheets of James River Corporation of Virginia and
Subsidiaries as of December 30, 1990, and April 29, 1990,
and the related consolidated statements of income, cash
flows, and changes in capital accounts for the transition
period (35 weeks) ended December 30, 1990, and each of
the three fiscal years in the period ended April 29, 1990.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the
management of James River Corporation of Virginia. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examin-

ing, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the consoli-
dated financial position of James River Corporation of
Virginia and Subsidiaries as of December 30, 1990, and
April 29, 1990, and the consolidated results of their opera-
tions and their cash flows for the transition period (35
weeks) ended December 30, 1990, and each of the three
fiscal years in the period ended April 29, 1990, in confor-
mity with generally accepted accounting principles.

CULBRO CORPORATION

Consolidated Balance Sheet
Dec. 1, 1990 Dec. 30, 1989

Consolidated Statement of Operations

1990
48 weeks 1989 1988

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

1990
48 weeks 1989 1988

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Fiscal Year

In 1990, the Corporation changed its fiscal year end to the
Saturday nearest November 30, from the Saturday nearest
December 31. Fiscal 1990 ended December 1, 1990 and
included 48 weeks. The 1989 and 1988 fiscal years ended
on December 30, 1989 and December 31, 1988, respec-
tively, and each year included 52 weeks.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(dollars in thousands except per share data)
Note 1—Change in Fiscal Year
The change in the Corporation’s fiscal year end resulted
in a 48 week period in 1990. Unaudited pro forma con-
densed consolidated results of operations for the com-
parable 1989 and 1988 periods are as follows:



Fiscal Year

48 weeks
1990 1989 1988

Net sales and other

revenue $908,395 $859,156 $852,183
Gross profit 116,130 116,173 110,471
Income taxes 2,073 818 685

Income from continuing
operations

Income per share from
continuing operations $ 072 § 040 $ 0.24

$ 3109 § 1,739 § 1,027

The unaudited pro forma results have been prepared for compara-

tive purposes only and may not necessarily reflect the results of

2geratl?(gs had the 1989 and 1988 fiscal periods actually included
weeks.

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

To the Shareholders and Directors of Culbro Corporation

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance
sheet and the related consolidated statements of opera-
tions, of cash flows and of shareholders’ equity present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Culbro Corporation and its subsidiaries at December 1,
1990 and December 30, 1989 and the results of their oper-
ations and their cash flows for the 48 weeks ended
December 1, 1990 and for each of the two fiscal years in
the period ended December 30, 1989, in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles. These finan-
cial statements are the responsibility of the management
of Culbro Corporation; our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards
which require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, and evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that
our audits provide a reasonable basis for the opinion
expressed above.

KNIGHT-RIDDER, INC.

Consolidated Balance Sheet

Dec. 30 Dec. 31 Dec. 31
1990 1989 1988

Consolidated Statement of Income

Year Ended

Dec. 30 Dec. 31 Dec. 31
1990 1989 1988

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended

Dec. 30 Dec. 31 Dec. 31
1990 1989 1988

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note A (in Part): Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies
Beginning in 1990, the company changed its reporting
period from a calendar year to a fiscal year ending the last
Sunday in the calendar year. Results for 1990 are for the
52 weeks ended Dec. 30, 1990. The new fiscal period has
been adopted prospectively. Beginning in 1991, each
quarter will be 13 weeks in length.

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC
ACCOUNTANTS

Shareholders

Knight-Ridder, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance
sheet of Knight-Ridder, Inc., and subsidiaries as of Dec.
30, 1990 and Dec. 31, 1989 and 1988, and the related con-
solidated statements of income, cash flows and share-
holders’ equity for the years then ended. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the company’s
management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion
on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examin-
ing, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the consoli-
dated financial position of Knight-Ridder, Inc., and sub-
sidiaries at Dec. 30, 1990 and Dec. 31, 1989 and 1988, and
the consolidated results of their operations and their cash
flows for the years then ended in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles.
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Definition of Fiscal Year

BROWN GROUP, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 (In Part): Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies
Accounting Period
The corporation’s fiscal year is the 52 or 53 week period
ending the Saturday nearest to January 31. Fiscal years
1990, 1989 and 1988 ended on February 2, 1991, February
3, 1990, and January 28, 1989, respectively. Fiscal year
1990 included 52 weeks, 1989 included 53 weeks, and
1988 included 52 weeks.

DUPLEX PRODUCTS INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Summary of Accounting Policies (In Part)

The Company’s fiscal year ends on the last Saturday in
October. The fiscal years ended October 27, 1990,
October 28, 1989, and October 29, 1988, were comprised
of fifty-two weeks.

FLEETWOOD ENTERPRISES, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. (In Part): Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies

h. Accounting period: The Company'’s fiscal year ends on
the last Sunday in April. The year ending dates for the past
three fiscal years were April 29, 1990, April 30, 1989 and
April 24, 1988, respectively. The fiscal year for Fleetwood
Credit Corp., the Company’s wholly owned finance sub-
sidiary, always ends on April 30.

JOHNSON & JOHNSON

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. (In Part): Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies

Annual Closing Date

The Company follows the concept of a fiscal year which
ends on the Sunday nearest to the end of the month of
December. Normally each fiscal year consists of 52
weeks, but every five or six years, as was the case in 1987,
the fiscal year consists of 53 weeks.

J.C. PENNEY COMPANY, INC.

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Definition of fiscal year. The Company’s fiscal year ends
on the last Saturday in January. Fiscal year 1990 ended
January 26, 1991, 1989 ended January 27, 1990, and 1988
ended January 28, 1989. They each comprised 52 weeks.
The accounts of JCPenney Insurance and JCPenney
National Bank are on a calendar year basis.

TEKTRONIX, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Accounting Policies (In Part)
Fiscal Year The Company’s fiscal year is the 52 or 53
weeks ending the last Saturday in May. The 52 week years
are composed of 13 four week accounting periods sepa-
rated into two 12 week quarters ending during August and
November, a 16 week quarter ending during March, and a
12 week quarter ending during May.

COMPARATIVE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Rule 14a-3 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
requires that annual reports to stockholders should
include comparative balance sheets, and statements of
income and of cash flows for each of the 3 most recent
fiscal years. All of the survey companies are registered
with the Securities and Exchange Commission and con-
formed to the aforementioned requirements of Rule 14a-3.

Usually the income statement is the first financial state-
ment presented and is followed by either a balance sheet
(315 companies) or a statement showing changes in
retained earnings (53 companies). 181 companies
presented the balance sheet as the first financial state-
ment followed by an income statement.

Prior to 1986, the financial statements, with rare excep-
tion, were presented on consecutive pages. Beginning in
1986 certain survey companies did not present their finan-
cial statements on consecutive pages but interspersed
the Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations among the financial
statements by having comments discussing the content of
a financial statement follow the presentation of a financial
statement. Such interspersed material was not covered by
an auditor’s report and was not presented in lieu of notes.
In 1990, 25 survey companies did not present their
financial statements on consecutive pages.

ROUNDING OF AMOUNTS

Table 1-5 shows that most of the survey companies state
financial statement amounts in either thousands or mil-
lions of dollars.

TABLE 1-5: ROUNDING OF AMOUNTS
1990 1989 1988 1987

Tonearestdollar .............. 55 56 55 55
To nearest thousand dollars:
Omitting 000................ 360 365 367 368
Presenting 000 .............. 34 39 41 44
To nearest million dollars ........ 151 140 137 133
Total Companies ............ 600 600 600 600
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Securities and Exchange Commission Regulations S-X
and S-K, and SAS No. 32 state the need for adequate dis-
closure in financial statements. Normally the financial
statements alone cannot present all information neces-
sary for adequate disclosure but must make reference to
appended notes which disclose information of the sort
listed below:

Changes in accounting principles.
Any material retroactive adjustments.
Long-term lease agreements.

Assets subject to lien.

Preferred stock data.

Pension and retirement plans.

Restrictions on the availability of retained earnings for
cash dividend purposes.

Contingencies and commitments.
Depreciation and depletion policies.
Stock option or stock purchase plans.
Consolidation policies.

Business combinations.

Computation of earnings per share.
Subsequent events.

Quarterly data.

Segment information.

Table 1-6 summarizes the manner in which financial state-
ments refer to notes. Notes on specific topics are illus-
trated in this publication in the sections dealing with such
topics.

TABLE 1-6: NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1990 1989 1988 1987

General reference only .......... 382 385 367 359
General and direct references. . . .. 210 210 226 233
Direct referenceonly ........... 4 2 3 4
No reference to notes........... 4 3 4 4

Total Companies ............ 600 600 600 600

TABLE 1-7: DISCLOSURE OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Number of Companies
1990 1989 1988 1987
Consolidation policy ............ 579 582 582 579
Depreciation methods .......... 579 580 575 579
Inventory pricing............... 559 555 560 554
PrOPertY ...ooeeeeeeeeeeeenn. 484 472 482 488
Cash equivalents .............. 446 398 351 -
Interperiod tax allocation . ....... 437 455 482 496
Earnings per share calculation.... 435 420 412 407
Amortization of intangibles. . ... .. 376 354 338 334
Translation of foreign currency.... 256 244 233 225
Employee benefits ............. 161 162 190 223
Research and development
(0101 - SN 132 127 125 110
Hedge contracts .. ............. 132 48 NC NIC
Fiscalyears................... 112 99 96 92
Capitalization of interest ......... 73 73 59 59

N/C—Not Compiled.

DISCLOSURE OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

APB Opinion No. 22 requires that the significant account-
ing policies of an entity be presented as an integral part of
the financial statements of the entity. Opinion No. 22 sets
forth guidelines as to the content and format of dis-
closures of accounting policies. )

Table 1-7 shows the nature of information frequently dis-
closed in summaries of accounting policies and the num-
ber of survey companies disclosing such information.
Examples of summaries of accounting policies follow.

AMERICAN GREETINGS CORPORATION (FEB)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Thousands of dollars except per share amounts)

Note A—Accounting Policies

Consolidation:

The consolidated financial statements include the
accounts of the Corporation and its subsidiaries. All sig-
nificant intercompany transactions are eliminated.

Reclassifications:

Certain amounts in the 1989 and 1988 financial state-
ments have been reclassified to conform with the 1990
presentation.

Cash Equivalents:
The Corporation considers all highly liquid instruments
purchased with a maturity of less than three months to be
cash equivalents.

Inventories:

Finished products, work in process and raw material
inventories are carried at cost, principally last-in, first-out
(LIFO), not in excess of market. Display material and fac-
tory supplies are carried at average cost.

Investment in Purchased Tax Benefits:
The cost of purchased tax credits and deductions is
accounted for as an investment. Realized tax benefits are
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applied first to reduce the investment to equal the remain-
ing unamortized interest cost related to the transaction,
and then to the establishment of deferred tax liabilities.
Interest expense is amortized over the life of the
investment.

Investment in Life Insurance:

The Corporation’s investment in corporate owned life
insurance policies is recorded net of policy loans in Other
Assets. The net life insurance expense, including interest
expense, is included in Administrative and General in the
Consolidated Statement of Income. The related interest
expense is $7,334, $2,481 and $1,033 in fiscal 1990, 1989
and 1988, respectively.

Property and Depreciation:

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost. Depreci-
ation and amortization of buildings, equipment and fix-
tures is computed principally by the straight-line method
over the useful lives of the various assets or, in the case of
certain property under capital lease, over the lesser of the
useful life or the lease term.

Income Taxes:

Deferred income taxes are provided for timing differences
between financial and tax accounting, principally for
depreciation, sales returns, and non-deductible reserves.

Income Per Share:

Income per share information is based on the average
number of shares considered outstanding during each
year. For the periods presented, stock options have an
immaterial dilutive effect.

BORDEN, INC. (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands except share and per share data)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Significant accounting policies followed by the Company,
as summarized below, are in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles.

Principles of Consolidation—The consolidated financial
statements include the accounts of Borden, Inc. and its
subsidiaries, after elimination of material intercompany
accounts and transactions. The Company’s proportionate
share of the net earnings of unconsolidated 20% to 50%
owned companies is included in income. The carrying
value of these companies approximates Borden’s interest
in their underlying net assets. Investments of less than
20% ownership are carried at cost.

Cash and Cash Equivalents/Statements of Cash Flows—
The Company considers all highly liquid investments pur-
chased with an original maturity of three months or less to
be cash equivalents. The Company has determined that
the effect of exchange rate changes on cash flows is not
material.

Inventories—Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or
market. Cost is determined using the average cost and
first-in, first-out methods.

Property and Equipment—Land, buildings and machinery
and equipment are carried at cost.

Depreciation is recorded on the straight-line basis by
charges to costs and expenses at rates based on esti-
mated useful lives of properties (average rates for build-
ings 3.7%; machinery and equipment 6.9%).

Major renewals and betterments are capitalized. Main-
tenance, repairs and minor renewals are expensed as
incurred. When properties are retired or otherwise
disposed of, related cost and accumulated depreciation
are removed from the accounts.

Intangibles—The excess of purchase price over net tangible
assets of businesses acquired is carried as intangibles in
the Consolidated Balance Sheets. It is the Company’s
policy to carry intangibles arising prior to November 1970
at cost until such time as there may be evidence of diminu-
tion in value or the term of existence of such value
becomes limited. Intangibles arising after October 1970
are being amortized on a straight-line basis generally over
a forty-year period.

Income Taxes—The provision for income taxes includes
Federal, foreign, state and local income taxes currently
payable and those deferred because of timing differences
between income for financial statements and income for
tax purposes. A substantial portion of the undistributed
earnings of subsidiaries, primarily outside the United
States, has been reinvested and is not expected to be
remitted to the parent company. Accordingly, no addi-
tional Federal income taxes have been provided and at
December 31, 1990, the cumulative amount of reinvested
income was approximately $504,000.

In December 1987 the Financial Accounting Standards
Board issued FASB Statement No. 96, ‘‘Accounting for
Income Taxes,” which requires the use of the liability
method of accounting for deferred income taxes. The
Statement is currently under review and the required
implementation date has been postponed to first quarter
1992. Under current provisions of the Statement, the
effect of adoption may be accounted for either prospec-
tively in the year of adoption or through restatement of one
or more prior years. Because of potential changes and/or
interpretations that may be forthcoming, the Company
has not yet determined when it will adopt FASB Statement
No. 96 or whether it will be applied prospectively or
retroactively. The effect such adoption will have on the
Company’s operating results has not yet been determined.

Pension, Retirement Savings and Certain Postretirement
Benefits Plans—Substantially all of the Company’s
domestic and Canadian employees are covered under
one of the Company’s pension plans or one of the union-
sponsored plans to which the Company contributes.
Pension expense is determined pursuant to the provisions
of FASB Statement No. 87, “Employer’s Accounting for
Pensions.”” The Company funds pension costs in accor-
dance with the requirements of the Employee Retirement
Income Security Act of 1974.

Substantially all domestic and Canadian salaried and
nonbargaining hourly employees participate in the Com-
pany’s retirement savings plans. The Company’s cost of
providing the retirement savings plans represents its
matching of eligible contributions made by participating
employees and is recognized as a charge to income in the
year the cost is incurred.

The Company provides certain health and life insur-
ance benefits for eligible domestic and Canadian retired
employees. The cost of providing these benefits to retired
employees under Company plans is recognized as a
charge to income in the year the benefits are paid. In
December 1990 the Financial Accounting Standards
Board issued FASB Statement No. 106, “Employers’
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Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pen-
sions.”” The Statement requires employers to accrue the
cost of postretirement benefits during employees’ work-
ing careers. The Statement must be adopted no later than
first quarter 1993. The initial liability can be recognized
immediately upon adoption or amortized prospectively.
Since a substantive plan at the required adoption date
could be different than the current plan, the Company can
not yet determine the effect of the Statement on its results
of operations or financial condition.

Earnings Per Share—Earnings per common share are
computed based on the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding.

CAPITAL CITIES/ABC, INC. (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation—The consolidated financial
statements include the accounts of all significant subsidi-
aries. Investments in other companies which are at least
20% owned are reported on the equity method. All signifi-
cant intercompany accounts and transactions have been
eliminated.

Property, Plant and Equipment—Depreciation—
Depreciation is computed on the straight-line method for
financial accounting purposes and on accelerated
methods for tax purposes. Estimated useful lives for major
asset categories are 10-55 years for buildings and
improvements, 4-20 years for broadcasting equipment
and 5-20 years for publishing machinery and equipment.
Leasehold improvements are amortized over the terms of
the leases.

Intangible Assets—Intangible assets consist of amounts
by which the cost of acquisitions exceeded the values
assigned to net tangible assets. The broadcasting and
publishing intangible assets, all of which may be charac-
terized as scarce assets with very long and productive
lives, have historically increased in value with the pas-
sage of time. In accordance with Accounting Principles
Board Opinion No. 17, substantially all of these intangible
assets are being amortized over periods of up to 40 years,
even though in the opinion of management there has
been no diminution of value of the underlying assets.

Program Licenses and Rights—Program licenses and
rights and the related liabilities are recorded when the
license period begins and the program is available for
use. Television network and station rights for theatrical
movies and other long-form programming are charged to
expense primarily on accelerated bases related to the
usage of the program. Television network series costs and
multi-year sports rights are charged to expense based on
the flow of anticipated revenue.

Unearned Subscription Revenue—Subscription revenue
is recorded as earned over the life of the subscriptions.
Costs in connection with the procurement of subcriptions
are generally charged to expense as incurred.

Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions—In Decem-
ber 1990, Financial Accounting Standards Board State-
ment No. 106 was issued which requires a change in the
method of accounting for postretirement benefits other
than pensions. The Company is evaluating the impact of

this standard which must be implemented by 1993. The
impact of such adoption on the consolidated financial
statements is expected not to be material.

Short-term Investments—Short-term investments con-
sists of highly liquid U.S. Government instruments with
original maturities in excess of three months, and are car-
ried at cost, which approximates market. Short-term
investments which have a maturity of three months or less
at the time of purchase are considered cash equivalents.
Reporting Year—The Company’s reporting year is a year
ending on December 31. Prior to 1989, the Company’s
reporting year was a fiscal year ending the Sunday closest
to December 31.

THE DOW CHEMICAL COMPANY (DEC)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements
include the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses of
all majority-owned subsidiaries. Investments in compa-
nies 20%-50% owned are carried on the equity basis.

Foreign Currency Translation

Primarily, the local currency has been used as the func-
tional currency throughout the world. Where the U.S. dol-
lar is used as the functional currency, foreign currency
gains and losses are reflected in income currently. Trans-
lation gains and losses of those operations that use local
currencies as the functional currency, and the effects of
exchange rate changes on transactions designated as
hedges of net foreign investments, are included as a sepa-
rate component of stockholders’ equity.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include time deposits and
readily marketable securities with original maturities of
three months or less.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. The
method of determining cost is used consistently from year
to year at each subsidiary and varies between the last-in,
first-out (LIFO) method; the first-in, first-out (FIFO)
method; and the average cost method.

Plant Properties and Depreciation
Land, buildings and equipment, including property under
capital lease agreements, are carried at cost less
accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is based on the
estimated service lives of depreciable assets and is
generally provided using the declining balance method.
Fully depreciated assets are retained in property and
depreciation accounts until they are removed from serv-
ice. In the case of disposals, assets and related deprecia-
tion are removed from the accounts and the net amount,
less proceeds from disposal, is charged or credited to
income.

Goodwill

The excess of the cost of investments in subsidiaries over
the carrying value of assets acquired is shown as good-
will, which is then amortized on a straight-line basis over
a maximum of 40 years.

Interest Rate Derivative Instruments
Interest differentials on swaps and forward rate agree-
ments are accrued as interest rates change over the con-
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tract periog:l. Swaption premiums are amortized over the
option period for each purchased and sold swaption.

Taxes on Income

The Company and its subsidiaries compute and record
income taxes currently payable based upon determina-
tion of taxable income which may differ from pretax
accounting income. These differences may arise from
recording in pretax accounting income transactions
which enter into determination of taxable income in
another period. The tax effect of these timing differences
is recognized by adjustment of the provision for taxes.

Provision is made for taxes on unremitted earnings of
related companies and foreign subsidiaries to the extent
that such earnings are not deemed to be permanently
invested.

Certain foreign countries provide incentive payments
which are granted to encourage new investment. Gener-
ally, such grants are credited to income as earned.

The Financial Accounting Standards Board Statement
No. 96, “‘Accounting for Income Taxes’ and subsequent
amendments mandated a change in the method of
accounting for income taxes to be effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 1991. The impact of this
new standard has not been completely determined, but
preliminary estimates indicate that the change will have
no material effect assuming no increase in tax rates from
current levels. The Company plans to adopt the new
method in 1992,

Earnings per Common Share
The calculation of earnings per share is based on the
weighted average number of common shares outstanding
during the applicable period.

GREYHOUND DIAL CORPORATION (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note A: Significant Accounting Policies
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. Described
below are those accounting policies which are particularly
significant to Greyhound Dial Corporation and subsidi-
aries (‘‘Greyhound Dial" unless otherwise indicated),
including those selected from acceptable alternatives.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
accounts of Greyhound Dial and all its subsidiaries,
except for discontinued insurance subsidiaries which are
carried at equity in net assets at date of discontinuance
less reserves provided for estimated losses on liquidation.
All material intercompany transactions and accounts are
eliminated in consolidation.

Prior to 1988, results of Financial Group subsidiaries
were included on the equity basis as one line in total income
and net assets. This was permissible under accounting
rules in effect before 1988. Because Financial Group sub-
sidiaries’ operations are so different in nature from and
essentially unrelated to operations of other Greyhound
Dial businesses, management believed that financial
statements were more understandable if Financial Group
subsidiaries’ financial statements were shown separately.
It should be emphasized that, under both current and
prior procedures, consolidated net income and stock-

holders’ equity are the same for all periods presented.
Also as a result of this change, Greyhound Dial adopted
an unclassified consolidated balance sheet.
Management believes it is important to preserve as
much as possible the identity of the principal financial
data and related measurements to which stockholders
and other have become accustomed over the years.
Accordingly, consolidated financial statements and notes
now are generally presented in a format that includes data
grouped as follows:
Greyhound Dial and Consolidated Subsidiaries
The consolidated financial statements and notes repre-
sent the consolidation of Greyhound Dial and non-
Financial Group subsidiaries and Financial Group
subsidiaries. However, it is necessary to eliminate
transactions between the two to arrive at the consolidated
totals. Such eliminations and reclassifications are
described in Note B on notes to consolidated financial
statements.
Greyhound Dial and Non-Financial Group Subsidiaries
This is essentially the pre-1988 basis of consolidation.
Transactions among companies within this group have
been eliminated.

Financial Group Subsidiaries

The group is comprised primarily of Greyhound Financial
Corporation and Greyhound European Financial Serv-
ices. These subsidiaries and their respective affilliates are
combined in the Financial Group subsidiaries columns
with transactions among them eliminated.

Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the Statement of Consolidated Cash
Flows, Greyhound Dial considered all highly liquid invest-
ments with maturities of three months or less from date of
purchase as cash equivalents.

Investment in Financing Transactions

For loans and other financing contracts, earned income is
recognized over the life of the contract using the interest
method. -

Substantially all leases are direct financing leases and
are classified as such, except those that are financed by
nonrecourse borrowings and meet certain other criteria,
which are classified as leveraged leases.

For direct financing leases, the difference between (a)
aggregate lease rentals and (b) the cost of the related
assets, less estimated residual value at the end of the
lease term, is recorded as unearned income. Earned
income is recognized over the life of the contracts using
the interest method.

For leveraged leases, aggregate rentals receivable are
reduced by the related nonrecourse debt service obliga-
tion including interest (net rentals receivable). The differ-
ence between (a) net rentals receivable and (b) the cost of
the asset less estimated residual value at the end of the
lease term is recorded as unearned income. Earned
income is recognized over the life of the lease at a con-
stant rate of return on the positive net investment which
includes the effects of deferred income taxes.

Income recognition is suspended. for leases and other
contracts at the earlier of the date at which payments
become 90 days past due or when, in the opinion of
management, a full recovery of income and principal
becomes doubtful.

Repossessed assets are carried at the lower of cost or
estimated net realizable value.
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Inventories )
Generally, inventories are stated at the lower of cost (first-
in, first out and average cost methods) or market.

Property and Equipment
Owned assets are stated at cost and capital lease assets
are stated at the present value of future rentals at lease
inception.

Depreciation is provided principally by use of the
straight-line method at annual rates as follows:

Buildings .................... 2% to 5%
Machinery and other equipment .. 5% to 33%
Capital leases and leasehold
improvements . .............. Lesser of lease
term or useful life

New Model Design Costs

Costs of new product design and engineering and produc-
tion start-up for new bus models of Transportation
Manufacturing are capitalized and amortized on a units of
production basis over the expected model lives (usually
6-10 years). Such costs are included in the consolidated
balance sheet under the caption ‘‘Other investments and
assets.”

Intangibles

Intangibles are carried at cost less applicable amortiza-
tion of $73,670,000 at December 31, 1990 and $58,861,000
at December 31, 1989. Intangibles of $167,394,000 at
December 31, 1990 and $170,476,000 at December 31, 1989,
which arose prior to October 31, 1970, will not be amortized
unless there is deemed to be a permanent diminution in
value of the related investments. Intangibles arising after
October 31, 1970 are amortized on the straight-line
method over the periods of expected benefit, but not in
excess of 40 years.

Pensions and Other Benefits

Trusteed, noncontributory pension plans cover substan-
tially all employees. Benefits are based primarily on final
average salary and years of service. Greyhound Dial and
its U.S. subsidiaries’ net periodic pension cost is based on
the provisions of SFAS No. 87, ‘‘Employers’ Accounting for
Pensions.’ Net periodic pension cost for foreign-based
pension plans in 1990 and 1989 is based on the provisions
of SFAS No. 87; in 1988, net periodic pension cost was
based on the provisions of APB Opinion No. 8. Funding
policies provide that payments to pension trusts shall be
at least equal to the minimum funding required by applica-
ble regulations. Costs of medical and life insurance
benefits under employee group plans, including similar
benefits for qualified retirees, are generally charged to
income as incurred. Such benefits applicable to eligible
retirees of discontinued businesses were recorded on
an estimated present value basis at the date of
discontinuance.

In December 1990, the Financial Accounting Standards
Board issued SFAS No. 106, ‘“‘Employers’ Accounting for
Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions.!” This
Statement will require accruing costs of postretirement
benefits (such as life insurance and health care benefits)
during the years an employee provides services. The
impact of this new standard has not been fully deter-
mined, but the change likely will result in greater current
expense being recognized for provision of these benefits.
Greyhound Dial plans to adopt this Statement in 1993, the
required effective date.

Income Taxes ‘
Income taxes are provided based upon the provisions of
SFAS No. 96, “Accounting for Income Taxes,” which,
among other things, requires that recognition of deferred
income taxes be measured by the provisions of enacted
tax laws in effect at the date of the financial statements.

Net Income Per Share

Net income per common and equivalent share is based
on netincome after preferred stock dividend requirements
and the weighted average number of common shares out-
standing during each year after giving effect to stock
options considered to be dilutive common stock equiva-
lents. Fully diluted net income per share is not materially
different from primary earnings per share.

Principal Business Segment and Geographic Information
Principal business segment and geographic information
of Greyhound Dial for the three years ended December 31,
1990 is presented elsewhere in this report.

Certain reclassifications have been made to the
prior years’ financial statements to conform to 1990
classifications.

ACCOUNTING CHANGES

APB Opinion No. 20 ‘'defines various types of accounting
changes and establishes guides for determining the man-
ner of reporting each type.” Table 1-8 lists the accounting
changes disclosed in the 1990 annual reports of the sur-
vey companies.

The 19 survey companies indicated in Table 1-8 as
adopting Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.
87 did so for their pension plans covering foreign
employees. Examples of accounting changes follows.

TABLE 1-8: ACCOUNTING CHANGES

Number of Companies
1990 1989 1988 1987
Pension Costs:

Actuarial assumptions ........ 122 189 119 176

Minimum liability recognized . .. 42 77 11 -

SFAS 87 adopted............. 19 57 82 157
Incometaxes ................. 16 31 98 37
Reporting entity ............... 6 29 90 17
Inventories:

Capitalization of costs
formerly expensed..........
LIFO adopted ...............
LIFO discontinued ............
Other......................
Depreciable lives ..............
Depreciation method ...........
Insurance companies contracts . . .
Loan originating fees ...........
Software costs ................
Other—described ..............
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CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

FORD MOTOR COMPANY (DEC)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 (in Part): Accounting Policies

Depreciation and Amortization—Automotive

Depreciation is computed using an accelerated method
that results in accumulated depreciation of approximately
two-thirds of asset cost during the first half of the asset's
estimated useful life. On average, buildings and land
improvements are depreciated based on a 30-year life;
automotive machinery and equipment are depreciated
based on a 14'2-year life.

It is the company’s policy to review periodically fixed
asset lives. A study completed during 1990 indicated that
actual lives for certain asset categories generally were
longer than the useful lives used for depreciation pur-
poses in the company'’s financial statements. Therefore,
during the third quarter of 1990, the company revised the
estimated useful lives of certain categories of property
retroactive to January 1, 1990. The effect of this change in
estimate was to reduce 1990 depreciation expense by
$211 million and increase 1990 net income principally in
the U.S., by $135 million or $0.29 per share.

When plant and equipment are retired, the general
policy is to charge the cost of such assets, reduced by net
salvage proceeds, to accumulated depreciation. All main-
tenance, repairs and rearrangement expenses are
expensed as incurred. Expenditures that increase the
value or productive capacity of assets are capitalized. The
cost of special tools is amortized over periods of time
representing the productive use of such tools. Preproduc-
tion costs incurred in connection with new facilities are
expensed as incurred.

STONE CONTAINER CORPORATION (DEC)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Note 1 (in Part): Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies
Property, Plant, EQuipment and Depreciation:
Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost. Expendi-
tures for maintenance and repairs are charged to income
as incurred. Additions, improvements and major replace-
ments are capitalized. The cost and accumulated depreci-
ation related to assets sold or retired are removed from the
accounts and any gain or loss is credited or charged to
income.

For financial reporting purposes, depreciation is
provided on the straight-line method over the estimated
useful lives of depreciable assets, or over the duration of
the leases for capitalized leases, based on the following
annual rates:

Type of Asset Rates
Machinery and equipment..................... 5% to 33%
Buildings and leasehold improvements........... 2% to 7%

Land improvements . ......................... 4% to 7%

Effective January 1, 1990, the Company changed its
estimates of the useful lives of certain machinery and
equipment at its paper mills. Mill asset depreciation lives
that previously averaged 16 years were increased to an
average of 20 years, while mill asset depreciation lives
that previously averaged 10-12 years were increased to
an average of 14-16 years. These changes were made to
better reflect the estimated periods during which such
assets will remain in service. The change had the effect of
reducing depreciation expense by $39.8 million and
increasing net income by $20.2 million, or $.34 per com-
mon share, in 1990.

TYSON FOODS, INC. (SEP)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 (in Part). Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies
Property, Plant and Equipment and Depreciation
Depreciation is provided primarily by the straight-line
method using estimated lives for buildings and leasehold
improvements of 10 to 33 years; machinery and equip-
ment—3 to 12 years; and other—3 to 20 years. Deprecia-
tion expense was $97.7 million in 1990, $80.9 million in
1989 and $70.1 million in 1988.

In the first quarter of 1990, the company made a
prospective change in the estimated useful lives of certain
property and equipment. For assets acquired subsequent
to September 30, 1989, including those acquired by Holly
Farms Corporation (Holly), depreciation is calculated
using estimated useful lives of 33 years for buildings and
improvements and 10 years for processing machinery and
equipment. Prior to the acquisition of Holly, the com-
pany’s useful lives were generally 18 to 25 years for build-
ings and improvements and 5 to 7 years for processing
machinery and equipment. Holly’s useful lives were 33
years for buildings and improvements and 12 years for
machinery and equipment, and have not been changed
for assets acquired by Holly before September 30, 1989.
Excluding assets acquired with Holly, the remaining
depreciable balance of those assets acquired prior to
September 30, 1989, are depreciated based upon the
revised useful lives. The remaining categories of property
and machinery and equipment have not changed. This
change was adopted after internal evaluations were made
of existing property and equipment and is believed to
more accurately reflect current planned future utilization
considering current business practices. This change
increased 1990 net income $23.9 million or $.36 cents per
share.

The company capitalized interest costs of $1.5 million in
1990, $1.3 million in 1989 and $1.2 million in 1988 as part
of the cost of major asset construction projects.

Approximately $45 million will be required to complete
construction projects in progress at September 29, 1990.
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STANDARD MOTOR PRODUCTS, INC. (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. Change in Accounting Estimate

The Company has traditionally deferred certain costs
associated with the acquisition of new customer accounts
and amortized them over their estimated useful life. For
costs incurred after January 1, 1989, the estimated useful
life of these costs was extended from six months to twelve
months reducing amortization in 1989 by $4,060,000 and
increasing net income $2,436,000, $.19 per share. In 1990,
the Company conformed its treatment of other customer
acquisition costs, which had previously been expensed,
so that customer acquisition costs are consistently
capitalized and amortized over a twelve-month period.
The effect of this change in accounting estimate in 1990
was to reduce amortization in 1990 by $3,175,000 and
increase net income $1,905,000, $.15 per share.

CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES
Pension Plan—Minimum Liability Recognized

JOHNSTON INDUSTRIES, INC. (JUN)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 13 (in Part): Employee Benefit Plans

The Company has two non-contributory defined benefit
pension plans covering substantially all hourly and sala-
ried employees. The plan covering salaried employees
provides benefit payments based on years of service and
the employees’ final average ten years’ earnings. The
plan covering hourly employees generally provides
benefits of stated amounts for each year of service. The
Company'’s current policy is to fund retirement plans in an
amount that falls between the minimum contribution
required by ERISA and the maximum tax deductible con-
tribution. Plan assets consist primarily of bonds, converti-
ble securities, growth equity securities, cash and cash
equivalents and unallocated insurance contracts.

Effective July 1, 1987, the Company adopted Financial
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 87,
“Employers’ Accounting for Pensions’” (SFAS No. 87),
electing transition rules which permitted delaying the
adoption of certain provisions. Such provisions, which
were implemented in the current fiscal year, require recog-
nition in the balance sheet of the additional minimum lia-
bility and related intangible asset for pension plans with
accumulated benefits in excess of plan assets. This
resulted in the recognition at June 30, 1990 of an addi-
tional liability of $2,892,000 and an intangible asset of
equal amount; there was no effect on earnings, stock-
holders’ equity, or cash requirements to fund the pension
plan. In accordance with SFAS No. 87, prior balance
sheets have not been restated.

NAVISTAR INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION (OCT)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 3 (in Part): Retirement Benefits

Pension Assets and Liabilities

Provisions of SFAS 87 required the Company in 1990 to
record an additional pension liability and intangible asset.
The additional liability is based on the excess of accumu-
lated benefit obligations over the fair value of assets of the
Company’s underfunded pension plans while the intangible
asset represents previously incurred pension costs not yet
expensed. The difference between the additional liability
and the intangible asset represents net accumulated
gains and losses from actuarial valuations, investment
experience and changes in assumptions subsequent to
the adoption of SFAS 87. This difference resulted in
accumulated charges to equity of $55 million as of
October 31, 1990.

ROBBINS & MYERS, INC. (AUG)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Pension Plans (in Part)

The company and its subsidiaries have several pension
plans covering most of their employees. Plans covering
salaried employees provide pension benefits that are
based primarily on years of service and employees’ pay
near retirement. Plans covering hourly employees gener-
ally provide benefits of stated amounts for each year of
service. The company’s funding policy is consistent with
the funding requirements of applicable Federal regula-
tions. At August 31, 1990, pension plan assets were invested
in short and long-term interest bearing obligations and
equity securities, including 94,000 shares of the company’s
common stock.

During 1990 the company recorded an adjustment of
$2,857,000 to recognize the minimum pension liability
required by the final provisions of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 87, ‘‘Employers’ Accounting
for Pensions.” The adjustment, which had no effect on
1990 income, was offset by recording an Intangible Asset
in the amount of $2,627,000 and decreasing Shareholders’
Equity by $230,000.

Pension Plan Assets

LACLEDE STEEL COMPANY (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 5 (in Part): Employee Benefits:
In order to reflect more accurately the historical invest-
ment performance of the assets of the company-
sponsored pension plans, in 1990 the Company changed
its method of determining the market-related value of such
plan assets for purposes of calculating annual pension
cost under FASB statement No. 87. As a result of this
change, net pension cost for 1990 and future years has
been reduced. There is no impact on prior years as a
result of the change. Annual pension plan funding, which
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is based on the range of deductible contributions permit-
ted by ERISA regulations and on the Company’s current
income tax situation, will not be affected by the change.
This change reduced 1990 net pension costs by
$1,863,000, which increased net earnings by $840,000 or
$.20 per share.

Income Taxes

ATLANTIC RICHFIELD COMPANY (DEC)

Consolidated Statement of Income

1990 1989 1988

Millions of dollars except per share amounts
Income before cumulative effect

of change in accounting principle  $1,688 $1,953 $1,583
Cumulative effect of change in

accounting for income taxes 323 — -
Net Income $2,011  $1,953 $1,583

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 8 (in Part): Taxes

Effective January 1, 1990, the Company adopted State-
ment of Financial Accounting Standards No. 96,
“Accounting for Income Taxes.” The cumulative effect of
this accounting change on years prior to 1990 was a $323
million reduction in the Company’s deferred tax liability as
of December 31, 1989. The reduction resulted in an
increase in netincome for 1990 of $323 million or $1.95 per
share. The effect of the change on 1990 net income,
excluding the cumulative effect upon adoption, was not
material.

STEEL TECHNOLOGIES INC. (SEP)

Consolidated Statements of Income
1990 1989 1988

Income before
cumulative effect of
accounting change

Cumulative effect of
change in accounting
for income taxes
(Note 6)

Net income

$6,413,418 $5,905,895 $7,502,276

250,000 - —
$6,663,418 $5,905,895 $7,502,276

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 6 (in Part): Income Taxes:
Effective October 1, 1989, the Company adopted State-
ment of Financial Accounting Standards No. 96,
“Accounting for Income Taxes.” The Statement requires,
among other things, a change from the deferred to the lia-

bility method of computing deferred income taxes. The
cumulative effect, through September 30, 1989, of this
change in accounting amounted to $250,000, or $.03 per
share, and was included in net income during the first
quarter ended December 31, 1989. The effect of this
change on operating results for the year ended Septem-
ber 30, 1990, excluding the cumulative effect discussed
above, was not material.

CYPRUS MINERALS COMPANY (DEC)

Consolidated Statement of Income

(In thousands except per
share data) 1990 1989 . 1988

Income Before Cumulative
Effect of Change in
Accounting for

Income Taxes $111,031 $234,828 $170,030
Cumulative Effect of

Change in Accounting

for income Taxes — (69,950) —
Net Income 111,031 164,878 170,030

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 (in Part): Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies
Income Taxes
—In the fourth quarter of 1990, Cyprus retroactively
changed its method of accounting for income taxes as a
result of adopting Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 96, “Accounting for Income Taxes.” This
Statement provides for a liability approach under which
deferred income taxes are provided based upon enacted
tax laws and rates applicable to the periods in which the
taxes become payable. As a result of this change, $85.2
million ($2.19 per primary share and $1.81 per fully diluted
share) was charged against previously reported net
income for the year ended December 31, 1989. About $70
million represented the cumulative effect on the Com-
pany’s accumulated deficit for periods prior to January 1,
1989, and $15.2 million ($.39 per primary share and $.32 per
fully diluted share) represented the impact on 1989 income
tax expense. The change increased net income for 1990
over that which would have been reported under the Com-
pany’s previous method by $21.3 million ($.53 per primary
share and $.44 per fully diluted share).
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SUPER VALU STORES, INC. (FEB)

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity

Capital in
Common Stock Excess of Retained
Shares Amount Par Value Earnings

Balances at February 28, 1987............... .. ... ool

.... 74,547,967 $74,548,000 $3,524,000 $518,144,000

Cumulative effect of accounting change (Note A) (17,941,000)
Balances at February 28, 1987, as restated . ..................... ... 74,547,967 74,548,000 3,524,000 500,203,000
Net BamiNgS. . ... oo e 113,012,000
Sales of common stock under optionplans ................. R 178,643 179,000 1,693,000
Retirement of commonstock ............. .. ...l (28,859) (29,000)  (683,000)
Sales of common stock under Employee Stock Ownership Plan ......... 26,517 26,000 724,000
Cash dividends declared on common stock—$.435 pershare ........... (32,477,000)
Balances at February 27, 1988, asrestated . ......................... 74,724,268 74,724,000 5,258,000 580,738,000
Netearnings. . .........oiiri it 137,468,000
Sales of common stock under optionplans .................. ...t 214,077 214,000 2,928,000
Retirement of commonstock .................oviiiiiiiiin (56,113) (56,000) (1,284,000)
Cash dividends declared on common stock—$.485 per share ........... (36,284,000)
Balances at February 25, 1989, asrestated...................... ..., 74,882,232 74,882,000 6,902,000 681,922,000
Net BamMiNgS. ...ttt e e 147,746,000
Sales of common stock under optionplans ......................... 289,979 290,000 4,399,000
Retirement of commonstock ............. .. i (86,757) (87,000) (2,286,000)
Cash dividends declared on common stock—$585 pershare ........... (43,877,000)

Balances at February 24,1990 ................... ... ... ...

.... 75,085,454 $75,085,000 $9,015,000 $785,791,000

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A (in Part): Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:
Change in accounting method for income taxes:
The company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 96, ‘‘Accounting for Income Taxes,” in the
fourth quarter of the fiscal year ended February 24, 1990,
and has elected to apply the provisions retroactively to its
fiscal year ended February 28, 1987. It was not practical to
restate years prior to 1987, Accordingly, retained earnings
at February 28, 1987 have been reduced by $17.9 million,
the cumulative effect of the change in the method of
accounting for income taxes. The consolidated financial
statements for the fiscal years ended February 27, 1988
and February 25, 1989 have been restated for the effect of
adopting the statement as follows:

Year Ended
February 25, February 27,
1989 1988

Net earnings as previously
reported

Adjustment for effect
of adoption of
Statement No. 96 2,105,000 1,232,000

Net earnings as restated  $137,468,000 $113,012,000
Earnings per share:
Net earnings per share as

$135,363,000 $111,780,000

previously reported $1.81 $1.50
Adjustment for effect
of adoption of
Statement No. 96 .03 ‘ .01
Net earnings per share $1.84 $1.51

Inventories

BINKS MANUFACTURING COMPANY (NOV)

Consolidated Statements of Earnings

1990 1989 1988

Earnings before
cumulative effect
of a change in
accounting
principle

Cumulative effect to
December 1, 1989
and December 1,

$5,786,419  $9,607,196 $7,043,612

1987 of changing

overhead recorded

in inventory 930,000 — 375,000
Net earnings ...... $6,716,419 $9,607,196 $7,418,612

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 2. Change in the Application of an Accounting
Principle
In the fourth quarter of 1990 the Company changed its
method of applying overhead to inventory. Historically, the
Parent company used a single overhead rate in valuing
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the ending inventory, determined by comparing the total
manufacturing overhead expenses for the year with total
direct labor costs for the year. In 1990 the Company per-
formed an extensive study to precisely determine the
Ir.nanufacturing overhead to be applied to specific product
ines.

The Company believes that the change in the applica-
tion of this accounting principle is preferable because it
provides a better determination of overhead costs in inven-
tory and thus improves the matching of production costs
with related revenues in reporting operating resuits.

The change in the application of this accounting princi-
ple resulted in an increase in net earnings of $930,000
(after reduction of income taxes of $570,000), reflecting the
cumulative effect of this change for the periods prior to
December 1, 1989. In accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, the cumulative effect of the change
on prior years has been recorded in the first quarter of fiscal
1990. The effect of the change on the current year’s net
earnings before cumulative effect of a change in account-
ing principle is not material.

In accordance with generally accepted accounting prin-
ciples, pro forma amounts, assuming the new accounting
principle was applied retroactively, are presented below;

1990 1989 1988

Net earnings $5,786,000 $9,297,000 $7,605,000
Net earnings

per share 1.97 3.22 2.67

In 1988 the Company changed its accounting procedures
to include in inventory certain manufacturing overhead
costs previously charged to operations as incurred. Such
costs included in inventory are production engineering
costs and costs incurred in transporting manufactured
inventory to the point of sale. The Company believes this
method is preferable because it more accurately reflects
total product costs and improves the matching of cost of
sales with related revenues in reportig operating results. The
change in accounting procedure resulted in an increase in
net earnings of 1988 of $375,000 (after reduction for income
taxes of $225,000), reflecting the cumulative effect of this
change for the periods prior to December 1, 1987.

KMART CORPORATION (JAN)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note F (in Part): Merchandise Inventories

During 1990, the company changed its method of account-
ing for LIFO inventories in U.S. Kmart stores. Prior to 1990,
the company used the U.S. Department of Labor’s Depart-
ment Store Price Index to measure inflation in retail prices.
In 1990, the company developed and used internal price
indices to measure inflation in the retail prices of its
merchandise inventories. The company believes the use
of internal indices results in a more accurate measurement
of the impact of inflation in the prices of merchandise sold
in its stores. This change reduced the LIFO charge in 1990
by $105 million net of tax, or $.52 per share. The company
was not able to determine the cumulative effect of this
change nor the impact on any individual year prior to 1990.

THE PENN CENTRAL CORPORATION (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 6. Inventories
Inventories consist of the following:

(In Millions)
December 31, 1990 1989

Raw materials $752 $64.8
Work-in-progress 115.6 88.0
Finished goods 165.0 127.8
Total $355.8  $280.6

Effective January 1, 1990, the Company changed its
method of valuing a significant component of its commu-
nications wire and cable inventories from the FIFO to the
LIFO method. Management believes the LIFO method
results in a better matching of current costs with current
revenues.

The effect of the change in 1990 was to decrease net
income by $1.6 million, or $.03 per share. The cumulative
effect of this accounting change and the pro forma effects
on prior years’ earnings have not been included because
such effects are not reasonably determinable.

At December 31, 1990 and 1989, $113.2 million and
$54.9 million, respectively, of inventories were valued
using the LIFO method. Approximate replacement cost of
inventories valued using the LIFO method totaled $130.3
million at December 31, 1990 and $69.6 million at Decem-
ber 31, 1989.

SPS TECHNOLOGIES, INC. (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Change in Accounting Principle

During the first quarter of 1990, the Company changed its
basis of valuing inventories in the United States from the
last-in, first-out (LIFO) method to the average cost method.
In 1989 and prior years, the cost of substantially all inven-
tories in the United States, except tools, was determined
using the LIFO method. The change to the average cost
method will conform all inventories of the Company to the
same method of valuation. The Company believes that
the average cost method of inventory valuation provides a
more meaningful presentation of the financial position of
the Company since it reflects more recent costs in the bal-
ance sheet. Under the current economic environment of
low inflation and an expected reduction in inventories and
lower production costs, the Company believes that the
average cost method also results in a better matching of
current costs with current revenues.

The effect of the change in accounting principle was to
reduce the net loss reported for 1990 by $318,000, or $.06
per share. The change has been applied to prior years by
retroactively restating the financial statements as required
by generally accepted accounting principles. The effect of
this restatement was to increase retained earnings as of
January 1, 1988 by $9,579,000. The restatement
decreased 1989 net earnings by $1,871,000, or $.37 per
share, and increased 1988 net earnings by $2,234,000, or
$.45 per share.
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Depreciation Method

SNAP-ON TOOLS CORPORATION (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 (in Part): Summary of Accounting Policies

G. Property and equipment
Land, buildings, machinery and equipment are carried at
original cost. Depreciation and amortization are provided
for primarily by using accelerated depreciation methods
on all property acquired prior to December 31, 1989. For
financial statement purposes, the Company adopted the
straight-line depreciation method for all property acquired
after December 30, 1989. The Company believes the new
method will more accurately reflect its financial results by
better matching costs of new property over the useful lives
of these assets. In addition, the new method more closely
conforms with that prevalent in the industry. The effect of
the change was not material to the 1990 financial results.
The estimated service lives of property and equipment
are as follows:

Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Transportation vehicles

5 to 45 years
3 to 15 years
3to 15 years
2to 5years

The costs and related accumulated depreciation of the
Company’s property and equipment values were as fol-
lows for fiscal years ended:

(Amounts in thousands) 1990 1989
Land $ 21,075 $ 20,120
Buildings and improvements 112,194 103,974
Machinery and equipment 213,911 193,713

347,180 317,807
Less accumulated depreciation {136,766) (122,787)

Property and equipment—net $210,414  $195,020

Postretirement Benefits

DAYTON HUDSON CORPORATION (JAN)

Consolidated Results of Operations

(Millions of Dollars,
Except Per-Share Data) 1991 1990 1989
Earnings Before Cumulative Effects of
Accounting Changes $410 $410  $287
Cumulative Effects of Accounting
Changes:
Income taxes 54 - -
Postretirement health care benefits 52) — —
Net Eamnings $412  $410  $287

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Millions of Dollars, Except Per-Share Data)

Cumulative Effects of Accounting Changes

At the beginning of the 1990 fiscal year, the provisions of
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No.
96, ‘‘Accounting for Income Taxes' were adopted. The
Statement requires the liability method of accounting for
income taxes rather than the deferred method previously
used. The cumulative effect of this accounting change
was to increase net earnings by $54 million or $.72 per
share. The impact of this accounting change on the 1390
income tax provision was not material.

The Corporation also changed to the accrual method of
accounting for postretirement health care benefits at the
beginning of fiscal year 1990. In prior years, expense was
recognized when claims were paid. The projected benefit
obligation of $48 million (net of tax) relating to prior service
cost was recognized as a cumulative effect of accounting
change as of beginning-of-year 1990. In December 1990,
SFAS No. 106, ‘“‘Employers’ Accounting for Postretirement
Benefits Other Than Pensions,” was issued. Following
this, the Corporation increased the beginning-of-year net
charge by $4 million. The method of accounting for post-
retirement health care benefits conforms to the provisions
of the new standard. The total cumulative effect of this
accounting change was to decrease net earnings by $52
million or $.69 per share.

Maintenance Shutdown Costs

SUN COMPANY, INC. (DEC)

Consolidated Statements of Income

For the Years Ended December 31 1990 1989 1988
(Millions of Dollars Except
Per Share Amounts)
Income before cumulative effect of

change in accounting principle $199  $98 $7
Cumulative effect of change in

accounting principle (Note 6) 30 — —
Net Income $229  $98 $7

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. (in Part): Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies

Refinery Maintenance Shutdowns

Effective January 1, 1990, Sun changed its method of
accounting for the cost of maintenance and repairs incurred
in connection with major maintenance shutdowns at its
refineries. Under the new method, such costs on projects
exceeding $500 thousand are capitalized when incurred
and then charged against income over the period benefitted
by the major maintenance shutdown (Note 6).

6. Change in Accounting Principle :
Effective January 1, 1990, Sun changed its method o
accounting for the cost of maintenance and repairs incurred
in connection with major maintenance shutdowns at its
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refineries (turnaround costs). Turnaround costs are com-
prised principally of amounts paid to third parties for
materials, contract services and other related items. Under
the new method, turnaround costs on projects exceeding
$500 thousand are capitalized when incurred and then
charged against income over the period benefitted by the
major maintenance shutdown (usually 3 to 4 years). Prior to
this change in accounting, turnaround costs were charged
against income as incurred. Sun believes that the new
method of accounting is preferable in that it provides for a
better matching of turnaround costs with future refined
product revenues. Decisions regarding major maintenance
shutdowns are generally based on engineering studies
and economic analyses (such as discounted cash flow
techniques) performed in connection with the capital
budgeting process. As a result, management of Sun
believes that the investment in turnaround costs enhances
the reliability and performance of the refinery unit and
therefore economically benefits future periods.

The cumulative effect of this accounting change for
years prior to 1990, which is shown separately in the
consolidated statement of income for 1990, resulted in a
benefit of $30 million (after related income taxes of $15
million), or $.28 per share of common stock. Excluding the
cumulative effect, this change increased net income for
1990 by $16 million or $.15 per share of common stock.
The pro forma amounts shown on the consolidated state-
ments of income reflect net income and net income per
share of common stock as if the accounting change had
been retroactively applied.

Maintenance Contracts

THE UNITED STATES SHOE CORPORATION (JAN)

Consolidated Statements of Earnings and Retained
Earnings

(thousands except
share amounts) 1991 1990 1989

Earnings (loss) before
cumulative effect of
accounting change

Cumulative effect, for years
ended prior to February 4,
1990, of accounting change
related to product
maintenance contracts, net
of tax effect of $2,343

Net earnings (loss)

$(27,662) $49,187 $12,965

(3,621) — —
$(31,283) $49,187 $12,965

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(thousands except share amounts)

(3) Accounting Change—

In December 1990, the Financial Accounting Standards
Board issued a technical bulletin on accounting for product
maintenance contracts such as those sold by the com-
pany’s optical retailing group. The bulletin requires the
deferral and amortization of revenue from the sales of such

contracts on a straight-line basis over the term of the
contract (one to two years). Under the accounting method
previously followed by the company, a portion of the revenue
earned from the sale of eyewear product maintenance
contracts was recognized on the date of sale and the
remainder was deferred and amortized on a straight-line
basis over the term of the contract.

Effective February 4, 1990, the company has elected to
adopt this new accounting method for all contracts in place.
The effect of this change is to increase the net loss for
1990 by $4.3 million ($.10 per share), including $3.6 million
(.08 per share) which is the cumulative effect of the
accounting change.

If this change in accounting method had been in effect
during 1988 and 1989, the effects would have been
immaterial to net earnings.

Special Sales Incentive Programs

CHRYSLER CORPORATION (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note 1 (in Part): Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Revenue Recognition

Vehicle and parts sales are generally recorded when such
products are shipped to dealers. Provisions for normal
dealer sales allowances are made at the time of sale and
treated as sales reductions. Costs related to special sales
incentive programs are recorded as sales reductions
when the retail sale is made.

The frequency and significance of special incentive
programs in the automobile industry have continued to
increase during the past several years and the Company
expects this trend will continue. In response to this chang-
ing circumstance, the Company, beginning in 1991, will
change its method of accounting to recognize the esti-
mated costs of special incentive programs at the time a
vehicle is sold to the dealer. The change will accelerate
the recognition of incentive costs and result in the accrual
of a liability for incentives expected to be paid on products
not yet sold by the dealer. Had the Company used this
method of accounting in earlier years, earnings from con-
tinuing operations and net earnings would have been
increased by $54 million or $.24 per common share in the
year ended December 31, 1990 and decreased by $97 mil-
lion or $.42 per common share and $64 million or $.28 per
common share in the years ended December 31, 1989 and
1988, respectively. The cumulative effect of the change as of
January 1, 1991 is $257 million (net of applicable income
taxes) and will be reflected as a decrease in net earnings
in the first quarter of 1991.

Interest income from finance receivables is recognized
using the interest method. Lending fees and certain direct
loan origination costs are deferred and amortized to
interest income using the interest method over the con-
tractual terms of the finance receivables. Gains and
losses from retail installment receivable sales are
reflected in the consolidated statement of earnings as
other income.
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Patent Application Costs

MINNTECH CORPORATION (MAR)
1990 1989 1988

Earnings (loss) before
cumulative effect of
change in account-
ing principle

Cumulative effect on
prior years of
change in account-
ing for patent
application costs,
less income taxes
of $54,000

Net earnings (loss)

$1,935,338  $892,687  $(523,798)

110,063
$2,045,401

$892,687 _$(523,798)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note L—Change in Accounting Policy

In fiscal year 1990, the Company changed its policy of
accounting for patent application costs. Previously, the
Company charged patent application costs to operations
as incurred. The Company now capitalizes such costs and
amortizes them over a five-year period. The Company
believes capitalizing such costs provides a better match-
ing of revenues and expenses and conforms more closely
to the prevailing practice followed by companies in its
industry.

The cumulative effect of the change in accounting for
patent application costs was $110,063, after reduction for
income taxes of $54,000, and is included in net earnings
for fiscal year 1990. The effect of the change in fiscal year
1990 was to increase net earnings by approximately $25,000
($.01 per share).

The following proforma amounts show the effect on net
earnings for fiscal years 1989 and 1988, assuming the
new method was applied retroactively.

1989 1988

Net earnings (loss) as reported $892,687  $(523,798)
Adjustment assuming the new method

was applied retroactively (11,200) 10,500

$881,487 $(513,298)
Net earnings (loss) per share

as reported $.38 $(.24)
Adjustment — 01

$38 823

REPORTING ENTITY

CORNING INCORPORATED (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 (in Part): Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

Corning operates on a fiscal year ending on the Sunday
nearest December 31. The three most recent fiscal years
ended on December 30, 1990, December 31, 1989, and
January 1, 1989, each of which included 52 weeks.

The consolidated financial statements include the
accounts of all significant subsidiary companies. All sig-
nificant intercompany accounts and transactions are
eliminated. Major subsidiaries are consolidated at dates
up to one month earlier than the consolidated balance
sheet dates.

The equity method of accounting is used for invest-
ments in associated companies in which Corning’s
interest is from 20 to 50 percent.

Effective with the first quarter 1990, Corning began to
consolidate the results of Siecor Corporation, formerly an
unconsolidated affiliate, into its financial statements.
Siecor, which primarily manufactures passive optical
transmission equipment, is a venture with Siemens AG of
Germany. The consolidation occurred as a result of revi-
sions to the Shareholders’ Agreement between Corning
and Siemens AG. Financial data presented for previous
periods have not been restated to reflect the consolidation
of Siecor. The consolidation is not material to financial
position or the results of operations for the periods
presented and had no effect on previously reported net
income or earnings per share amounts, which included
Siecor on an equity basis.

HANDY & HARMAN (DEC)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a-Principles of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts
of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries. All
significant intercompany items have been eliminated.
Investments in 20%-50% owned companies are
accounted for by the equity basis of accounting. Accord-
ingly, to conform to this accounting method, the 1989 and
1988 statements of income have been restated to reflect
adjustments of line items for revenue and costs applicable
to the automotive replacement segment’s business trans-
ferred to the joint venture described in Note 10 and reflect
the losses of this business on the equity basis of
accounting.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
10—Joint Venture

On June 1, 1990 the Company transferred its automotive
replacement segment’s business and contributed certain
assets and liabilities amounting to $22,912,000 and
$1,1566,000, respectively, to a joint venture named GO/DAN
Industries (GDI) (a partnership). The Company and its
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joint venture partner, The Allen Group Inc. (Allen) have equal
control over activities of GDI.

In accordance with the joint venture agreement, Allen
has a preference to the first $7,000,000 of net earnings
generated by GDI of which $1,611,000 was credited to
Allen’s partnership account in 1990. In 1991 Allen is enti-
tled to a preference payment of the lesser of net earnings
or $3,389,000. At the end of each subsequent fiscal year,
Allen is entitled to the net earnings for that year until the
$7,000,000 preference is attained. At the attainment of the
preference, all subsequent net earnings are shared equally
by the partners. Losses in any fiscal year are shared
equally by the partners.

The Company retained ownership of manufacturing
facilities used by GDI and rental income of $470,000 was
earned by the Company for leasing these facilities to GDI.
Included in receivables at December 31, 1990 is a net
amount due from GDI of $14,644,000 which is primarily the
result of sales by GDI of finished goods owned by the
Company.

Summarized financial information from the audited
financial statements of GDI for the six month period ended
November 30, 1990 is as follows:

Assets $69,140,000
Non Current Assets 22,824,000
Current Liabilities 52,786,000
Partnership Equity 39,178,000
Total Revenues 72,153,000
Gross Profit 19,866,000
Net Earnings 1,611,000

TABLE 1-9: NONHOMOGENEOUS OPERATIONS

CONSOLIDATED
Number of Companies

1990 1989 1988 1987
Credit ....................... 59 69 64 17
Insurance .................... 36 33 34 7
Leasing...................... 9 11 8 2
Banks ....................... 7 8 1 1
RealEstate ................... 21 15 N/C N/C

N/C—Not Compiled.

CONSOLIDATION POLICIES

Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51 states in part:

1. The purpose of consolidated statements is to
present, primarily for the benefit of the shareholders
and creditors of the parent company, the results of
operations and the financial position of a parent com-
pany and its subsidiaries essentially as if the group
were a single company with one or more branches or
divisions. There is a presumption that consolidated
statements are more meaningful than separate state-
ments and that they are usually necessary for a fair
presentation when one of the companies in the group
directly or indirectly has a controlling financial
interest in the other companies.

5. Consolidated statements should disclose the con-
solidation policy which is being followed. In most
cases this can be made apparent by the headings or
other information in the statements, but in other
cases a footnote is required.

Effective for financial statements for fiscal years ending
after December 15, 1988, Statement of Financial Account-
ing Standards No. 94 amends ARB No. 51 by requiring the
consolidation of subsidiaries having nonhomogenous
operations. Consequently, with rare exception, the survey
companies consolidate nonhomogeneous operations.
Table 1-9 shows the nature of nonhomogeneous opera-
tions consolidated by the survey companies.

The financial statement formats used to present non-
homogeneous operation vary considerably. Of the 86 sur-
vey companies disclosing nonhomogeneous operations,
53 presented a classified balance sheet showing either
certain or no accounts for nonhomogeneous operations,
11 presented an unclassified balance sheet, 12 presented
a classified balance sheet as to industrial operations but
showing assets and liabilities of nonhomogeneous opera-
tions separately, and 8 presented a consolidating balance
sheet. :

Examples of consolidation practice disclosures follow.

Classified Balance Sheet

THE ALLEN GROUP INC. (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 (in Part): Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies
Basis of Consolidation: The Company’s consolidated
financial statements include the accounts of its lease
finance and all significant subsidiaries. Investments in
and advances to joint ventures in which the Company has
a 50% ownership interest are accounted for by the equity
method. Under such method, the Company’s share of net
earnings (or losses) is included as a separate item in the
consolidated statement of income.

Note 3: Lease Finance Subsidiaries

The Company’s wholly-owned lease finance operations
consist principally of The Allen Group Leasing Corp.
(“‘Leasing’’) in the United States. Information in connec-
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tion with lease receivables included in the consolidated
balance sheets is as follows (amounts in thousands):

Non-

1990: Current  Current Total
Direct financing lease
receivables $29,605 $69,765 $99,370
Residual value of leased
equipment 525 2,853 3,378
Other leasing assets 1,899 2,543 4,442
Unearned lease finance income (11,460) (17,847) (29,307)
Allowance for credit losses (960) (702) (1,662)
$19,609 $56,612 $76,221
1989:
Direct financing lease
receivables $22,061 $48,548 $70,609
Residual value of leased
equipment 613 2,039 2,652
Other leasing assets 1,659 4,728 6,387
Unearned lease finance income (6,699) (13,115) (19,814)
Allowance for credit losses (786) (569) (1,355)
$16,848 941,631 $58,479

As described in Note 2, lease receivables have been
pledged as collateral under the Company’s revolving
credit facility. The aggregate maturities of direct financing
lease receivables as of December 31, 1990 were as follows
(amounts in thousands):

1901 $29,605
1992 o 24,226
1993 .. 19,631
1994 . 15,472
1995 and thereafter ............................ 10,436

$99,370

Essentially all of the Company'’s direct financing lease
receivables are with companies or individuals operating
within the automotive repair industry, incuding auto
dealerships, garages and other similar repair and inspec-
tion facilities, and approximately 38% of lease receivables
are with lessees located in the state of California.

In 1890 and 1989 (none in 1988), Leasing sold approxi-
mately $21,5600,000 and $4,400,000, respectively, of net
lease receivables (including certain sales with limited
recourse) to financial institutions, for proceeds of
$25,700,000 and $5,200,000, respectively. These sales
resulted in aggregate net gains of approximately $900,000
and $100,000, in 1990 and 1989, respectively, which are
included in lease finance income. The aggregate cost of
equipment purchased by the lease finance subsidiaries
from the Company amounted to approximately $64,000,000,
$32,200,000 and $24,900,000 in 1990, 1989 and 1988,
respectively.

AMOCO CORPORATION (DEC)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 (in Part): Accounting Policies
Principles of consolidation
—The ongoing operations of all subsidiaries in which the
corporation directly or indirectly owns more than 50 per-
cent of the voting stock are included in the consolidated

financial statements. The corporation also consolidates
its proportionate share of assets, liabilities, and results of
operations of oil and gas joint ventures and undivided
interest in pipeline companies. Investments in other com-
panies in which less than a majority interest is held are
generally accounted for by the equity method. Certain
amounts in the Consolidated Statement of income have
been reclassified for comparative purposes.

5. Amoco Credit Corporation
Prior to January 1, 1988, the corporation accounted for its
investment in Amoco Credit Corporation (Credit) by the
equity method. As described in Note 1, the accounts of all
subsidiaries are now consolidated. Credit’s business con-
sists of financing, through the issuance of commercial
paper and other short-term borrowings, certain of the cor-
poration’s receivables.

Summary financial information for Credit included in
the consolidated financial statements is provided in the
following table:

millions of dollars 1990 1989 1988
For the years ended December 31:
Revenues $79 $73 $65
Net income $31 $§25 $ 21
At December 31:

Assets, principally accounts receivable  $403  $355 $307
Liabilities, principally short-term

borrowings $346 $304 $261
Shareholder’s equity $57 $51 §$46

MOTOROLA, INC. (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In millions, except as noted)

Note 1 (in Part): Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies
Consolidation:
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts
of the Company and all majority-owned subsidiaries. All
significant intercompany accounts and transactions are
eliminated in consolidation.

Note 7 (in Part): Other Financial Data
Financial data of consolidated financial subsidiaries

1990 1989 1988
$15 § 31 26

Tota! revenue

Net earnings 5 7 7
Total assets 120 166 296
Total liabilities (84) (134 (249)
Stockholders’ investments

and advances $36 $ 32 §$ 4

The Company’s finance subsidiary purchases cus-
tomer obligations under long-term contracts from the
Company at net carrying value. Its insurance subsidiary
insures some of the Company's property risks.

Finance subsidiary interest income of $15 million in
1990, $31 million in 1989 and $26 million in 1988 is
included in Net sales. Interest expense of $8 million in
1990, $20 million in 1989 and $16 million in 1988 is
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included in Manufacturing and other costs of sales. In
addition, finance receivables of $93 million in 1990 and
$122 million-in 1989 are included in Other assets.

The Company’s cash payments for interest expense
(net of amounts capitalized) were $113 million in 1990,
$175 million in 1989 and $157 million in 1988.

HONEYWELL INC. (DEC)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in Millions Except Per Share Amounts)

Note 1 (in Part): Accounting Policies

Consolidation The consolidated financial statements
and accompanying data include Honeywell Inc. and sub-
sidiaries. All material transactions between companies
are eliminated.

Note 13—Finance and Real Estate Subsidiaries
Following is summarized financial information pertaining
to finance and real estate subsidiaries:

1990 1989 1988

Condensed Income Statement

Revenues and other income $195 $19.6 § 512
Costs and expenses 14.4 14.6 19.7
Income taxes 1.7 1.5 1.7

Net income

Condensed Statement of
Financial Position

$ 34 § 35 § 298

Receivables $191.2 $189.5 $186.5
Receivables from Honeywell 241 23.9 251
Property 42.8 471 48.3
Other 2.4 2.5 2.2

$260.5 $263.0 $262.1
Payables and accruals $ 46 $ 83 § 97
Short-term debt 0.5 2.0 0.5
Long-term debt 56.4 58.6 60.5
Payables to Honeywell 42.2 40.7 41.4
Stockholder’s equity 156.8 153.4  150.0

$260.5 $263.0 $262.1

Receivables include customer obligations purchased
from Honeywell by Honeywell Finance Inc. Collection of
these receivables is performed by Honeywell and the cost
of this service is paid by Honeywell Finance Inc.

Revenues and other income consist primarily of financing
fees paid by Honeywell to Honeywell Finance Inc. and
rental income from buildings owned by the real estate sub-
sidiaries. The financing fees are based upon expenses
and interest income. Fees are paid to Honeywell Finance
Inc. under a formula providing fixed-charges coverage of
150 percent. In 1988 revenues included $29.8 from gains
on sales of real estate.

UNOCAL CORPORATION (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 (in Part): Summary of Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

For the purposes of this report, Unocal Corporation (Uno-
cal) and its consolidated subsidiary, Union Oil Company
of California (Union Oil), will be referred to as the
company.

The consolidated financial statements of the company
include the accounts of subsidiaries more than 50 percent
owned, except for certain Brazilian subsidiaries which are
accounted for by the cost method due to currency restric-
tions imposed by the Brazilian government. Investments
in affiliates owned 50 percent or less are accounted for by
the equity method. Under the equity method, the invest-
ments are stated at cost plus the company’s equity in
undistributed earnings after acquisition. Income taxes
estimated to be payable when earnings are distributed are
included in deferred income taxes.

Note 15—Consolidated Finance Subsidiary

The company’s consolidated financial statements include
the accounts of Union Oil Credit Corporation (UOCC), a
wholly owned finance subsidiary. Business operations
consist primarily of financing certain customer obligations
of Union Oil resulting from retail sales of petroleum
products, automotive accessories and other merchandise
charged on credit cards. The financial position and results
of operations of UOCC are shown below. Short-term notes
payable consists of commercial paper issued by various
banks under agreements with UOCC. Proceeds from the
issuance of these short-term borrowings are used by
Union Oil for working capital needs.

Financial Position

December 31
Millions of Dollars 1990 1989
Total assets, primarily
accounts receivable $230 $174
Short-term notes payable $138 $ 84
Shargholder’s equity _92 _ 9
Total liabilities and
shareholder’s equity $230 $174

Statement of Earnings
1990 1989 1988

Millions of Dollars
Service charge income from
Union Oil $10 $11 $13
Interest and administrative
expense
Earnings before taxes
on income
Provision for taxes on income

Net earnings $

Dl w N
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Classified Balance Sheet—Assets/Liabilities
Of Nonhomogeneous Operations

Shown Separately

FORD MOTOR COMPANY (DEC)

Consolidated Balance Sheet

(in millions) 1990 1989
ASSETS
Automotive
Cash and cash equivalents $ 45993 §$ 4,045.3
Marketable securities, at cost
and accrued interest
(approximates market) 1,478.7 1,680.2
Total cash, cash equivalents
and marketable securities 6,078.0 5,725.5
Receivables 3,537.0 4,703.4
Inventories 71154 6,816.8
Other current assets 2,448.8 1,918.9
Net current receivable from
Financial Services 319.5 344.6
Total current assets 19,498.7 19,509.2
Equity in net assets of affiliated
companies 2,180.0 4,178.5
Property, net 22,207.8 18,135.4
Other assets 6,679.5 3,635.1
Net noncurrent receivable from
Financial Services 257.4 361.0
Total Automotive assets 50,823.4 45.819.2
Financial Services
Cash and cash equivalents 2,168.5 1,376.0
Investments in securities 7,636.6 7,719.0
Receivables and lease investments,
net 105,515.5 99,191.2
Other assets 7,518.7 6,787.9
Total Financial Services assets 122,839.3  115,074.1
Total Assets $173,662.7 $160,893.3
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1990 1989
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY
Automotive
Trade payables $ 71819 § 7,486.8
Other payables 2,306.7 2,677.2
Accrued liabilities 8,370.2 6,794.7
Income taxes payable 155.8 684.9
Debt payable within one year 2,849.4 2,537.0
Total current liabilities 20,864.0 20,180.6
Long-term debt 4,552.9 1,137.0
Other liabilities 8,854.9 6,948.8
Deferred income taxes 1,515.7 1,876.9
Total Automotive liabilities 35,787.5 30,143.3
Financial Services
Payables 1,408.6 1,336.0
Debt 88,117.0 81,734.2
Deposit accounts 17,892.7 17,642.1
Deferred income taxes 1,587.5 1,515.9
Other liabilities and deferred
income 4,254 .4 4,288.4
Net payable to Automotive 576.9 705.6
Total Financial Services liabilities  113,837.1  107,222.2
Preferred stockholders’ equity in
subsidiary company 800.0 800.0
Stockholders’ equity
Capital stock
Preferred stock, par value $1.00
a share - -
Common stock, par value $1.00
a share (437.7 and 437.4
shares issued) 437.7 437.4
Class B stock, par value $1.00 a
share (35.4 shares issued) 35.4 35.4
Capital in excess of par value of
stock 766.2 574.2
Foreign-currency translation
adjustments and other 823.3 (23.2)
Earnings retained for use in
business 21,175.5 21,704.0
Total stockholders’ equity 23,238.1 22,727.8
Total Liabilities and
Stockholders’ Equity $173,662.7 $160,893.3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note 1 (in Part): Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include all majority-
owned subsidiaries and reflect the assets, liabilities,
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Section 1: General

operating results and cash flows for two broad business
segments: Automotive and Financial Services. The assets
and liabilities of the Automotive segment are classified as
current or noncurrent and those of the Financial Services
segment are unclassified. Affiliates that are 20-50%
owned, principally Autolatina and Mazda Motor Corpora-
tion, and subsidiaries where control is expected to be
temporary, principally investments in certain dealerships,
are generally accounted for on an equity basis.

The 1990 financial statements reflect the sale of Ford
Aerospace Corporation (‘‘Ford Aerospace’’). The 1989
financial statements reflect the sale of Rouge Steel Com-
pany (‘*‘Rouge Steel’’) and the acquisitions of Associates
First Capital Corporation (‘‘The Associates’’) and Jaguar
Limited (‘Jaguar’’). See Notes 3 and 17 for further details

regarding these transactions.

AMERICAN BRANDS, INC. (DEC)

Consolidated Balance Sheet

(In millions, except per share amounts)

1990 1989
Assets
Consumer products and corporate
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents. . ........ ..ottt e 895 § 82.9
Accounts receivable, MBL .. ... .. ... e 1,403.7 1,093.3
Y111 0] 1T P 2,032.6 1,675.0
L0 R VL {0 B O 284.2 192.8
Total consumer products and corporate currentassets ... .......... ... ... .. ... 3,810.0 3,044.0
Property, plant and equipment, Met. .. ...ttt e 1,471.5 1,188.1
Intangibles resulting from business acquisitions, net . ............ .. i 2,972.9 1,829.3
L0 LT T P 329.0 478.6
Total consumer products and corporate assets .................. . ... ... i.iiiiiiiiiii..s 8,583.4 6,540.0
Life insurance

VB MBI . ... i e e e e 4,341.6 4,050.8
Cash and cash @QUIVAIENES .. ... ... .. . .ttt e e e 64.5 66.4
Accrued InVeStMENt INCOME . ... ...ttt et e i e 89.4 82.3
Deferred policy acquisition COSES. .. ... ...t e e 386.9 372.5
Present value of future profits, et ........ ... .. i 186.3 193.8
Intangibles resulting from business acquisitions, net . ........... ... i i 93.2 96.5
[0 T T O PP 89.9 89.3
Total life Insurance assets . ........... ... ... ..iiiuii ittt 5,251.8 4,951.6
L R R T $13,835.2  $11,491.6
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1990 1989
Liabilities and stockholders’ equity
Consumer products and corporate
Current liabilities
Notes payable t0 DaNKS .. ...ttt e 82.5 149.4
MM Rl PP ... . ittt e et e e e 755.9 434.9
ACCOUNtS Payable . .. ... . e 434.6 361.9
Accrued excise and Other 1aXeS . . . ...t e it ittt e e e 1,245.3 922.0
Accrued expenses and other liabilities. . ............ i 758.9 628.7
Current portion of long-term debt . ... ......uuuiitiii e 7.0 155.7
Total consumer products and corporate current liabilities ............. ... ... ... ......... 3,284.2 2,652.6
LONG-erm dEbt . .. . e e 2,433.8 1,717.4
[ (D BT T eV P 259.0 222.8
Total consumer products and corporate liabilities . . ............ ... .. ... .. . i, 5,977.0 4,592.8
Life insurance
Policy reserves and Claims .. ........ ...ttt e 2,111.5 2,007.5
Investment CONtract dePoSItS. ... ...\ttt e e 1,626.2 1,456.9
Other policyholders’ fUNDS. . ... ..ot e e 187.3 179.7
Other Al . . . .ttt eaiaaeieiaeeieees 143.2 153.2
Total life insurance liabilities ............ ... ... ... oiiuuiii i 4,068.2 3,797.3
Redeemable preferred stock
$2.75 Preferred stock, without par value, stated value and
mandatory redemption price $30.50 per Share .. ... ...ttt 131.9 135.6
Convertible preferred stock—redeemable at Company’s option
$2.67 Convertible Preferred stock, without par value, stated value $3050 pershare ................ 25.0 27.8
Common stockhoiders’ equity
Common stock, par value $3.125 per share, shares issued 1990, 229.6; 1989, 114.8
(unadjusted for two-for-one stock Split) ... 717.4 358.7
Additional paid-in Capital . . .. ... e 137.7 87.6
Unrealized depreciation on marketable equity securities ................coooviriiiiin ., (15.4) (1.7)
Foreign CUrrenCy adjUStmBNTS . . . ...ttt e e e 33.3 (130.5)
RetaiNed BaIMINGS . ... . .ttt e e e 3,386.7 3,438.2
Treasury StOCK, @t COSE . .. ...ttt ettt et et e et e e et ettt (626.6) (814.2)
Total Common stockholders’ equity ........... ... ...iiuuiine it eiteaeaaeeaaeeans, 3,633.1 2,938.1
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity. . ........... ... ... ...oiuuiiuiininiiinnn.... $13,835.2  $11,491.6
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Significant Accounting Policies (in Part)
Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
accounts of the Company and all majority-owned subsidi-
aries. Balance sheet accounts are segregated into two
categories. Consumer products and corporate accounts
are classified as current or non-current, whereas the life
insurance accounts are unclassified, in accordance with
industry practice. In 1988 and 1989, the fiscal year-end of
certain subsidiaries of Gallaher Limited and ACCO
ranged from September 30 to November 30 to facilitate
year-end closing. Effective with 1990, the fiscal year-end
of these subsidiaries has been changed to November 30.

Certain financial statement amounts have been reclas-
sified to conform to the 1990 presentation.

THE FRANKLIN LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY
Summarized income statement information for Franklin
Life and its subsidiaries is as follows:

Summarized cash flow information is as follows:

(In millions) 1990 1989 1988
Operating activities
Income from operations $941 $1003 $ 82.0
Depreciation and amortization 7.6 79 11.0
(ain on dispositions and
investments, net (7.6) (14.4) 6.9)
Increase in deferred policy
acquisition costs (144) (18.9) (31.1)

Increase in insurance policy and
investment contract related

liabilities 217.7 1955 169.4
Other, net (25.1) (46.7) (8.3
Net cash provided from
operating activities 272.3 2237 216.1

Investing activities
Additions to property, plant and
equipment (3.6)
Sale of operations, net of taxes
Purchases of investments
Proceeds from the sale of

(3.0) (8.6)
- 376.5 —
(727.2) (880.7) (781.2)

— investments:
In millions 1990 1989 1988 Fixed maturities 740 1227 763
Revenues Other 164.1 721 86.1
Premiums $394.6 $411.4 $480.8 Proceeds from maturity of
Net investment income 397.2 4005 409.5 investments 209.7 2859  350.0
Other income 13.7 19.1 33.1 Net cash used by
. 805.5 831.0 9234 investing activities (283.0)  (26.5) (277.4)
JInsurance benefits Financing activities
Benefits paid or provided and Dividends to parent (49.8) (266.2) (55.4)
change in policy reserves 436.9 4489 525.1 Deposits on annuity and other
Dividends to policyholders 90.2 85.2 77.2 financial products 2176 1915 2145

Advertising, selling and adminis-
trative expenses
Amortization of deferred policy

acquisition costs 58.3 57.6 57.6
Other 79.6 79.5 105.7
Restructuring charge (credit) — 5.7 (34.5)
665.0 676.9 731.1

Operating income 140.5 1541 1923
Income taxes 46.4 53.8 110.3
Net income $941 $100.3 $ 82.0

Withdrawals of annuity and

other financial products (159.0) (121.7) (104.2)

Net cash provided (used) in

financing activities 8.8 (196.4) 549
Net (decrease) increase in cash
and cash equivalents $(19) $08 § (6.4

On March 31, 1989, Franklin sold the capital stock of
Southland for approximately $433.5 million in cash. The
sale resulted in the recognition of a pre-tax restructuring
credit of $34.5 million and a net income charge of $22.4
million in 1988 and a pre-tax restructuring charge of $5.7
million and net income charge of $3.8 million in 1989.
Southland'’s revenues and net income for the year ended
December 31, 1988 were $216 million and $26.8 million,
respectively.

Generally, Franklin is restricted by the insurance laws of
its domiciliary state as to amounts that can be transferred
to the Company in the form of dividends, loans or
advances without the approval of the Director of Insur-
ance. Under these restrictions, dividends in any twelve-
month period aggregating in excess of $80 million and
loans or advances in excess of $131 million will require the
approval the Director.
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Unclassified Balance Sheet

DANA CORPORATION (DEC)

Balance Sheet

$ in thousands 1990 1989
ASSETS
Cash $ 42399 § 71,100
Marketable securities, at cost which
approximates market 58,580 233,098
Accounts receivable, less allowance
for doubtful accounts of $19,412
(1989-$17,583) 688,382 662,725
Loans receivable 106,985 765,308
Inventories
Raw materials 159,758 155,372
Work in process and finished goods 536,080 556,149
Total inventories 695,838 711,521
Lease financing 904,243 854,353
Investments and other assets 785,082 809,193
Property, plant and equipment, net 1,231,684 1,118,139
Total Assets $4,513,193  $5,225,437
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY
Depositors’ accounts $ — $ 813,417
Short-term debt 766,987 670,417
. Accounts payable and other liabilities 681,041 697,504
Deferred income taxes 241,427 249,146
Deferred pension liabilities 158,705 126,826
Long-term debt 1,486,377 1,522,264
Total Liabilities 3,334,537 4,079,574
Minority interest in consolidated
subsidiaries 130,052 125,933
Shareholders’ Equity
Common stock, $1 par value,
120,000,000 shares authorized;
59,550,390 shares
issued (59,472,272 in 1989) 59,550 59,472
Additional paid-in capital 327,742 325,131
Retained earnings 1,307,372 1,297,340
Treasury stock
(1900-18,537,658 shares,
1989-18,567,729) (611,608)  (612,128)
Deferred translation
adjustments (22,650) (49,885)
Deferred pension expense ~(11,802)
Total Shareholders’ Equity 1,048,604 1,019,930

Total Liabilities and

Shareholders’ Equity $4,513,193  $5,225,437

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Principles of Consolidation

Dana’s consolldated financial statements include the
accounts of all significant domestic and international
subsidiaries, including its wholly-owned financial subsidi-

ary, Diamond Financial Holdings, Inc. Subsidiaries held
for sale are carried at the lower of market or net book value
at measurement date. Affiliated companies (20% to 50%
Dana ownership) are generally recorded in the consoli-
dated statements using the equity method of accounting.
Operations of subsidiaries and affiliates outside North
America are generally included for periods ended within
two months of Dana’s year end to ensure preparation
of consolidated financial statements on a timely basis.
Less than 20% owned companies are included in the
consolidated accounts at the cost of Dana’s investment.
Dividends, royalties and fees from these affiliates are
recorded in Dana’s consolidated statements when received.

International Operations

Local currencies are used as the functional currencies
except in hyper-inflationary countries such as Brazil and
Mexico. The following is a summary of the more signifi-
cant financial information of the consolidated interna-
tional subsidiaries:

December 31

$ in thousands 1990 1989 1988
Assets $1,038,220 $ 835,129 $ 729,181
Liabilities 464,135 371,874 314,186
Net sales 1,432,440 1,266,582 1,225,750
Net income

(including

translation

losses of

$40,334 in 1990,

$14,473 in 1989 and

$14,770 in 1988) 65,267 84,478 67,373
Dana’s equity in -

Net assets 449,961 354,397 312,668

Net income 47,598 62,217 48,793

Dana’s historical cost investment in these international
subsidiaries was $177,693,000 at December 31, 1990.

Dana has equity interests (20% to 50% ownership) in a
number of affiliated companies in South America, Asia
and other areas of the world. The following is a summary
of the more significant information of affiliated companies
accounted for on the equity method:

December 31

$ in thousands 1990 1989 1988
Current assets $400,970 $354,380  $401,401
Other assets 300,864 299,780 275,780
Current liabilities 216,061 172,546 205,068
Other liabilities 186,911 196,183 240,770
Shareholders’ equity 298,862 285,431 231,343
Net sales 848,165 838,789 661,708
Gross profit 193,511 190,411 161,779
Net income 63,411 45,369 62,346
Dana’s equity »

in net income 29,465 18,749 31,542

Cumulative undistributed earnings of international
subsidiaries and affiliates for which U.S. income taxes,
exclusive of foreign tax credits, have not been provided
approximated $363,857,000 at December 31, 1990. Manage-
ment intends to permanently reinvest undistributed earn-
ings of international subsidiaries and affiliates and
accordingly no U.S. income taxes have been provided on
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these undistributed earnings. If the total undistributed
earnings of affiliates and international subsidiaries had
been remitted in 1990, the additional tax provision would
be substantially offset by foreign tax credits.

Significant Subsidiary

Diamond Financial Holdings, Inc. is a wholly-owned
financial subsidiary which includes leasing companies, a
savings and loan company and real estate development
and management companies. Diamond is included in
Dana consolidated financial statements.

A summary of Diamond’s financial position and results
of operations is as follows:

December 31

$ in thousands 1990 1989
Assets
Cash and investment
securities $ 26,935 $ 223,006
Loans receivable 106,985 765,308
Lease financing 968,204 925,059
Other assets 321,334 345,574
Total Assets $1,423,458 $2,258,947
Liabilities and Shareholder's
Equity
Depositors’ accounts $ - $ 813,417
Notes payable 1,064,801 999,995
Other liabilities 270,219 331,407
Shareholder’s equity 88,438 114,128
Total Liabilities and
Shareholder’s Equity $1,423,458 $2,258,947
Year Ended December 31
1990 1989 1988
Revenue from
products and
services $300,422 $284,186 $307,352
Interest expense
on depositors’
accounts and
borrowings 151,366 136,562 129,620
Cost of sales 12,295 14,463 50,712
Other costs and
expenses 182,349 126,235 119,673
346,010 277,260 300,005
Income (loss)
before income
taxes (45,588) 6,926 7,347
Estimated
income tax
benefits 8,866 4,470 11,569
Income (loss)
before equity
in earnings of
affiliates (36,722) 11,396 18,916
Equity in earnings
of affiliates 10,270 2,653 1,102
Net income (loss) $(26,452) $ 14,049 $ 20,018

Diamond’s 1990 results were reduced by $25,000,000
relating to reserves provided to reflect the declining value
of its real estate and commercial real estate loan portfolio.

Results of operations for 1990, 1989 and 1988, respec-
tively, include the operations of Diamond Savings and
Loan Company, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Diamond.
DSL is included in investments held for sale at December
13, 1990 and is valued at net book value. At December 31,
1989 DSL is included in the balance sheet accounts as a
consolidated subsidiary.

TRINITY INDUSTRIES, INC. (MAR)

Consolidated Balance Sheet

(in millions) 1990 1989
Assets
Cash and short-term investments $ 74 $ 64
Receivables 156.9 141.
Inventories 188.9 225.9
Property, plant and equipment,

at cost:

Excluding Leasing Subsidiaries 360.8 325.8

Leasing Subsidiaries 375.2 367.5

Less accumulated depreciation
Excluding Leasing Subsidiaries (133.7) (122.5)
Leasing Subsidiaries (110.9) (97.1)
Other assets 30.3 31.1
$874.9 $878.1

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

Short-term debt $ 29.5 $ 32.0
Accounts payable and accrued
liabilities 83.3 90.6
Long-term debt:
Excluding Leasing Subsidiaries 91,6 131.4
Leasing Subsidiaries 266.4 281.5
Deferred income taxes 84.2 72.7
QOther liabilities 35.1 42.2
Stockholders' equity: (shares
in millions)
Common stock—par value $1 per
share; authorized 40.0 shares;
shares issued and outstanding
in 1990—19.4; in 1989—18.1 19.4 18.1
Captial in excess of par value 75.8 44.4
Retained earnings 189.6 165.2
284.8 227.7

$874.9  $878.1

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (In Part)

The financial statements of Trinity Industries, Inc. and
its consolidated subsidiaries (‘‘Trinity,’ or the *‘Com-
pany’') include the accounts of all significant majority-
owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany
accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

The Company accounts for its wholly-owned Leasing
Subsidiaries in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standard No. 94, “‘Consolidation of All
Majority-Owned Subsidiaries,” which requires the consoli-
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dation of all majority-owned subsidiaries, unless control is
temporary or does not reside with the majority owner. The
Company's financial statements include the consolidation
of the accounts of Trinity Industries Leasing Company
("'TILC’") and Trinity Railcar Leasing Corporation
(“TRLC"). TILC and TRLC collectively are referred to as
the ‘‘Leasing Subsidiaries.”
Consolidating Financial Statements of Trinity Industries, Inc.
The following financial statements present the consolidat-
ing income statement and consolidating balance sheet of
Trinity. Certain accounts have been reclassified to cor-
respond to consolidated financial statement presentation
of Trinity. Presentation of accounts does not conform to
separate entity financial presentation. These consolidating
financial statements are presented to provide additional
analysis of, and should be read in conjunction with, the
consolidated financial statements of Trinity.
Consolidating Income Statement
Year Ended March 31, 1990 (in millions)
Leasing
Trinity Subsidiaries Eliminations Total
RBVBNUES . ... o e $1,254.9 $66.7 $(11.5) $1,310.1
Operating costs:
Cost Of reVenUES .. .........ouiniiii i 1,114.9 39.0 (11.5) 1,142.4
Selling, engineering and administrative expenses .................. 60.7 0.2 - 60.9
Interest expense of Leasing Subsidiaries ........................ - 26.8 — 26.8
Retirement plan expense .................ccciiiiiiiiiirini.n. 5.8 - - 5.8
Equity in income of Leasing Subsidiaries before income taxes . ... .... (17.9) — 17.9 —
1,163.5 66.0 _ 64 1,235.9
Operating profit .......... ... .. . 91.4 07 (17.9) 74.2
Other (income) deductions:
Interestincome ........ ... ... {0.4) 0.4) - (0.8)
Interest expense—excluding Leasing Subsidiaries . ................. 33.2 (16.3) — 16.9
Other Bt . ... e (1.7) (0.5) — (2.2)
31.1 (17.2) - 13.9
Income before incometaxes ................. .. i, 60.3 17.9 (17.9) 60.3
Provison for income taxes:
0T (11| 71 3.0 (3.0) 71
Deferred . . ..o e 15.0 3.1 3.1) 15.0
22.1 6.1 _61) 2.1
Netincome . ... i e $ 382 $11.8 $(11.8) $ 382




62

Consolidating Balance Sheet
March 31, 1990 (in millions)

Section 1: General

Leasing
Trinity Subsidiaries Eliminations Total
Assets
Cash and short-term investments ....................cccoevinnt. $ 69 $ 05 $ — $ 74
Receivables . .. ........ it e 156.0 0.9 - 156.9
IVEMIOMES . . oo e 188.9 - - 188.9
Property, plant and equipment, at cost:
Excluding Leasing Subsidiaries .. ...............c..ccoiiiiiianne. 360.8 — — 360.8
Leasing Subsidiaries. .. ......... ... . ... - 427.8 (52.6) 375.2
Less accumulated depreciation:
Excluding Leasing Subsidiaries .. .............. ... ..., (133.7) - - (133.7)
Leasing Subsidiaries . . ............o e - (110.9) — (110.9)
Note receivable fromparent. ......................coiiiiiiiinns - 173.7 (173.7) -
Investment in Leasing Subsidiaries. . .................... ... 121.8 - (121.8) -
OthBr @SS .\ttt e _ 315 _ 49 _(12.1) _ 303
$738.2 $496.9 $(360.2) $874.9
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Short-termdebt. ... e $ 29.5 $ — $ — $ 295
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities. .......................... 79.4 3.9 - 83.3
Long-term debt:
Excluding Leasing Subsidiaries . . ............. .. ... ... o 265.3 — (173.7) 91.6
Leasing Subsidiaries. .............o i — 266.4 — 266.4
Deferred income taxes . .. ........ ..ottt - 96.3 (12.1) 84.2
Deferred INCOME . ...ttt e e 52.6 — (52.6) —_
Otherliabilities . . ... i e 26.6 85 — 35.1
Stockholders’ equity ............ . e 2848 121.8 _(121.8) 2848
738.2 $496.9 $(360.2) $874.9
Condensed Combined Financial Information of Consolidated Leasing Subsidiaries
(in millions)
March 31
1990 1989
Assets
Total assets (principally railcars and barges) . ...........c.oeiiiiiiiii e $496.9 $496.6
Liabilities and Stockholder’s Equity
Total liabilities (principally long-termdebt)........... ... i $375.1 $386.5
Stockholder’s equity (including retained earnings of $965 and $84.7 in 1990
and 1989, respectively) . .. ..ot e 121.8 110.1
$496.9 $496.6
Year Ended March 31
Income 1990 1989 1988
ROVBIUES . . ..ttt ettt e e $66.7 $71.2 $72.8
INCOME DETOrE INCOME tAXES . . . . o .ottt e ettt e i ia e $17.9 $18.5 $16.6
Provision fOr iNCOME 1aXES . . ... ..ottt ettt e 6.1 6.3 6.2
21101 11T~ U $11.8 $12.2 $10.4

Future minimum rentals on leases in each fiscal year are approximately $37.1 in 1991, $31.7 in 1992, $24.1 in 1993, $199 in 1994, $169 in 1995,

and $485 thereafter,
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Deconsolidation—Reduction of Voting Interest

BAKER HUGHES INCORPORATED (SEP)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 (in Part): Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies:

Principles of consolidation:

The consolidated financial statements include the
accounts of Baker Hughes incorporated and all majority-
owned subsidiaries and partnerships (the ‘‘Company).
In July 1990, BJ Services Company (‘‘BJ Services''),
formerly a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
~ completed an initial public offering of approximately 71%

of its common stock. Prior to the offering, the accounts of
BJ Services were included in the company’s financial
statements. Subsequent to the offering, the Company
owned less than a majority voting interest in BJ Services.
Accordingly, BJ Services’ accounts are no longer consoli-
dated, and the Company’s remaining investment in BJ
Services is accounted for by the equity method. Invest-
ments in which ownership interests range from 20 to 50
percent and the Company exercises significant influence
over operating and financial policies are accounted for
using the equity method. Other investments are
accounted for using the cost method. All significant inter-
company accounts and transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation.

Proportionate Consolidation

TESORO PETROLEUM CORPORATION (SEP)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements
for 1990 include the accounts of Tesoro Petroleum Corpora-
tion and its significant subsidiaries. For periods presented
prior to 1990, the consolidated financial statements do not
include the accounts of the Company'’s interest in a joint
venture operating in Bolivia (Tesoro Bolivia). From Janu-
ary 1, 1984 through September 30, 1989, the Company
accounted for its investment in Tesoro Bolivia on the cost
method due to economic conditions in Bolivia which
prevented the timely collections by the joint venture of
receivables from sales of natural gas and condensate
produced in that country. Due to the collection of these
receivables, together with commitments expressed by the
Bolivian Government to continue to support the joint ven-
ture’s efforts in Bolivia, the Company resumed consolidat-
ing its proportionate interest in the current results of
operations and financial positions of the joint venture
effective October 1, 1989. For further information regard-
ing Tesoro Bolivia, see Note C.

All material intercompany accounts and transactions
have been eliminated in consolidation. Certain reclassifi-
cations have been made to reflect current presentation of
financial information.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note C—Investment in Tesoro Bolivia

The Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, Tesoro
Bolivia Petroleum Company, holds an interest in a joint
venture agreement to explore for and produce hydrocar-
bons in Bolivia.. From January 1, 1984 through September
30, 1989, the Company accounted for its investment in
Tesoro Bolivia on the cost method due to economic condi-
tions in Bolivia which prevented the timely collections by
the joint venture of receivables from sales of natural gas
and condensate produced in that country.

During August 1988, the joint venture reached an agree-
ment with the Bolivian Government whereby Tersoro Bolivia
and its joint venture participants would receive commodi-
ties or services from Argentine companies as payment for
receivables due the joint venture as of December 31, 1987,
amounting to $83.1 million. Of this amount, $38.0 million
would be distributed free of restrictions (Unrestricted
Account) and the remaining $45.1 million would be
deposited in a restricted bank account (Restricted
Account) in the United States from which withdrawals would
be made only for certain investments and expenses in
Bolivia. Through September 30, 1989, all of the $83.1 mil-
lion was received, of which $38.0 million available under
the terms of the agreement was distributed, including
$19.0 million to the Company, and $45.1 million was
placed in the Restricted Account.

The agreement further provides that after January 1,
1988, proceeds received from the sale of condensate will
be free of restrictions to the joint venture participants. During
fiscal 1990, Tesoro Bolivia and its joint venture participants
received $1.0 million free of restrictions pursuant to the
agreement. In addition, the agreement provides that
receipts from the sale of natural gas will be placed in the
Restricted Account until cumulative deposits in that account
equal $90.0 million. As of September 30, 1990, $26.7 million
remains to be deposited into the Restricted Account
before Tesoro Bolivia can receive funds free from
restrictions.

The joint venture is continuing to collect for sales of
natural gas and condensate pursuant to the terms of this
agreement. Due to the collection of these receivables,
together with commitments expressed by the Bolivian
Government to continue to support the joint venture’s
efforts in Bolivia, the Company resumed consolidating its
proportionate interest in the current results of operations
of the joint venture effective October 1, 1989. No earnings for
the joint venture for the period January 1, 1984 through
September 30, 1989 have been recognized by the
Company.

Consolidation Includes All Subsidiaries

CROWN CORK & SEAL COMPANY, INC. (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A (in Part): Accounting Policies
The consolidated financial statements include all
subsidiaries.
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D. Foreign Subsidiaries
The condensed financial statements of the majority-
owned international subsidiaries are as follows:

(In millions) 1990 1989 1988

Revenues $1302.2 $842.6 $801.4
Costs and expenses (1200.7) (745.1) (702.8)
Translation and exchange

adjustments ( 11.7) ( 13.6) ( 14.2)
Income tax expense ( 358 ( 28.2) ( 36.9

Net income $ 540 $557 §$475

Foreign exchange losses emanate primarily from the
Company’s holdings in Latin America.

Combined net assets of foreign subsidiaries reflected
in the Consolidated Balance Sheet were:

(In millions) 1990 1989
Cash and short-term ’
investments $ 13.2 $107
Other current assets 396.5 394.9
Goodwill (net) 162.7 170.2
Property, plant and
equipment (net) 4986  476.9
Other assets 14.5 24.4
Total assets 1085.5 1077.1
Current liabilities 354.3 37119
Long-term debt 90.6 94.0
Deferred income taxes 57.2 62.6
Minority equity in
subsidiaries 1.2 .9
Other liabilities 38.3 61.5
Total liabilities 541.6  590.9
Net assets $ 543.9 $486.2

No provision has been made for additonal income taxes
which could result from distribution of earnings of foreign
subsidiaries since such earnings, for the most part, are
permanently invested.

Certain Subsidiaries Not Consolidated

DIBRELL BROTHERS, INCORPORATED (JUN)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note A (in Part): Significant Accounting Policies

The accounts of the Company and its consolidated
subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial
statements after elimination of significant intercompany
accounts and transactions. Fiscal year ends of certain
foreign condolidated subsidiaries of the Company range
from March 31 to May 31 to facilitate reporting of consoli-
dated accounts. The Company accounts for its investment
in certain investee companies under the equity method of
accounting. Investments in certain other foreign investees
and subsidiaries which are combined with other invest-
ments are stated at cost or less than cost since the
Company does not exercise significant influence over
financial or operating policies and because of restrictions

imposed on the transfer of earnings and other economic
uncertainties.

Note C—Investee Companies, Unconsolidated Subsidi-
aries, and Related Parties

On November 15, 1985, the Company acquired the
quotas of capital in Liggett & Myers do Brasil Cigarros
Ltda. [now named Tabasa Tabacos S.A. (Tabasa)] for $28
million. As the result of the resale of these quotas in trans-
actions under which 70% thereof was transferred to a
non-affiliated Brazilian entity and 30% was transferred to
a Brazilian subsidiary of the Company, $18.6 million was
received by the Company. In addition, the Company was
to receive from Tabasa (in which the Company has a 30%
interest) $9.4 million, together with interest, over approxi-
mately seven years. At June 30, 1990 the balance is $7.1
million. Upon repayment of this balance, the non-affiliated
Brazilian entity has the option to purchase the Company’s
30% interest at a defined price.

The combined summarized information for investee
companies, primarily tobacco operations, is approximately
as follows:

1990 1989 1988

Current assets $ 79,952,000 §$ 75,178,000 $ 66,840,000
Non-current

assets 33,159,000 21,150,000 22,360,000
Current

liabilities 68,113,000 51,373,000 46,455,000
Non-current

liabilities 13,661,000 9,234,000 11,268,000
Minority

interest 566,000 2,763,000 -0-
Net sales 143,886,000 127,775,000 105,011,000
Gross profit 16,721,000 22,515,000 20,262,000
Net income 2,949,000 7,170,000 8,216,000

Increases in non-current assets and non-current liabili-
ties for 1990 result primarily from operations of Tabasa.
Decreases in gross profit and net income are also prin-
cipally related to Tabasa, but are mitigated to some extent
by gains from Africa Holding S.A.’s (Africa Holding) opera-
tions in Malawi. Current liabilities and sales increases
relate primarily to Tabasa and Africa Holding operations.

The increases in current assets and liabilities for 1989
result primarily from the Tabasa operation. The increases
in minority interest, net sales and gross profit relate
primarily to Africa Holding. The decrease in net income
for 1989 relates primarily to Tabasa.
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The combined summarized information for unconsoli-
dated subsidiaries, primarily tobacco operations,
reflected at cost in the Consolidated Balance Sheet, is
approximately as follows:

1990 1989 1988

Current

assets $ 9,177,000 $ 9,220,000 $ 22,383,000
Non-current

assets 6,173,000 2,137,000 5,282,000
Current ‘

liabilities 8,398,000 7,988,000 22,030,000
Non-current

liabilities -0- -0- -0-
Minority

interest -0- -0- -0-
Net sales 52,318,000 40,036,000 28,220,000
Gross profit 4,486,000 2,882,000 3,183,000
Net income 1,142,000 527,000 56,000

Increases in sales for 1990 relate primarily to the opera-
tion in Argentina, while increases in non-current assets,
gross profit and net income relate to the operation in
Zimbabwe.

The decrease in assets and liabilities in 1989 relates to
certain entities acquired with van Beek which were sold
during fiscal year 1989. The decrease in gross profit
relates to an entity acquired with Florimex which is being
consolidated in the 1989 fiscal year. The increase in net
income relates to entities acquired with the acquisition of
van Beek.

Balances with related parties, primarily affiliated com-
panies, that are included in the consolidated financial
statements are not material in current or prior years except
as follows:

1990 1989 1988

Trade
receivables
Advances on
purchases
of tobacco
Receivable
from
investee
Accounts
payable:
Trade 3,151,000
Other
income:
Interest
Purchases of
tobacco

$ 3,464,000 $ 1,764,000 $ 2,480,000

22,619,000 13,960,000 9,680,000

7,131,000 8,234,000 9,159,000

4,256,000 1,909,000

593,000
69,116,000

1,200,000
56,767,000

940,000
44,829,000

Combined Financial Statements

AMP INCORPORATED AND PAMCOR, INC. (DEC)

Combined Balance Sheets

(dollars in thousands) 1990 1989

Shareholders’ Equity:
AMP Incorporated—
Common stock, without par
value—Authorized
350,000,000 shares,
issued 112,320,000 shares $ 12,480 $ 12,480
Pamcor, Inc.—
Common stock, par value

$1.00 per share—

Authorized 64,000 shares,

issued 20,000 shares 20 20
Other capital 77,746 77,156
Cumulative translation

adjustments 114,108 67,911

Retained earnings 1,765,396 1,622,935
Treasury stock, at cost (176,992) (155,069)

Total shareholders’ equity 1,792,758 1,625,433

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 (In Part): Summary of Accounting Principles
Principles of Combination

The financial statements of AMP and its subsidiaries
(all wholly owned) and Pamcor are combined, as each
company is owned beneficially by identical shareholders.
Intercompany and affiliated company accounts and trans-
actions are eliminated in the combination. Asia/Pacific
and Latin America subsidiaries are included on the basis
of years ending November 30.

2. Pamcor

Pamcor has no affiliates other than AMP and its subsidi-
aries. By trust agreement, Bankers Trust Company holds
all of the Pamcor common stock for the benefit of AMP
common shareholders whose certificates are endorsed to
show they are entitled to a proportionate interest in the
Pamcor common stock held in the Trust. This interest is
not transferable separately.

The inclusion of Pamcor resulted in an increase in net
income of $15,868,000 in 1990, $15,365,000 in 1989 and
$14,5692,000 in 1988 after the elimination of unrealized
profit in affiliated company inventory.
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BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Paragraph 8 of APB Opinion No. 16 states:

The Board concludes that the purchase method and
the pooling of interests method are both acceptable in
accounting for business combinations, although not
as alternatives in accounting for the same business
combination. A business combination which meets
specified conditions requires accounting by the pool-
ing of interests method. A new basis of accounting is
not permitted for a combination that meets the speci-
fied conditions, and the assets and liabilities of the
combining companies are combined at their
recorded amounts. All other business combinations
should be accounted for as an acquisition of one or
more companies by a corporation. The cost to an
acquiring corporation of an entire acquired company
should be determined by the principles of accounting
for the acquisition of an asset. The cost should then
be allocated to the identifiable individual assets
acquired and liabilities assumed based on their fair
values; the unallocated cost should be recorded as
goodwill.

Paragraphs 50 to 65 and 66 to 96 of Opinion No. 16
describe the manner of reporting and disclosures required
for a pooling of interests and a purchase, respectively.

Table 1-10 shows that in 1990 the survey companies
reported 10 business combinations accounted for as a
pooling of interests of which 6 such business combina-
tions did not result in a restatement of prior year financial
statements. These companies not restating prior year
financial statements for pooling of interests usually com-
mented that the reason for not doing so was immateriality.

Examples of poolings of interests and purchases follow.

TABLE 1-10: BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

1990 1989 1988 1987
Poolings of Interests
Prior year financial statements

restated.................... 4 9 8 11
Prior year financial statements

notrestated................. 6 9 6 10

Total .....cevvevenn.., 10 18 14 21

Purchase Method ............. 190 219 216 194

Poolings of Interests

RUBBERMAID INCORPORATED (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars In thousands except per share amounts)

2 (in Part): Acquisitions and Joint Ventures

Acquisitions:

in October 1990, 6,236,758 Common Shares were
issued in exchange for all the outstanding Common
Shares of Eldon Industries, Inc. (Eldon), primarily a
manufacturer and masketer of office products.

The acquisition has been accounted for as a pooling of
interests, and accordingly, the accompanying financial
information has been restated to include the accounts of
Eldon for ali periods presented. Net sales and net earn-
ings of the separate companies for the period preceding
the acquisition were:

January 1, 1990 Years Ended
Through December 31,
QOctober 29, 1990 1989 1988
Net Sales:
Rubbermaid $1,184,249 $1,343,873  $1,193,539
Eldon 88,732 108,492 98,045
Combined $1,272,981 $1,452,365  $1,291,584
Net Earnings:
Rubbermaid $ 117,366 $ 116,410 $ 99,290
Eidon 6,440 8,574 7,568
Combined $ 123,806 $ 124,984 $ 106,858

In June 1990, the Company also acquired EWU AG, a
manufacturer and marketer of commercial floor care sup-
plies and equipment, through a cash transaction
accounted for as a purchase. The results of operations of
EWU AG have been included in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements from June 13, 1990, the
acquisition date. Pro forma consolidated financial infor-
mation is not considered significant and has been omitted.
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AVERY DENNISON CORPORATION (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1—Merger

On October 16, 1990, the Company merged one of its subsidiaries with Dennison Manufacturing Company (*‘Denni-
son"’) and in connection therewith issued 17,669,251 shares of common stock for all of Dennison’s outstanding common
and preferred stock. Dennison is an international, diversified manufacturer and supplier of stationery products, tags,
labels and imprinting systems, plastic tying and attaching products for retail and industrial applications, and systems and
materials for a variety of package decoration needs.

The merger was accounted for as a pooling of interests and, accordingly, the Company’s financial statements have been
restated to include the results of Dennison for all periods presented. Combined and separate results of Avery and Denni-
son are as follows (in millions):

Avery Dennison Adjustments Combined

Nine months ended September 30, 1990 (unaudited):

Netsales ......... ..o i $1,359.8 $ 565.3 $ (7.0) $ 1,918.1

Netincome ........ ... i 51.0 2.1 (1.6) 51.5
Year ended November 30, 1989 (Dennison as of December 31):

Netsales ...........coi i $1,732.4 $ 7709 $ (12.4) $ 2,490.9

Netincome ........... ... ... .. i 86.5 29.1 (1.4) 114.2
Year ended November 30, 1988 (Dennison as of December 31):

Netsales ............coooiiiiiiiiii i $1,582.0 $ 7218 $ (12.4) $2,291.4

NetinCome . ... ....uuiieit ittt ieaiaanass 77.7 37.2 2.1 117.0

The combined financial information presented above contains adjustments to eliminate transactions between Avery
and Dennison which occurred before the combination and to conform the accounting policies of the two companies.
These conforming adjustments reflect (1) the restatement of Dennison’s depreciation amounts from an accelerated
method to the straight-line method, (2) the restatement of Dennison’s income tax expense and liability from the accounting
methods prescribed by SFAS No. 96 to the methods prescribed by APB No. 11, which is used by Avery, and (3) conforming
Dennison’s method of accounting for hedging transactions to that of Avery’s. The following table indicates the effect of these
adjustments on combined net income (in millions):

Fiscal Year Ended November 30

Nine Months Ended

September 30, 1990 1989 1988
Accounting Policy (Unaudited)
Depreciation ....... ... ... . $ 1 $ 2 $ 1
INCOMEAXES . ... . . e (.5) (2.4) (2.0)
Hedging transactions .. ..............oo'.iieiiiiiiiiiiiai. (1.2) .8 4.0
Aggregate effect on netincome ... ............c.eiieiniinnn. $(1.6) $(1.4) $2.1

In connection with the merger, the Company changed its fiscal year end from November 30 to December 31, which conforms
to Dennison’s year end. Avery's separate results for fiscal 1990 have been restated to a December 31 year end. Avery's
separate results of operations for the month of December 1989, therefore, are not reflected in the consolidated statement
of income or the consolidated statement of cash flows. The following is a condensed consolidated statement of income
and a condensed consolidated statement of cash flows for Avery for the month of December 1989:

Condensed Consolidated Statement of Income Month of
(in_millions) : December 1989
MO SaIBS ...t e $135.5
COSt OF PrOQUCES SOI . . .. o\ttt et ettt e e e e e e e e e e e et e et e e e e e e e e e 91.5

GO PIOTI .. ... et 44.0
Marketing, general and adminiStrative eXPENSE . . . . . ... uvnts ettt et et a e e 35.9

U T ) 1 8.1
L T T T TP 2.6
Income before taxes 0N INCOME . ... ..........urtntr ittt e et e e e e e et 5.5
TaXBS OM IMCOMIE . . ittt ettt s e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 2.1

Nl OO . ..ottt ettt e e e e e e e e et e e et e e e e e $ 3.4
Net income per Share 0f COMMON SEOCK . .. .. ... o oeot ettt s st e e e e e et e e et et aeeeeeesanens $ .06

G R IE R S e ) T 61.8
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Month of
(in millions) December 1989
Operating Activities:
Nt COMIE .ottt e i e e $ 34
Depreciation, amortization and deferred taxes . . ............ouieentit i e 3.4
(Increase) in assets and liabilities net of the effect of foreign currency translation. . .......................... (1.9
Net cash provided by operating aCtiVIties . . ... ... ...t et e et et 4.9
Investing Activities:
Purchase of property, plant and eqUIPMENt . ... ..ottt e 8.2)
(0011 S T (3.1)
Net cash (used in) investing aCtIVItIES ... ... . ......'tuute st et et e et e et st ot s it s ie e e (11.3)
Net cash provided by financing activities. ...................oovuiiuniinnien i 5.1
Effect of foreign currency translation on cash balances. .. ...........c.ouineuiuiuiiniiniiiaiiiaeneen,. —
{Decrease) in cash and Cash BQUIVAIBNES . .. ... ... uut it ittt et e et e e e et e et ettt $ (1.3

The consolidated financial statements for all periods prior to 1990 have not been restated for the change in fiscal year.
They include Avery’s results of operations on a November 30 fiscal year basis and Dennison’s on a December 31 calendar

year basis.

Costs related to the merger of $13.8 million were charged to expense, primarily during the third quarter of 1990.

Purchases

(BDF!(E%\;VN & SHARPE MANUFACTURING COMPANY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(dollars in thousands, except per share data)

2. Acquisition

The Company purchased the Industrial Metrology Tech-
nology Division and certain related marketing and sales
assets of Wild Leitz GmbH (the ‘‘Business’’) headquartered
in Wetzlar, West Germany, from Leica plc on June 29,
1990. The Business designs, develops, manufactures,
and sells precision metrology products with the substan-
tial majority of its revenue derived from the sale of its
products outside the United States.

The purchase price included $11,600 of cash and $6,000
in non-interest bearing deferred payments of approxi-
mately $3,000 each to be paid in deutsche marks on
March 31, 1991, and March 31, 1992, respectively. The
Company entered into a lease agreement with the seller
for the manufacturing plant (building and real estate) with
an option to purchase.

The acquisition has been accounted for by the purchase
method of accounting, and accordingly, the purchase
price has been allocated to the assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed based on the estimated fair values at
the date of acquisition. The excess of purchase price over
the estimated fair values of the net assets acquired has
been recorded as goodwill, which will be amortized over

20 years. The estimated fair values of assets and liabilities
acquired are summarized as follows:

Inventories $16,100
Other current assets 1,000
Machinery and equipment 4,500
License 1,500
Goodwill 2,900
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (9,100)
Present value of deferred payments discounted (5,300)

$11,600

The operating results of this acquisition are included in .
the Company’s consolidated results of operations from
the date of acquisition. The following unaudited pro forma
summary presents the consolidated results of operations
asif the acquisition had occurred at the beginning of 1989,
after giving effect to certain adjustments, including amor-
tization of goodwill, interest expense on the acquisition
debt and related income tax effects. These pro forma
results have been prepared for comparative purposes
only and do not purport to be indicative of what would have
occurred had the acquisition been made as of those dates
or of results which may occur in the future.

1990 1989
Net Sales $252,800 $228,100
Net Income (Loss) $(18,600) $ 1,800

Net Income (Loss) per Common Share $ (4070 §$ .39
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DSC COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Business Acquisitions (in Part)

On July 20, 1990, the Company acquired all of the capi-
tal stock of Optilink Corporation (Optilink) for approxi-
mately $54,000,000 in cash and the issuance of options to
certain Optilink employees to purchase 608,056 shares of
the Company’s common stock for $.01 per share which
will vest on July 20, 1992. The difference between the
exercise price of these options and the market price at the
date of the acquisition of $7,296,000 is included in Noncur-
rent deferred taxes and other liabilities on the Consoli-
dated Balance Sheets. The Company also granted
options to certain Optilink employees to purchase 608,056
shares of the Company’s common stock for $12.91 per
share which vest each year based on the attainment of
certain Optilink product revenue goals, or in any event, no
later than December 31, 1995. Certain Optilink employees
may also be paid cash awards up to $7,900,000 upon the
achievement of certain revenue targets for Optilink
products through December 31, 1995. Pending consum-
mation of the merger, the Company had loaned Optilink
$12,631,000 at July 20, 1990, which would have been repay-
able had the acquisition not occurred. Optilink markets to
the digital loop carrier marketplace and has developed a
third-generation, fiber optic, Synchronous Optical Network
(SONET)-based digital loop carrier product.

The acquisition has been accounted for as a purchase,
and, accordingly, the net assets and results of operations
are included in the Consolidated Financial Statements, for
financial reporting purposes, beginning in August, 1990. A
portion of the purchase price has been allocated to the
assets and liabilities of Optilink based on their estimated
respective fair values. The purchase price and expenses
associated with the acquisition of $780,000 exceeded the
fair values allocated to Optilink’s net assets by $69,579,000
which has been included in *‘Cost in excess of net assets
of businesses acquired, net” on the Consolidated Balance
Sheets. The cost in excess of net assets of businesses
acquired is being amortized over a 20 year period. For the
year ended December 31, 1990, amortization expense
was $1,450,000.

The following unaudited pro forma summary combines
the consolidated resuits of operations of the Company
and Optilink as if the acquisition had occurred at the
beginning of 1990 and 1989, after giving effect to certain
adjustments, including the amortization of cost in excess
of net assets of businesses acquired, increased interest
expense from debt assumed to have been issued to fund
the acquisition, income tax effects, and the increase in
common equivalent shares outstanding. This pro forma
summary does not necessarily reflect the results of opera-
tions as they would have been if the Company and Optilink
had constituted a single entity during such periods and is
not necessarily indicative of results which may be obtained
in the future. During the 1990 and 1989 periods, Optilink
incurred substantial research and development expenses
associated with the development of a new product which
is available for volume shipments in the future.

Years Ended December 31,

1990 1989
(Dollars in thousands
except per share data)
Revenue $524,571 $439,492
Income (loss) from:
Continuing operations 8,687 14,436
Discontinued operations — (840)
Extraordinary items, net 934 —
Net income $ 9,621 $ 13,596
Income per share:
Continuing operations $ .20 $ 34
Discontinued operations - (.02)
Extraordinary items, net .02 —
Net income $ 22 $§ 32

R.R. DONNELLEY & SONS COMPANY (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Acquisition

On September 4, 1990, the Company acquired the
Meredith/Burda companies for $180 million in cash, two
interest-free instaliments of $157.3 million and $149.3 million,
payable in May and October, 1991, respectively, and related
expenses of approximately $10 million. The acquisition
was accounted for using the purchase method; accordingly,
the assets and liabilities (including debt of $49.9 million) of
the acquired entities have been recorded at their estimated
fair value at the date of acquisition. The excess of purchase
price over the estimated fair value of the net assets
acquired (‘‘goodwill”’ of $227 million) is being amortized
on a straight-line basis over 40 years. The Meredith/Burda
companies’ results of operations have been included in
the Consolidated Statement of Income since the date of
acquisition.

The following table presents unaudited pro forma
results of operations as if the acquisition had occurred on
January 1, 1989. These pro forma results have been pre-
pared for comparative purposes only and do not purport to
be indicative of what would have occurred had the acqui-
sition been made at the beginning of 1989 or of resuits
which may occur in the future. Furthermore, no effect has
been given in the pro forma information for operating and
synergistic benefits that are expected to be realized
through the combination of the entities because precise
estimates of such benefits cannot be quantified.

Thousands of Dollars, Except per

Share Data (Unaudited) 1990 1989
Net sales $3,800,304 $3,590,395
Earnings from operations 373,816 358,712
Earnings before income taxes 347,935 332,274
Net income 214,567 205,855
Net income per share of common

stock $ 276 $ 2.64

In July, 1990, the Federal Trade Commission (*‘FTC"’)
initiated an action to enjoin the Meredith/Burda acquisi-
tion on grounds that it would create an illegal concentra-
tion in an alleged “’high volume gravure printing market.”
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Despite a Federal District Court ruling that the acquisition
was legally proper, the FTC has begun an administrative
proceeding again challenging the acquisition. Although
the outcome of this proceeding cannot be determined
with certainty, this new action raises issues similar to
those heard before the Federal District Court. Company
management continues to believe this acquisition is
legally proper.

FEDERAL-MOGUL CORPORATION (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note B (in Part): Acquisitions, Sales of Businesses and
Related Matters

During 1990, the company completed several acquisitions
which are expected to enhance its competitive global
market position, particularly in Europe. On September 11,
1990, the company, through a wholly-owned German sub-
sidiary, F-M Motorenteile Holding GmbH, acquired one-half
of the issued and outstanding capital stock of Glyco
Aktiengesellschaft (Glyco AG). The company acquired
the remaining shares of Glyco AG capital stock on
October 29, 1990. The aggregate cash consideration paid
for the shares approximated $157,000,000, including certain
transaction costs. This acquisition has been accounted
for as a purchase transaction and, accordingly, the pur-
chase price was allocated to assets and liabilities based
on the estimated fair value as of the acquisition date. The
excess of the consideration paid over the estimated fair
value on net assets acquired of $27,378,000 has been
recorded as goodwill to be amortized on the straight-line
basis over 40 years. During the months of September and
October 1990, the company recorded its equity in the
earnings of Glyco AG. The consolidated statement of
earnings for 1990 includes the operating results of Glyco
AG from October 29, 1990.

The following unaudited pro forma results of operations
for the years ended December 31, 1990 and 1989 assume
the acquisition occurred as of the beginning of the respec-
tive periods after giving effect to certain adjustments,
including amortization of goodwill, increased interest
expense on acquisition debt and related income tax
effects. The pro forma results have been prepared for
comparative purposes only and do not purport to indicate
the results of operations which would actually have
occurred had the combination been in effect on the dates
indicated, or which may occur in the future.

(Thousands of Dollars,

Except Per Share Amounts) 1990 1989
Net sales $1,304,357 $1,282,322
Net earnings $ 7,601 $ 33,684
Preferred stock dividends 4,780 4,183

Net earnings available for

common and equivalent shares $ 2821 $ 29,501
Net earnings per common
and equivalent share:
Primary $.13 $1.28
Fully diluted $.13 $1.23

HUNT MANUFACTURING CO. (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands except share and per share amounts)

2. Business Acquisitions:

On May 4, 1990, the Company acquired from Bunzl plc
all of the outstanding stock of Seal Products, Incorporated
(““Seal’’) and Ademco Limited (‘“Ademco’’) and the business
and certain specified assets and liabilities of Coated
Specialties Limited (““CSL’) (Seal, Ademco and CSL,
hereafter referred to collectively as the “Graphic Arts
Group’’). The Graphic Arts Group is primarily engaged in
the development, manufacture, distribution and sale of
heat-activated and pressure-sensitive mounting and
laminating materials and equipment and adhesive-coated
products, for the photographic, presentational and display
markets. The purchase price for the stock and assets
consisted of cash consideration of approximately $37 million
plus closing costs. The Company may also be required to
pay a single contingent cash payment of up to 4.75 million
British pounds sterling (approximately $9.2 million at
December 2, 1990) based upon the cumulative net sales
of the Graphic Arts Group and certain related products
during the three-year period January 1, 1990 through
December 31, 1992. The purchase price was financed by
bank borrowings of approximately $29.2 million and inter-
nal funding of approximately $7.8 million.

The acquisition has been accounted for by the purchase
method and, accordingly, the results of operations of the
Graphic Arts Group have been included with those of the
Company since the date of the acquisition. The purchase
price resulted in an excess of acquisition costs over net
assets acquired of approximately $12.6 million. Such excess
(which will increase for any contingent cash payment) is
being amortized on a straight-line basis over forty years.
The following unaudited pro forma summary for fiscal
years 1990 and 1989 combines the consolidated results of
operations of the Company and the Graphic Arts Group as
if the acquisition had occurred at the beginning of the
1990 and 1989 fiscal years.

The unaudited pro forma summary is not necessarily
indicative either of results of operations that would have
occurred had the purchase been made during the periods
presented, or of future results of operations of the com-
bined companies.

1990 1989
Net sales $235,006 $237,044
Net income 11,652 16,186
Earnings per common share .12 1.13

On June 23, 1989, the Company acquired substanially
all the assets and assumed certain liabilities of the Data
Products Division of Amaray International Corporation for
cash consideration and related costs aggregating approx-
imately $5.4 million plus the assumption of certain liabili-
ties for $1.9 million. This acquisition was accounted for by
the purchase method, and, accordingly, the results of
operations of the Data Products Division have been
included with those of the Company since the date of
acquisition.
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RHONE-POULENC RORER INC. (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 2. Change in Control and Combination of Human
Pharmaceutical Business

Pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement dated March 12,
1990, between the company and Rhone-Poulenc S.A.
(RP) (the Acquisition Agreement), RP acquired 458 million
shares of the company’s common stock (68 percent of the
outstanding shares on a fully diluted basis as of July 31,
1990) in a three-step process as follows:

Pursuant to the tender offer, as the first step of the combi-
nation, RP acquired 21.6 million shares of the company’s
common stock (representing 50.1 percent of the com-
pany’s then outstanding shares on a fully diluted basis) on
May 5, 1990, at a cash price of $78.00 per share.

Following shareholder approval on July 31, 1990, the
final steps of the combination were completed. The com-
pany assumed $265.0 million of RP debt, made a $20.0
million cash payment to a RP subsidiary and issued 24.2
million new common shares to RP in exchange for
substantially all of RP’s Human Pharmaceutical Business
(HPB) and approximately 20.9 million Contingent Value
Rights (CVRs). The CVRs were distributed on August 9,
1990, to shareholders of record on July 31, 1990, other than

RP, on a one CVR for one share basis. The CVRs provide for .

payment in 1993 or 1994 by RP to the holder of the CVRs of
an amount contingent upon the price of the company’s com-
mon stock, subject to certain limitations and conditions.

Since the transfer of the HPB business to the company
was between companies under the common control of RP,
the company has recorded the merger of HPB using RP’s
historical basis for the assets and liabilities of HPB. The
accounts of HPB are included in the company’s consoli-
dated financial statements from May 5, 1990, (date of
change in control of the company) and, accordingly, the
consolidated operating results of the company for the year
ended December 31, 1990, include the operating results of
HPB for May through December 1990. The consolidated
financial statements reflect all merger-related transac-
tions, including share issuances, as if they occurred on
May 5, 1990.

The following unaudited pro forma information shows
the results of the company’s operations for the years
ended December 31, 1990 and 1989, as if the combination
of HPB with Rorer had occurred on January 1, 1989 and
includes adjustments to interest expense and average
shares outstanding. Additionally, the 1990 pro forma infor-
mation excludes the $289 million of restructuring and
special charges and the $79 million gain on sales of assets.

For the Years Ended December 31, 1990 1989
(In Thousands, Except Per Share Data)

Net sales $3,615,000 $3,083,000
Net income 145,000 134,000
Earnings per common share 2.17 1.99
Average shares outstanding 66,900 67,500

The pro forma financial information presented above
does not purport to be indicative of either the results of
operations that would have occurred had the acquisition
taken place at the beginning of the periods presented or of
future results of operations of the combined businesses.

ROBERTSON-CECO CORPORATION (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Acquisitions

On November 8, 1990, pursuant to an Amended Agree-
ment and Plan of Reorganization and a related Amended
Agreement and Plan of Merger (the ‘‘Combination
Agreements’’), H. H. Robertson Company (‘‘Robertson’’)
and Ceco Industries, Inc. (‘““Ceco Industries’’) merged
simultaneously into The Ceco Corporation (‘‘Ceco”), a
Delaware corporation and wholly-owned subsidiary of
Ceco Industries, hereinafter referred to as the ‘“Combina-
tion”, with Ceco continuing as the surviving corporation
under the name Robertson-Ceco Corporation (the ‘‘Com-
pany’’). The Combination was accounted for using the
purchase method of accounting, with Ceco Industries
deemed to be the purchased entity. Accordingly, the assets
and liabilities and results of operations of Ceco Industries
are included in the Company’s consolidated financial
statements subsequent to November 1, 1990, the effective
date of the Combination for financial reporting purposes.
Ceco Industries was engaged in the manufacture, distri-
bution and sale of products to the construction industry.

Pursuant to the Combination Agreements, each share
outstanding of Robertson common stock was converted
into one share-of Robertson-Ceco Corporation common
stock and 1,045,305 shares of Robertson common stock
held inits treasury were retired. In addition 500,000 shares
of Robertson cumulative convertible preferred stock were
exchanged for 500,000 shares of Robertson-Ceco Corpo-
ration cumulative convertible preferred stock. 4,043,635
shares of Ceco Industries common stock were converted
into 4,096,180 shares of Robertson-Ceco Corporation
common stock valued at $40,961,800 and 1,480,725
shares of Ceco Industries common stock were purchased
for $15,000,000 in cash.

In accordance with the purchase method of accounting,
the purchase price has been allocated to the underlying
assets and liabilities based on their respective fair values
at the date of acquisition. Such allocation has been based
on preliminary estimates which may be revised at a later
date. The excess of cost over net assets acquired of
$77,100,000 is being amortized over a forty year period on
a straight-line basis.

In connection with the Combination, and pursuant to a
Stock Purchase Agreement dated June 8, 1990, among
Frontera S.A. (‘‘Frontera’’), Robertson and Ceco Indus-
tries, Mulligan Partnership, Frontera’s designee, purchased
4,000000 shares of Robertson-Ceco Corporation common
stock, representing approximately 28 percent of outstand-
ing Robertson-Ceco Corporation common stock after
giving effect to the Combination and the issuance of such
shares, for net cash proceeds to the Company of
$38,750,000 (the ‘‘Frontera Stock Purchase’’).

The following unaudited pro forma financial information
shows the results of the Company as though the Combi-
nation and Frontera Stock Purchase occurred as of the
beginning of 1989. These results include certain adjust-
ments, primarily increased amortization and reduced
corporate expenses, and are not necessarily indicative of
what the results would have been had the Combination
and Frontera Stock Purchase occurred at the beginning of
1989.
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Year Ended December 31

(In thousands, except per share data) 1990 1989
Revenues $927,799  $1,007,191
Income (loss) from continuing

operations (10,820) 2,513
Net income (loss) (14,320) 1,365
Income (loss) per common share

from continuing operations (.75) a7
Netincome (loss) per common share (.99) .09

On August 22, 1988, the Company acquired for
$15,274,000, all of the common stock of Star Manufacturing
Company of Oklahoma (*‘Star’’), a major manufacturer of
pre-engineered structures. The acquisition has been
accounted for as a purchase and, accordingly, the net
assets and operations of Star are included in the
Company’s consolidated financial statements from the
date of the acquisition. The excess of cost over net assets
acquired of $15,480,000 is being amortized on a 40 year
straight-line basis. On a pro forma basis, the results of the
Company as if Star were acquired as of the beginning of
1988 are: revenues of $464,997,000, net loss of
$30,200,000 and net loss per common share of $(4.89).

SEAGATE TECHNOLOGY (JUN)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Acquisition

On October 2, 1989 the Company completed the acquisi-
tion of Imprimis Technology incorporated, a manufacturer
of rigid disc drives for computers, from Control Data
Corporation. The Company acquired substantially all of
the business, assets and liabilities of Imprimis for considera-
tion consisting of $250,000,000 in cash, a $50,000,000
promissory note of the Company and 10,700,000
unregistered shares of the Company’s common stock. The
cash and the promissory note are both subject to subse-
quent adjustment. The shares were valued at approxi-
mately $102,000,000 which represents a discount from fair
market value to reflect certain restrictions on the common
stock. The acquisition has been accounted for as a pur-
chase and, accordingly the results of operations of
Imprimis have been included in the consolidated financial
statements from the date of acquisition.

The following pro forma financial information assumes
the acquisition occurred at the beginning of each of the
years presented:

In thousands except per share data 1990 1989
(Unaudited)

Net Sales $2,679,000 $2,462,000

Net Income 108,000 3,000

Net Income Per Share 1.69 0.06

VULCAN MATERIALS COMPANY (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. Reed Acquisition

On September 6, 1990, the Company purchased all of
the stock of Reed Crushed Stone Company, Inc., Reed
Terminal Company, Inc., and BRT Transfer Terminal, Inc.

The purchase price paid for the three companies was
$113,602,000 including $13,404,000 referable to cash,
cash items and short-term investments. Funds for pay-
ment of the purchase price were obtained by the Com-
pany through issuance and sale of short-term notes. The
purchase price was calculated in accordance with the
stock purchase agreements and was based upon
management’s expectations for the future and the value
of the assets and liabilities of the three companies.

The acquisition has been accounted for as a purchase
transaction and, accordingly, the purchase price was allo-
cated to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed
based on estimated fair values at the date of acquisition.

The excess of the purchase price over the fair value of
the tangible assets acquired is approximately
$18,032,000, including the effect of deferred income taxes,
and will be amortized on a straight-line basis over 20
years.

Pro forma results of the Company’s operations, assum-
ing the acquisition occurred at the beginning of 1989, are
shown in the following table. These unaudited pro forma
results have been prepared for comparative purposes
only and do not purport to be indicative of what would have
occurred had the acquisition been made at the beginning
of 1989, or of the results which may occur in the future.

(Thousands of dollars,
except per share amounts)
1990 1989
Net sales $1,147,987 $1,136,041
Earnings from continuing
operations before income taxes 178,147 202,906
Net earnings from continuing
operations 119,105 133,603
Primary and fully diluted earnings
per share of common stock from
continuing operations 3.07 3.31

The assets of the acquired companies include a large
limestone quarry which provides stone to markets on the
Mississippi River system, to the western Kentucky area
and to rail customers from lllinois to Mississippi; a number
of deck barges which are used to ship stone to the river
markets; and a stone distribution business in Memphis,
Tennessee. In addition, BRT Transfer Terminal operates
three terminal which blend and transload coal from rail to
barge and barge to barge. During Reed’s last three fiscal
years before the acquisition, stone shipments have aver-
aged about 9.5 million tons per year. The acquired busi-
nesses have continued their operations and now function
as subsidiary companies in Vulcan’s Construction
Materials segment.
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CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. §
defines a contingency as ‘‘an existing condition, situation,
or set of circumstances invoving uncertainty as to possi-
ble gain or loss to an enterprise that will ultimately be
resolved when one or more future events occur or fail to
occur.”’ Paragraphs 8-16 of SFAS No. 5 set forth standards
of financial accounting and reporting for loss contingen-
cies. Paragraphs 3 and 5 of Accounting Research Bulletin
No. 50 state the accounting and reporting standards for
gain contingencies. Paragraph 6 of ARB No. 50 requires
disclosure of various commitments not explictly covered
by an authoritative pronouncement.

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 105,
effective for financial statements for fiscal years ending
after June 15, 1990, establishes disclosure requirements
for financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk or
concentration of credit risk. As defined in SFAS No. 105,
financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk or con-
centration of credit risk include interest rate swaps and for-
eign exchange contracts which are used by many of the
survey companies to hedge their exposure to unfavorable
interest rate or foreign currency changes.

Table 1-11 summarizes the various contingencies and
commitments disclosed in the 1990 annual reports of the
survey companies. Examples of contingency and commit-
ment disclosures follow. Examples of operating loss car-
ryforwards and investment credit carryforwards are
presented with the discussion of income tax expense.

LOSS CONTINGENCIES
Litigation

ACME-CLEVELAND CORPORATION (SEP)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note B—Litigation

In 1987, Vickers, Incorporated (Vickers) initiated suit in
the United States District Court for the District of
Nebraska seeking to recover damages for the alleged
breach by the Corporation of a contract for the sale to
Vickers of a fully automated Flexible Machining System
(FMS). The contract had been entered into by LaSalle
Machine Tool, Inc. (LaSalle), a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Corporation, and was subsequently assigned to and
assumed by the Corporation after the business and
assets of LaSalle had been sold. Vickers alleged that the
FMS was not delivered within the time required by the
contract and that it failed to conform to the contract
specifications and warranties. Vickers sought to recover
the portion of the purchase price paid for the FMS and
related equipment and tooling, amounting to $11,495,000,
together with incidental and consequential damages,
prejudgment interest and court costs. The Corporation
filed an answer and counterclaim for damages in an
unspecified amount. The counterclaim alleged that

TABLE 1-11: CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Number of Companies
1990 1989 1988 1987
Loss Contingencies

Litigation .................... 391 379 371 370
Guarantees

Debt ... 110 99 122 121

Lease payments ............. 34 33 31 28

Support agreements . ......... 34 19 23 21

other........coovvennnn.. 35 24 24 25
Government regulations

Environment ................ 170 128 57 N/IC

Other.........ccoeviinnnn. 5 5 6 41
Lettersof credit ............... 98 82 86 73
Sale of receivables

withrecourse ............... 76 68 85 90
Possible tax assessment ........ 62 52 66 63
InSurance .................... 42 45 36 39
Other—described .............. 43 37 31 28
Gain Contingencies
Operating loss carryforward . . .. .. 152 157 176 168
Investment credit carryforward . .. 97 85 117 122
Plaintiff litigation. .............. 39 29 31 30
Other—described .............. 12 10 7 7
Commitments
Dividend restrictions............ 388 384 386 390
Hedge contracts . .............. 235 149 133 100
Capital expenditures . ........... 86 78 82 76
Purchase agreements........... 81 64 69 63
Employment contracts .......... 40 40 36 33
Additional payments in connection

with an acquisition ........... 32 27 33 27
Sale agreements............... 21 13 10 15
Other—described .............. 58 43 37 40

N/C—Not Compiled.

Vickers had wrongfully terminated the contract and was
thereby in breach of the contract. On October 3, 1989,
following a two week jury trial, a $9,974,000 judgment was
entered against the Corporation in favor of Vickers. The
Corporation believes that the judgment is contrary to the
facts and applicable law. It has filed motions with the Dis-
trict Court for a new trial and a judgment notwithstanding
the verdict and, if neither of those motions is granted, will
vigorously pursue its rights of appeal.

The Corporation expects to obtain a favorable judgment
in the case. However, the ultimate outcome of this litiga-
tion is unknown at the present time. Accordingly, no provi-
sion for any liability that might result has been made in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

The Corporation is subject to other legal proceedings
and claims which have arisen in the ordinary course of its
business and have not been finally adjudicated. These
actions, when ultimately concluded and determined, will
not, in the opinion of management, have a material adverse
effect upon the financial position of the Corporation.
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ADVANCED MICRO DEVICES, INC. (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Litigation Judgment

In the fourth quarter of 1990, a United States District
Court entered a $27.4 million judgment in favor of Brook-
tree Corporation in a patent and maskwork infringement
case against the company. The case involved microchips
known as color palettes which are used to control color
displays on computer monitor screens. Pursuant to the
verdict, the court enjoined the company from making,
using or selling products that infringe Brooktree patents
and maskwork rights. The company has filed an appeal
with the United States Court of Appeals for the Federal
Circuit. The company has provided real property security
with equity of more than twice the amount of judgment to
Brooktree to stay execution of the judgment pending
appeal. Management expects the appeal process to take
approximately one year. Color palettes represented less
than 1 percent of the company’s business in each of the
last three years.

BOISE CASCADE CORPORATION (DEC)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. Litigation and Legal Matters

In 1980, the Federal Trade Commission initiated an
action before a Federal Trade Commission administrative
law judge alleging that the Company had purchased
some office products for resale by the Company’s office
products business at net prices below the prices available
to its dealer competitors and contrary to the Robinson-
Patman Act and the Federal Trade Commission Act. In
February 1986, the Federal Trade Commission issued a
cease and desist order against the alleged improper prac-
tices. In January 1988, the United States Court of Appeals
for the District of Columbia Circuit reversed the Federal
Trade Commission ruling, concuding that the Commis-
sion had failed to establish that the Company’s purchas-
ing practices caused any adverse effect on competition in
the office products industry. The case was sentback to the
Federal Trade Commission. On November 1, 1990, the
Commission reissued the 1986 cease and desist order
based on a finding that the disputed purchasing practices
may have caused injury to competition. The Company has
filed an appeal of the Commission’s latest decision with
the U.S. Circuit Court of Appeals. The Company cannot
predict what the outcome of the appeal will be, but the
ICalrfn?any believes that its purchasing practices are
awful.

The Company is involved in other litigation and
administrative proceedings primarily arising in the normal
course of its business. In the opinion of management, the
Company’s recovery, if any, or the Company's liability, if
any, under any pending litigation or administrative
proceeding, including that described in the preceding
paragraph, would not materially affect its financial condi-
tion or operations.

CALMAT CO. (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11 (in Part): Commitments and Contingencies

During 1990, the lawsuits which had been pending
against the Company and its directors, in connection with
actions taken by the Company which involved Brierley
Investments Limited and Onoda U.S.A., were settled and
dismissed, with the court permitting stockholders not
wishing to participate in the settlement to “‘opt out.” Under
the terms of the settlement, the Company is obligated to
expend for stock repurchases the greater of (a) one-half of
the net proceeds from the disposal of real estate assets
held for sale through December 31, 1991, or (b) a specified
amount. The Company estimates that the expenditure of
an additional $7.4 million for such repurchases will satisfy
this obligation. An appeal challenging the settlement was
also dismissed and the time for filing further appeals has
elapsed. In November, 1990, a lawsuit was filed against
the Company and its directors in Delaware Chancery
Court by a stockholder who had opted out of the settle-
ment, purporting to represent a class of similar stock-
holders, and alleging misrepresentations and breach of
fiduciary duty in connection with the matters which were
the subject of the original lawsuits. While the ultimate out-
come of this lawsuit cannot at this time be predicted with
certainty, management does not expect that this matter
will have a material adverse effect on the consolidated
financial position or results of operations of the Company.

CONSTAR INTERNATIONAL INC. (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. Litigation:

In August 1986, the Company’s Sewell Plastics subsidi-
ary commenced a lawsuit in U.S. District Court in North
Carolina against Coca-Cola USA, a division of The Coca-
Cola Company; Southeastern Container, Inc. (‘“South-
eastern Container”), which manufactures plastic soft
drink containers; and 33 Coca-Cola franchised bottlers
which are owners of Southeastern Container. The com-
plaint alleged that the bottler defendants, assisted by
Coca-Cola USA, entered into arrangements with South-
eastern Container which violated federal and state
antitrust and unfair trade practice laws. Sewell Plastics
sought damages in excess of $17 million, before trebling,
and an injunction.

In August 1989, the District Court issued its opinion and
order dismissing Sewell Plastics’ claims. In September
1990, the Court of Appeals affirmed the dismissal of
Sewell Plastics’ claims, and on February 19, 1991, the U.S.
Supreme Court denied Sewell Plastics’ petition for a writ
of certiorari.

There remain pending before the District Court counter-
claims of Southeastern Container and defendants’ motion
for costs. The counterclaims arise out of Sewell Plastics’
commencement and pursuit of the lawsuit, and its 1986
settlement with one of the bottler defendants, Wilmington
Coca-Cola Bottling Co. (‘“‘Wilmington”). The counter-
claims principally charge Sewell Plastics with tortious
interference with Southeastern Container’s contract with
Wilmington by virtue of the settlement agreement, pur-
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suant to which Sewell Plastics has supplied containers to
Wilmington, and further charge Sewell Plastics with
abuse of process and violations of the North Carolina
Unfair Practices Act arising out of Sewell’s pursuing
allegedly baseless litigation and the settlement with Wil-
mington. The counterclaims seek from Sewell Plastics a
total of at least $6.25 million in compensatory and treble
damages and at least $10 million in punitive damages,
plus unspecified attorney’s fees and costs as damages for
Sewell Plastics’ alleged abuse of process. The counter-
claims remain vigorously contested by Sewell Plastics,
which continues to maintain that its lawsuit was a proper
and justified resort to the courts, and that the Wilmington
settlement was entered into by both parties lawfully and in
good faith. Management has been advised by counsel
that there are meritorious defenses to the counterclaims.
However, the outcome of the counterclaim proceedings
cannot be predicted in light of the uncertainties inherent in
litigation.

CONTROL DATA CORPORATION (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in millions, except per share data)

M. Legal Matters

On January 16, 1990, the trial of several consolidated
class action and shareholder derivative lawsuits against
the Company, certain of its former officers and directors,
and its independent auditors began in U.S. District Court
in Minnesota. The lawsuits arose out of the Company’s
announcement, on August 6, 1985, that it was restating
downward its financial results for 1984, and revising down-
ward previously announced financial results for the sec-
ond quarter of 1985. On February 5, 1990, the Court issued
a directed verdict in favor of the defendants. The plaintiffs
appealed this decision to the Eighth Circuit Court of
Appeals. The parties are awaiting the appelate court’s
decision.

The Company, one of its wholly owned subsidiaries and
aresearch and development limited partnership (the Part-
nership), of which the subsidiary is the general partner,
were named as defendants in a lawsuit filed in October
1988 in U.S. District Court in Minnesota by two limited
partners in the Partnership. The plaintiffs purported to rep-
resent a class consisting of all persons who purchased
$30.0 of limited partnership interests in the Partnership
during 1982. The plaintiffs generally alleged that the
defendants engaged in conduct that constituted a breach
of fiduciary duty, a breach of contract and fraud or negli-
gent misrepresentations. The Court, finding the plaintiff’s
claims derivative in nature, dismissed the complaint with-
out prejudice to permit a special litigation committee to
determine whether it would be in the Partnership’s best
interests to pursue the claims alleged in the complaint.
The plaintiffs appealed the dismissal to the Eighth Circuit
Court of Appeals and filed a parallel action in Minnesota
state court. The Court of Appeals concluded that the
plaintiffs’ claims are derivative in nature, making the part-
nership itself an indispensable party, and, accordingly,
dismissed the action for lack of federal diversity jurisdic-
tion. The Minnesota state court action is still pending. The
special litigation committee has determined, however,
that there is insufficient credible evidence to support
plaintiffs’ claims, and that it is not in the Partnership’s best

interests to pursue the claims. The Company thus antici-
pates seeking a dismissal of the state court action as well.

In February 1990, a complaint was filed in U.S. District
Courtin Minnesota by 38 limited partners in the REV Wind
Power Partners 1984-1 Limited Partnership (the REV Part-
nership) against the Company, two of its subsidiaries and
certain other parties, including the underwriter of the
limited partnership offering. Three of the plaintiffs purport
to represent a class consisting of the 242 limited partners
who purchased approximately $16.6 of interests in the
REV Partnership, which was formed for the purpose of
owning and operating a windpowered electricity generat-
ing facility near Palm Springs, California. The plaintiffs
allege fraud and misrepresentation in the sale of the
limited partnership interests and in ongoing communica-
tions to the limited partners, breach of fiduciary duty and
the duty of due care, and mismanagement and waste in
connection with the operation of the facility. The Company
believes it has meritorious defenses to these claims.

In September 1990, Seagate notified the Company that
it was asserting claims against the Company for the
alleged breach of various representations and warranties
made by the Company in the acquisition agreement pur-
suant to which Seagate acquired Imprimis. Although the
original amount of such claims totalled approximately
$93.0, the Company and Seagate have agreed to resolve
approximately $56.0 of those claims, as a result of which
the amount of a $50.0 subordinated note given by Seagate
as part of the purchase of Imprimis (the Note) has been
reduced by $1.8 and the Company has agreed to pay up to
$.8 in claims or costs relating to several lawsuits involving
Imprimis personnel matters that arose prior to Imprimis’
sale to Seagate as well as to assume responsibility for
responding to an EPA investigation of the alleged involve-
ment of a former Imprimis subsidiary with the disposal of
hazardous wastes at a municipal landfill. As to the remain-
ing claims of approximately $37.0, which relate principally
to product warranty issues, Seagate’s remedy under the
acquisition agreement is limited to a setoff o'the amount
of its valid claims against any amount owed by Seagate to
the Company under the Note. The Company and Seagate
are jointly investigating the remaining claims and hope to
resolve them without litigation. The resolution of this mat-
ter is not expected to have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s financial position.

In July 1990, the Company and one of its wholly owned
subsidiaries were sued in U.S. District Courtin Ohio by the
general partner of the Minneapolis Business & Technol-
ogy Center (BTC) partnership. The BTC was sold to the
partnership in 1986, and the Company became a limited
partner in the partnership. The Company has been a les-
see of space in the building, manages the building, and
has an obligation to fund operating shortfalls for the part-
nership. The complaint alleges that the Company fraudu-
lently induced the general partner to invest in the
partnership by promising but failing to enter into leases as
set forth in the pro forma financial information included in
the BTC purchase agreement. The plaintiff alleges
damages in excess of $16.0. The Company believes it has
meriotrious defenses to these claims.

The Company is also involved in a number of other judi-
cial and administrative proceedings incidental to its oper-
ations, including proceedings involving the Federal
Environmental Protection Agency and certain state pollu-
tion control agencies regarding disposal of waste
materials. It is anticipated that final disposition of some of
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these proceedings may not occur for several years.
Although occasional adverse decisions (or settlements)
may occur, management believes that the final disposi-
tion of such matters will not have a material adverse effect
on the Company’s financial position.

COURIER CORPORATION (SEP)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

F (In Part): Commitments and Contingencies

The Company has been named as adefendantin a con-
solidated action (the Action) brought in the United States
District Court for the District of Massachusetts (collec-
tively, the Government) under the Comprehensive
Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act
of 1980 (CERCLA, the so-called ‘‘Superfund’’ law). The
Action relates to the Charles George Land Reclamation
Trust waste disposal site in Tyngsboro, Massachusetts
(the Site). The federal and state complaints (captioned,
respectively, United States v. Charles George Trucking
Company, Inc. et al., Civil Action No. 85-2463-WD, and
Commonwealth of Massachusetts v. Charles George
Trucking Company, Inc. et al., Civil Action No. 85-2714-WD)
were originally filed against the owners and operators of
the Site in 1985. The Company and 23 other parties
alleged to be generators of wastes disposed of at the Site
or transporters of wastes disposed of at the Site were
added as defendants by amendments to the original com-
plaints in the Action in the spring of 1989. Forty third-party
defendants were impleaded into the Action early in 1990,
and counterclaims against the Government have also
been filed.

The Government alleges that a release of hazardous
substances within the meaning of Section 101 of CERCLA
has occured at the Site and that certain remedial actions
have been and will be necessary to deal with that release.
Under CERCLA the Government may undertake remedial
action in response to a release, and responsible parties
may be liable, without regard to fault or negligence, for all
costs incurred. Such costs for the Site are currently esti-
mated by the Government at $60 million. The Government
also alleges that natural resources damages in the
approximate amount of $20-$25 million have been sus-
tained in connection with the Site.

The Action is in the discovery stage. The Company
intends to defend itself vigorously. In the event the Com-
pany is found to have liability in this matter, it anticipates
that the ultimate burden for remedial costs will be shared
among the numerous current defendants, third-party
defendants and counterclaim defendants in the Action.
Some of the remedial cost may be absorbed by the Super-
fund itself because of the nature of the Site, which is com-
prised largely of municipal solid wastes.

The Company’s insurers who provided liability cover-
age during the relevant period are participating in the
Company's defense under a reservation of rights.

The Company is currently unable to predict the out-
come of this matter as the actual cost of remedial action
has not been determined and the method of allocation of
liabiity among parties who may ultimately be found liable
remains uncertain. The Company believes, however, that
it is unlikely that any liability it may incur would have a
material adverse effect on its financial condition.

CURTISS-WRIGHT CORPORATION (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11. Contingencies

On December 21, 1990, the U.S Government filed a
complaint against the Corporation's wholly-owned sub-
sidiary, Target Rock Corporation, in the U.S. District Court
for the Eastern District of New York, asserting claims under
the False Claims Act and at common law. The complaint
alleges that the government has been damaged as a result
of (i) embezzlements from Target Rock by certain faithless,
former employees who caused it to make payments on
false travel and expense reports and on false or inflated
invoices from suppliers and (ii) mischarging of labor hours
to government subcontracts by former employees. The
complaint seeks approximately $22,000,000 in damages
and about $92,000,000 in penalties under the False
Claims Act, for a total claim of about $114,000,000, as well
as pre-judgment and post-judgment interest, costs and
attorneys’ fees. However, the information currently availa-
ble to Target Rock would not, in its opinion, substantiate a
claim for damages constituting more than a small fraction
of the $22,000,000 sum claimed. Target Rock intends to
defend the suit vigorously, and believes it has a number of
defenses available to it.

These charges are the result of an investigation
initiated by the Corporation in 1987. The Corporation
immediately advised the appropriate government authori-
ties of the irregularities and cooperated fully with them in
the ensuing criminal investigation which culminatedin the
indictment and guilty pleas of former employees and sup-
pliers. Target Rock was not charged in the criminal matter.
As aresult of the investigation, the employment of a num-
ber of senior officials of Target Rock, including the former
owner from whom Target Rock was acquired by the Cor-
poration, was terminated and other corrective actions,
including the installation of new management, were
promptly initiated.

While Target Rock was the victim of the embezzlements
(and a significant part of its resulting direct loss was reco-
vered under a blanket crime insurance policy), the embez-
zlements also had an indirect effect on the government as
an ultimate customer of Target Rock. The government
was promptly reimbursed by Target Rock for a substantial
portion of such damage as determined by Target Rock,
but efforts to reach agreement concerning any additional
amounts due the government have been unsuccessful.
While discussions also have taken place concerning the
allegations of labor mischarging in the complaint, the
government has been unwilling or unable to provide
detailed substantiation for these allegations.

Under current circumstances, no determination can be
made as to the ultimate outcome of the litigation or as to
the necessity for any provision, in the accompanying
financial statements, for any liability that may result from
afinal adjudication. Target Rock Corporation comprises a
major portion of the Flow Control and Marine segment,
information in respect of which appears in Note 19.
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DANAHER CORPORATION (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10. (In Part): Litigation and Contingencies:

Following nearly three weeks of testimony in the Fed-
eral District Court in Kansas City, Missouri, a jury awarded
approximately $2.4 million in actual damages and $2.7
million in punitive damages to the Sam Brown Company
of Kansas City (a former distributor), against Jacobs
Manufacturing Company (a subsidiary of the Company) of
Bloomfield, Connecticut, relating to the distribution
arrangement. Before the case was submitted to the jury,
the court ruled that Jacobs was entitled, as a matter of law,
to recovery of over $700,000 from Sam Brown Company
for its refusal to pay for products ordered from Jacobs in
1983. Jacobs' lawyers filed post-trial motions urging the
Court to set aside the jury verdict. The Company, after
consuliation with legal counsel, believes it is probable that
it will be successful on those motions, or through appeal.

A former subsidiary of the Company is engaged in liti-
gation in six states with respect to product liability. The
Company sold the subsidiary in 1987. Under the terms of
the sale agreement, the Company agreed to indemnify
the buyer of the subsidiary for product liability related to
tools manufactured by the subsidiary prior to June 4, 1987.
The cases involve approximately 3,000 plaintiffs. They
were filed in state and federal courts in six states in 1989
and 1990. All other major U.S. air tool manufacturers are
also defendants. The gravamen of these complaints is
that the defendents’ air tools, when used in different types
of manufacturing environments over extended periods
of time, were defective in design and caused various
physical injuries. The plaintiffs seek compensatory and
punitive damages. The cases are in preliminary stages of
discovery and pleading and the Company intends to defend
its position vigorously. The Company’s maximum indem-
nification obligation under the contract is approximately
$85,000,000. The Company believes it has insurance
coverage for all or a substantial part of the damages, if any.
The outcome of this litigation is not currently predictable.

In addition to the litigation noted above, the Company
and its subsidiaries are from time to time subject to routine
litigation incidental to their business. The Company
believes that the results of the above noted litigation and
other pending legal proceedings will not have a materially
adverse effect on the Company's financial condition.

DRESSER INDUSTRIES, INC. (OCT)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note K (In Part): Commitments and Contingencies
Litigation

In November, 1990, a Federal District Court in Midland,
Texas, following a jury verdict, entered a judgment against
the Company and Baker Hughes Incorporated and certain
of its affiliates (Baker Hughes) in favor of Parker & Parsley
Petroleum Company and related Plaintiffs. The judgment
awarded Plaintiffs $185 million in actual and punitive
damages as a result of alleged shortages in materials
supplied by the Company’s Titan operations and later by
BJ-Titan Services Company, a partnership between the
Company and Baker Hughes formed to perform oil and
gas well stimulation services.

The judgment assessed $61 million against the Com-
pany, $57 million against the Company and Baker Hughes
on a joint and several basis and $67 million against Baker
Hughes. The Company and Baker Hughes are contesting
aspects of the verdict and judgment and are preparing to
appeal the District Court’s ultimate judgment to the
United States Court of Appeals for the Fifth Circuit should
it be necessary to do so. Management and its legal coun-
sel are of the opinion that damages assessed against the
Company, if any, after completion of the appellate process
and the application of insurance proceeds, will not have a
material effect on the Company’s consolidated financial
position.

In 1988, the Company and Baker Hughes reached an
agreement settling certain patent-related litigation. Under
the terms of the agreement, Baker Hughes received the
Company's 27.66% interest in BJ-Titan Services Com-
pany and $23 million in cash.

The Company and its subsidiaries are involved in cer-
tain other legal actions and claims arising in the ordinary
course of business. Management believes (based on
advice of legal counsel) that such litigation and claims will
be resolved without material effect on the Company’s
financial position.

DYNAMICS CORPORATION OF AMERICA (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 15 (In Part): Contingencies

The Company is the defendant in a design patent
infringement action in the Federal Court in Connecticut in
which a judgment based on a jury’s verdict was entered
aginst the Company in December, 1990, for which the
Company has accrued $1,120,000. The plaintiff has moved
the court to treble the damages found by the jury and for
its attorney’s fees. The Company has opposed the plain-
tiff's motions and has moved to set aside the verdict as
unsupported by the evidence or, in the alternative, for a
new trial, which motions the plaintiff has opposed. The
Company intends to appeal the present judgment unless
vacated by the court. The Company is not able to predict
the outcome at this stage of the proceeding but an
unfavorable outcome would not have a materially adverse
effect on the financial position of the Company.

L. B. FOSTER COMPANY (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 17 (In Part): Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

In May 1989, Hassell Construction Co., Inc. (‘‘Hassell”)
filed suit against the Company in the district court of
Harris County, Texas alleging that the Company had failed
to provide coated, welded pipe, fittings, and joints in
accordance with contract specifications for a pipeline pro-
ject in the Houston area. In February 1991, the parties
involved agreed to settle the suit. The financial terms of
the settlement are subject to a confidentiality agreement;
however, the settlement will have no impact on the Com-
pany’s future earnings.

The Company is subject to other legal proceedings and
claims which arise in the ordinary course of its business.
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In the opinion of management, the amount of ultimate lia-
bility with respect to these actions will not materially affect
the financial position of the Company.

INSPIRATION RESOURCES CORPORATION (DEC)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. (In Part): Commitments and Contingencies

Through February 15, 1991, claims valued at approxi-
mately $72 million had been filed relating to product dam-
age associated with the contamination of a formulated
agricultural chemical. Management believes that the ulti-
mate settiement of claims for this loss will not exceed its
insurance coverage, which totals $80.0 million.

gDEERCF)‘ GLASS MANUFACTURING CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 10 (In Part): Commitments and Contingencies

On January 9, 1989, American National Can Company
(ANCC) filed an action against the Company in the United
States District Court for the Eastern District of lllinois in
connection with the sale by the Company of a glass plant
located in Millville, New Jersey (the site) to National Can
Company (now ANCC) in 1983. ANCC sought a declara-
tion that the Company is responsible under the Compre-
hensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and
Liability Act of 1980, as amended (CERCLA), and under
the contract pursuant to which the plant was sold to ANCC
for ANCC's past and future response costs with respect to
halzardous wastes present at the plant at the time of the
sale.

On March 24, 1989, the Company commenced a third-
party action against Armstrong World Industries (Arm-
strong) from whom the Company purchased the plant in
1969. In the third-party action, the Company alleged that
Armstrong is liable to the Company for any damages for
which the Company may be found liable because of the
ANCC action. The Company bases its claim on CERCLA
and on the contract under which Armstrong sold the plant
to the Company.

In November 1990, ANCC, the Company and Arm-
strong agreed in principle to a settlement that allocated
responsibility for the clean-up costs as follows: 1413% to
ANCC; 193% to the Company; 66'3% to Armstrong. The
parties estimated that the total cost of the clean up would
be approximately $7.7 million. The Company’s share
would be $1.5 million. Subsequent to the agreement in
principle, ANCC offered to release the Company from any
liability for the clean-up costs in exchange for a cash pay-
ment of $1.5 million. Settlement negotiations are under-
way which should result in the Company being relieved of
its liability relating to the clean-up of the site in exchange
for a cash payment of less than $1.5 million.

Counsel of the Company has advised that the Company
has meritorious claims against its insurers for the clean-
up costs and recovery of legal fees incurred relating to the
action. Based upon the foregoing, Counsel has advised
that it does not believe that the Company will ultimately
incur any material liability as a result of the ANCC action.

MEDTRONIC, INC. (APR)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 13 Commitments and Contingencies

in April 1988, in an action brought by Eli Lilly and Com-
pany (Lilly), the U.S. District Court in Philadelphia, Penn-
sylvania (District Court) imposed an injunction prohibiting
the company from making, using, or selling certain
implantable devices with defibrillation capabilities in the
United States until after certain patent rights have expired
(October 26, 1990). The patent relates to emerging
products in clinical testing and not yet commercialized by
the company. The District Court also entered judgment on
a jury verdict in March 1988 in this matter which awarded
damages against the company of $26.5 million. The com-
pany filed post-trial motions with the District Court con-
testing the finding of patent infringement and the amount
of damages assessed, and asked for a new trial. Lilly also
filed post-trial motions to increase the damages
assessed. These motions are still being considered by the
District Court.

In March 1989, a three-judge panel of the Court of
Appeals for the Federal Circuit (Appellate Court) reversed
the District Court’s decision imposing the injunction. In
June 1989, the District Court modified the injunction pur-
suant to the mandate issued by the three-judge panel to
allow Medtronic to conduct clinical testing of the devices
in the United States for the purpose of gathering and sub-
mitting data to the U.S. Food and Drug Administration.
Lilly appealed the Appellate Court’s decision to the United
States Supreme Court (Supreme Court), which on June
18, 1990, affirmed in Medtronic's favor. The District Court
will now conduct further proceedings to decide the impact
of the Supreme Court’s decision on the jury verdict of will-
ful infringement and the District Court’s findings of patent
infringement and damages in connection with Med-
tronic’s prior testing of the device, and to decide other
pending post-trial motions. The District Court's modified
injunction remains in effect until October 26, 1990, when
the patent rights expire.

The ultimate outcome of the litigation discussed in the
preceding paragraphs cannot presently be determined.
However, in management’s opinion, the likelihood of a
material adverse outcome is remote. Accordingly, adjust-
ments, if any, that might result from the resolution of these
matters have not been reflected in the financial
statements.

In addition to the above suit, the company is involved in
litigation and disputes which are normal to its business.
Management believes losses that might eventually be
sustained from such litigation and disputes would not be
material to future years. Further, product liability claims
may be asserted in the future relative to events not known
to management at the present time. The company has
insurance coverage which management believes is ade-
quate to protect against such product liability losses as
could materially affect the company's financial position.
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MEREDITH CORPORATION (JUN)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12 (In Part): Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

On October 24, 1989, the United States Department of
Justice filed a lawsuit in the United States District Court
for the Southern District of lowa against Meredith Reloca-
tion Corporation (MCR), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, and later also named Meredith Corporation as
a defendant, based on claims arising from the perfor-
mance by MRC of a contract with the General Services
Administration (GSA) for federal government employee
relocation services. The government terminated the con-
tract one year before it was due to expire, claiming MCR
had defaulted. The lawsuit, which alleges that MRC failed
to perform its obligations under the contract and submit-
ted false claims for services thereunder, claims violation
of the Civil False Claims Act and common law fraud,
breach of contract, unjust enrichment and payment by
mistake. The lawsuit seeks unspecified treble damages
and civil penalties with respect to the False Claims Act
allegations, and actual damages under the common law
claims, including approximately $7.7 million of alleged
excess reprocurement cost relating to the terminated
contract.

On November 14, 1989, several actual and potential
customers of MRC filed as a class action suit in the United
States District Court for the Southern District of lowa
against MRC and Meredith Corporation under the reloca-
tion services agreement which is the subject of the litiga-
tion matter described in the preceding paragraph. The
suit seeks actual and treble damages, costs and attor-
neys’ fees and an order permanently barring the defen-
dants from providing goods and services to the
government. The suit alleges restraint of trade, violation of
the civil provisions of the Racketeer Influenced and Cor-
rupt Organizations Act (RICO), fraud, breach of contract
and unjust enrichment in connection with the providing of
relocation services. As of August 31, 1990, class certifica-
tion had not been requested or granted.

Management of the Company believes that MRC’s per-
formance under the contract was proper and intends to
vigorously defend against the lawsuits. In addition, the
Company has filed a claim against the government for
damages resulting from the GSA’s improper description
of information relied upon by the Company in its bid on the
contract and GSA’s failure to disclose related additional
information. The Company also has appealed from the
termination of the contract and the government’s claim for
excess reprocurement costs.

In the opinion of management, the existing litigation
and claims are not considered to be material in relation to
the Company'’s financial position.

MICRON TECHNOLOGY, INC. (AUG)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Contingencies

With regard to possible patent infringement claims, the
Company makes provision and recognizes a liability for
estimated costs and expenses of obtaining licenses for
product and process technology and the cost of establish-
ing whether technology used by the Company infringes

on valid rights held by others. There can be no assurance
that the amounts provided have been or will be adequate.
Future events, including litigation or settlement of claims,
could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s
financial position or results of operations.

A consolidated class action complaint was filed on
January 18, 1990, in the United States District Court for the
District of Idaho in substitution for five similar suits previ-
ously filed against the Company and certain of its past and
present officers and directors. The suit alleges federal
securities law violations in connection with certain state-
ments allegedly made by the Company during the period
from approximately December 1988 through September
1989 and claims of insider trading violations by certain
past and present officers and directors as well as pendent
state law claims. The suit seeks compensatory damages
and costs. The Company believes the allegations are
without merit and intends to defend the action vigorously.
In view of the early stage of the litigation, the Company
cannot predict the outcome of the suit or estimate the
amount of loss, if any. Accordingly, no provision for any lia-
bility that may result has been made in the financial state-
ments. Micron is a party in various other legal actions
arising out of the normal course of business, none of
which is expected to have a material effect on the Com-
pany’s financial position or results of operations.

WESTINGHOUSE ELECTRIC CORPORATION (DEC)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 20 (In Pari): Contingent Liabilities and Commitments
Litigation

An age discrimination suit was filed by the Equal
Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC) in the
early 1980s alleging that the Corporation’s policy relating
to severance benefits available to certain retirement eligi-
ble employees violated the Age Discrimination in Employ-
ment Act. After prolonged litigation, a decision was
rendered in 1990 in favor of Westinghouse. A petition by
the EEOC for rehearing on a limited issue in the case was
granted and the issue was reargued. On January 31, 1991,
the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Third Circuit ruled in
favor of Westinghouse. Management believes this matter
will ultimately be resolved with no material adverse finan-
cial impact.

In December 1988, the Repubilic of the Philippines and
the Philippines National Power Corporation filed a 15
count lawsuit against the Corporation and another party in
connection with the construction of a nuclear power plant
in the Philippines. All of the allegations, except an allega-
tion relating to tortious interference of fiduciary duty, are
now the subject of arbitration before the International
Chamber of Commerce in Geneva, Switzerland. The Cor-
poration deems the claims against it to be without merit.

At present, there are nine pending actions brought by
utilities claiming a substantial amount of damages in con-
nection with alleged tube degradation in steam genera-
tors sold by the Corporation as components for nuclear
steam supply systems. Management believes that the
Corporation has meritorious defenses to these actions.
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Financial Guarantees

ASHLAND OIL, INC. (SEP)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note I (In Part): Litigation, Claims and Contingencies

Ashland has indemnified the purchaser of Riley Con-
solidated, an engineering company sold in 1990, against
losses related to certain custom boilers built by Riley
using multi-solid fluidized bed (MSFB) boiler technology.
Riley has experienced significant technical performance
problems with these boilers, resulting in charges of
$15,000,000 in 1990, $38,000,000 in 1989 and $20,000,000
in 1988 for estimated future corrective costs. At Septem-
ber 30, 1990, Ashland is also contingently liable under per-
formance guarantees of up to $53,500,000 (subject to
reduction for eligible costs incurred) related to a cogener-
ation project in Archbald, Pennsylvania designed and
built using MSFB boiler technology, and has indemnified
the purchaser of Riley against losses under an operations
and maintenance agreement related to the project. Addi-
tional charges could be incurred with respect to these
contingencies, but any amounts are uncertain at this time.

BAKER HUGHES INCORPORATED (SEP)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 13 (In Part): Commitments and Contingencies:

In June 1988, the Company sold, with no significant
effect on the consolidated financial statements, 87.5% of
its 80.1% common stock interest in V-G to Bain Venture
Capital. At September 30, 1990, the Company remains
contingently liable for certain bank notes issued by V-G
amounting to $12,759,000. These bank notes may be
reduced by payments by V-G or through the sale of cer-
tain assets of V-G and its subsidiaries pledged to the
banks. In addition, the Company is contingently liable for
$5,838,000 of performance bond letters of credit made by
the Company on behalf of V-G. The Company does not
expect the ultimate resolution of these contingencies to
have a significant effect on the Company’s consolidated
financial position or results of operations.

THE COASTAL CORPORATION (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 5 (In Part): Debt

Guarantees

Coastal and certain subsidiaries have guaranteed
specific obligations of several unconsolidated affiliates.
Such affiliates are generally not required to coliateralize
their contingent liabilities to the Company. At December
31, 1990, the Company had guaranteed construction
financings entered into by three partially-owned partner-
ships with an aggregate outstanding principal balance of
$123.0 million and other financings and trade obligations
of various unconsolidated affiliates with a principal balance
of approximately $258.0 million. The Company anticipates
that two of the guaranteed construction loans with an

outstanding principal balance of $81.0 million will be
refinanced on a non-recourse basis at completion of con-
struction and that it will incur no cash requirements or
losses in connection with these guarantees. The third
guaranteed construction loan is expected to be
refinanced on a guaranteed basis. The Company is of the
opinion that its unconsolidated affiliates will be able to
perform under their respective financings and trade obli-
gations and that no payments will be required and no
losses incurred under such guarantees. The Company
has issued certain guarantees and indemnities in connec-
tion with contingent obligations of the partially-owned
partnerships. The Company’s financial requirements
under such guarantees and indemnities totaled approxi-
mately $62.0 million at December 31, 1990. These guaran-
tees and indemnities are expected to terminate within a
relatively short time period, with no cash requirements or
losses anticipated.

Coastal and certain subsidiaries have guaranteed
approximately $10 million of obligations of third parties
under leases and borrowing arrangements. Most of these
guarantees are in connection with obligations of contrac-
tors employed by subsidiaries on an extended basis.
Where possible the Company has obtained security
interests and guarantees by the principals. Cash require-
ments and losses under these guarantees are expected to
be nominal.

KMART CORPORATION (JAN)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

L (In Part): Leases

The company has guaranteed indebtedness related to
certain leased properties financed by industrial revenue
bonds. As of January 30, 1991, the total amount of guaran-
teed indebtedness was $307 million, of which $102 million
is included in capital lease obligations. The agreements
expire during the fiscal years 2004-2009. The company’s
exposure to credit loss, in the event of nonperformance by
the other parties to the agreements, is $205 million. How-
ever, no concentration of credit risk exists and the com-
pany does not anticipate nonperformance by the
counterparties.

MOBIL CORPORATION (DEC)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17 (In Part): Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

Mobil has guaranteed $167 million of the obligations of
others, excluding $278 million of certain cross-
guarantees, primarily foreign customs duties, made with
other responsible companies in the ordinary course of
business. In addition, Mobil has guaranteed specified
revenues from crude oil, product and carbon dioxide ship-
ments under agreements with pipeline companies in which
it holds stock interests. If these companies are unable to
meet certain obligations, Mobil may be required to
advance funds against future transportation charges. No
material loss is anticipated under these guarantees.
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PENNZOIL COMPANY (DEC)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. Financial Instruments with Off-Balance-Sheet Risk
and Concentrations of Credit Risk-

Financial Instruments with Off-Balance-Sheet Risk-

Pennzoil is a party to various financial instruments with
off-balance-sheet risk as part of its normal course of busi-
ness, including financial guarantees and contractual
commitments to extend financial guarantees, credit and
other assistance to customers, franchises and other third
parties. These financial instruments involve, to varying
degrees, elements of credit risk which are not recognized
in Pennzoil’s consolidated balance sheet.

The financial guarantees primarily relate to debt and
lease obligation guarantees with expiration dates of up to
twenty years issued to third parties to guarantee the per-
formance of customers and franchisees in the quick lube
franchise industry. Commitments to extend credit are also
provided to quick lube franchise industry participants to
finance equipment purchases, working capital needs
and, in some cases, the acquisition of land and construc-
tion of buildings. Contractual commitments to extend
credit and other assistance are in effect as long as certain
conditions established in the respective contracts are
met. Contractual commitments to extend financial
gurarantees are conditioned on the occurrence of speci-
fied events. The largest of these commitments is to pro-
vide a guarantee for a letter of credit issued by a third party
to meet the reinsurance requirements of Pennzoil’s cap-
tive insurance subsidiary. This commitment has no stated
maturity and is expected to vary in amount from year to
year to meet the reinsurance requirements. The credit risk
to Pennzoil is mitigated by the insurance subsidiary’s
portfolio of high-quality short-term investments used to
collateralize the letter of credit. At December 31, 1990, the
collateral was valued at 123% of the credit risk.

Following are the amounts related to Pennzoil’s finan-
cial guarantees and contractual commitments to extend
financial guarantees, credit and other assistance as of
December 31, 1990.

Contract or
Notional Amounts
(Expressed in
thousands)
Financial guarantees $29,559
Commitments to extend financial
guarantees
Guarantee of letter of credit 28,683
Other guarantees 10,439
Commitments to extend credit and other
assistance 10,855
Total financial guarantees and
commitments $79,536

Pennzoil’s exposure to credit loss in the event of non-
performance by the other parties to these financial instru-
ments is represented by the contractual or notional
amounts. Decisions to extend financial guarantees and
commitments and the amount of remuneration and
collateral required is based on management’s credit
evaluation of the counterparties on a case-by-case basis.
The collateral held varies but may include accounts

receivable, inventory, equipment, real property, securities
and personal assets. Since many of the commitments are
expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total
commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future
cash requirements.

Concentrations of Credit Risk—

Pennzoil extends credit to various companies in the oil
and gas, motor oil and automotive products, sulphur and
quick lube franchise industries in the normal course of
business. Within these industries, certain concentrations
of credit risk exist. In the oil and gas industry, PEPCO, in
the role of operator of co-owned properties, assumes
responsibility for payment to vendors for goods and serv-
ices related to joint operations and extends credit to co-
owners of these properties. In the motor oil and automo-
tive products industry, Pennzoil Products Company, a
wholly owned subsidiary of Pennzoil, markets motor oil
and other automotive products to various national
wholesalers and retailers. Sulphur sales are made primar-
ily to customers for use in the manufacturinig of phos-
phate fertilizer materials. Jiffy Lube, as a franchisor in the
quick lube franchise industry, extends credit to fran-
chisees for royalties, rents and automotive products.

These concentrations of credit risk within specific indus-
tries may be similarly affected by changes in economic or
other conditions and may, accordingly, impact Pennzoil’s
overall credit risk. However, management believes that
consolidated accounts receivable are well diversified,
thereby reducing potential credit risk to Pennzoil, and that
allowances for doubtful accounts are adequate to absorb
estimated losses as of December 31, 1990. Pennzoil’s
policy concerning collateral requirements and the types of
collateral obtained for on-balance-sheet financial instru-
ments are the same as those described above under
“Financial Instruments with Off-Balance-Sheet Risk.”

At December 31, 1990, accounts receivable related to
these group concentrations in the oil and gas, motor oil
and automotive products, sulphur, and quick lube fran-
chise industries were $37,311,000, $19,361,000,
$28,923,000, and $70,020,000, respectively. In addition,
Jiffy Lube has guaranteed approximately $25,654,000 of
future loan and lease payments as of December 31, 1990.

PACCAR INC (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(thousands of dollars)

N. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company is required to assure that its finance and
leasing subsidiaries will maintain specified levels of cash
flow or ratios of earnings to fixed charges. In 1990,
assistance of $7,487 was provided principally to a domes-
tic finance subsidiary. In 1989, assistance of $294 was
provided to foreign finance subsidiaries. The effect of
these intercompany transactions has been eliminated in
consolidation.

At December 31, 1990, PACCAR had standby letters of
credit outstanding totalling $30,119, which guarantee vari-
ous insurance and financing activities.
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PEPSICO, INC. (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Contingencies

PepsiCo is subject to various claims and legal contin-
gencies. While the ultimate liability that could result from
these matters cannot be determined presently, manage-
ment believes such liability will not have a material adverse
affect on PepsiCo’s business or financial condition.

Atyear-end 1990 PepsiCo was contingently liable under
direct and indirect guarantees aggregating $97 million.
The guarantees are primarily issued to support financial
arrangements of certain restaurant and soft drink bottling
franchisees and PepsiCo joint ventures. PepsiCo
manages the risk associated with these guarantees by
performing appropriate credit reviews in addition to retain-
ing certain rights as a franchisor or joint venture partner.

PHILLIPS-VAN HEUSEN CORPORATION (JAN)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollar amounts in thousands, except per share)

Other Comments (In Part):

During 1989, the Company sold The Shoe Box, Inc.
(‘“Shoe Box’’), a chain of 35 stores located throughout
Texas. The net assets of Shoe Box were segregated and
classified as Net Assets Held For Sale in the Company’s
balance sheet at the end of 1988. In connection with this
sale, the Company has guaranteed that certain lease pay-
ments will be made by the purchasers of Shoe Box. The
amount of future lease payments guaranteed by the Com-
pany totals $4,261 at February 3, 1991.

TYSON FOODS, INC. (SEP)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 8 (In Part): Commitments and Contingencies

Lease Commitments

The company is guarantor of leases under an agree-
ment involving some of its poultry growers and a leasing
company. As security, the company holds mortgages on
the real property where the facilities are located and cash
deposits paid by the pouitry growers. At September 28,
1990, $15.0 million of these leases were guaranteed by the
company. The terms of these leases are up to seven
years. The amount guaranteed by the company reduces
during the seven year term as the outstanding balance of
the lease declines. Also, the company assists certain of its
swine and poultry growers in obtaining financing for
growout facilities by providing the growers with extended
growout contracts and conditional operation of the facili-
ties should a grower default under their growout or loan
agreement.

UNIVERSAL CORPORATION (JUN)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 10 (In Part): Commitments and Other Matters

At June 30, 1990 total exposure under guarantees
issued for banking facilities of unconsolidated affiliates
was $7 million. Other commitments and contingent liabili-
ties approximate $103 million and relate principally to let-
ters of credit issued as performance bonds and other
guarantees.

VULCAN MATERIALS COMPANY (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

9 (In Part): Other Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

In 1987 the Company formed three jointly-owned com-
panies with Industrias ICA, S.A. de CV,, (“Indica”), a
principal member of Grupo ICA, one of Mexico’s leading
diversified industrial entities, to develop and operate a
limestone quarry on Mexico’s Yucatan peninsula and to
import Mexican crushed stone into U.S. Gulf Coast markets.
The shareholder agreements for these three companies
provide that each sponsor will contribute its share of the
equity required to fund the project, which is currently esti-
mated to be $50,000,000 to $55,000,000 each. Through
December 31, 1990, the Company contributed to the
ventures approximately $40,714,000; Indica contributed a
nearly equal pro rata amount. All equity contributions are
expected to be made by December 31, 1991. Two of the
jointly-owned companies have entered into loan agree-
ments and obtained loan guarantee commitments to fund
up to $68,205,000 of their investments. The Company and
Indica have agreed to guarantee these loans on a several
and pro rata basis equal to approximately 50% each.
Certain of the loan guarantees will be terminated if and
when the project meets defined financial tests.

In December 1990 the Company and Indica terminated
certain of their guarantees that supported the planned
construction of two vessels by a Brazilian shipyard. The
termination of these guarantees is expected to resultin an
additional $23,000,000 loan commitment being made
availabie to two of the jointly-owned companies. This loan
commitment would be guaranteed by the Company and
Indica on a several and pro rata basis equal to approxi-
mately 50% each. If this loan commitment is not obtained,
the required equity contributions from the Company and
Indica would each be increased by approximately
$11,500,000.

THE WILLIAMS COMPANIES, INC. (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12 (In Part): Other Financial Information

In connection with discontinued operations and the
related disposition of certain assets in 1987, William
guaranteed certain lease rentals sufficient for the purchaser
to meet a portion of debt service. At December 31, 1990,
the maximum estimated loss under this arrangement is
approximately $30 million, before consideration of future
contractual and estimated sublease income, which is
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expected to be substantial. In addition, Williams guaran-
teed a portion of a $60 million promissory note which was
received as proceeds and then sold to a financial institu-
tion. The guarantee includes both interest yield and default
provisions that could result at maturity in a currently esti-
mated maximum loss of $16 million. After consideration of
amount accrued, Williams believes the likelihood of a
material loss from these guarantees is remote.

Williams has issued other guarantees with off-balance-
sheet risk, which total approximately $15 million. Williams
believes it will not have to perform under these agree-
ments because the likelihood of default by the primary
party is remote and/or because of certain indemnifica-
tions received from other third parties.

XEROX CORPORATION (DEC)

NQOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14 (In Part): Long-Term Debt

Guarantees. The Company has earnings support
agreements with certain subsidiaries, including XCC.
However, the Company generally does not guarantee the
debt of subsidiary companies. Pursuant to a Support
Agreement between the Company and XCC, the Com-
pany has agreed to make periodic payments to XCC to the
extent necessary to ensure that XCC’s annual earnings
available for fixed charges equal at least 1.25 times XCC'’s
fixed charges. As a result of the provision for estimated
losses on investments in and advances to VMS Partners
referred to in Note 4 on Page 48, in 1990 the Company
made or accrued cash payments of $340 million to XCC in
accordance with this agreement. This payment does not
affect consolidated net income. The Company has
%téaoria:nteed and effectively assumed the borrowings of its

Letters of Credit

AMERICAN TELEPHONE AND TELEGRAPH COM-
PANY (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Dollars in millions (except per share amounts)

R (In Part): Commitments and Contingencies

Commitments

AT&T uses various financial instruments in the normal
course of its business. These financial instruments
include commitments to extend credit, letters of credit,
interest rate swap transactions and foreign currency
exchange contracts.

All such instruments, by their nature, involve risk and the
maximum potential loss exceeds the total of contracted
amounts. As is customary for these types of financial
instruments, AT&T usually does not require collateral or
other security from the parties to the instruments. How-
ever, because AT&T controls the credit risk of these instru-
ments through credit approvals, limits and monitoring
procedures,. management believes that reserves for
losses are adequate.

Commitments to Extend Credit

AT&T is engaged in the general-purpose credit and cali-
ing card business through AT&T Universal Card Services,
a wholly owned subsidiary. Under an agreement with the
Universal Bank, a subsidiary of Synovus Financial Corpo-
ration that issues the cards, AT&T purchases essentially
all cardholder receivables. If all cardholders had utilized
their full credit at December 31, 1990, AT&T would have
been obligated to purchase $20,250 of receivables in
addition to those included in the consolidated balance
sheet. Actual cardholder credit utilization is usually only a
fraction of available credit. As credit utilization increases,
additional revenues from the card operation are
generated.

Letters of Credit

Letters of credit are conditional commitments issued on
behalf of customers to pay third parties in accordance
with specified terms and conditions. At December 31,
1990, AT&T had outstanding letters of credit of $325.

Interest Rate Swap Agreements

AT&T enters into interest rate swap agreements to man-
age exposure to changes in interest rates by more closely
matching the maturity of its debt to that of its finance asset
portfolio. The transactions generally involve the exchange
of fixed and floating interest payment obligations without
the exchange of the underlying principal amounts. At
December 31, 1990, the total notional principal amount of
outstanding interest rate swap agreements was $477. In
addition to the financial risk that will vary during the life of
these swap agreements in relation to the maturity of the
underlying debt and market interest rates, AT&T is subject
to credit risk exposure from nonperformance of the coun-
terparties to the swap agreements.

Foreign Exchange

AT&T enters into foreign currency exchange contracts,
including forward, options and swap contracts, to reduce
exposure to foreign currency exchange risk. At December
31, 1990, AT&T had net forward exchange contracts valued
at $516, swap contracts valued at $403, and no material
options contracts outstanding.

EMERSON RADIO CORP. (MAR)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note G (In Part): Commitments and Contingencies:

(2) Letters of Credit:

Outstanding letters of credit, not reflected in the accom-
panying financial statements, aggregated approximately
$56,380,000 at March 31, 1990.

At March 31, 1990 and 1989, ‘‘prepaid expenses and
other current assets’ include a $6,000,000 certificate of
deposit which is being maintained as collateral for a
$6,000,000 standby letter of credit agreement. The Com-
pany also has unsecured standby letters of credit
aggregating $14,000,000 at March 31, 1990.
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Receivables Sold With Recourse

AM INTERNATIONAL, INC. (JUL)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

Note 5—Contingency Matters

The Company has been notified of various environmen-
tal matters in connection with certain current or former
Company locations in Ohio, New York, New Jersey, Con-
necticut, Kentucky, Indiana and California. At the present
time, it is management’s opinion, based on information
available to the Company and management’s experience
in such matters, that the ultimate resolution of these mat-
ters will not have a material adverse effect on the Com-
pany’s financial position.

The Company is involved in various other administra-
tive and legal proceedings incidental to its business,
including product liability and general liability lawsuits
against which the Company is partially insured. The reso-
lution of these other proceedings is not expected to have
a material adverse effect on the business or the financial
position of the Company.

The Company has sold certain receivables related to
machine sales, subject to limited recourse provisions. At
July 31, 1990, the outstanding balance on such receiva-
bles for which the Company is contingently liable was
$16,100, net of provisions for any anticipated losses.
Generally, the machines related to the receivables sold
serve as collateral for the Company.

DOVER CORPORATION (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13 (In Part): Contingencies:

Certain lease receivables entered into by the Com-
pany's finance divisions were sold during 1989 and 1990,
with limited recourse, to a third party. The leases cover
machinery and equipment manufactured by the Company
and involve thousands of customers. There is no signifi-
cant concentration of credit risk. Generally, the lease
period does not exceed five years. The leases are collater-
alized by security deposits and Uniform Commercial
Code filings; equipment is subject to repossession in the
event of lease default. The outstanding balance on such
receivables at December 31, 1990, was $61 million ($54
million at December 31, 1989) of which the Company has
a contingent liability of $11.1 million should all of the
receivables become uncollectible.

FLEETWOOD ENTERPRISES, INC. (APR)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. Sale of Retail Sales Contracts, Servicing Income and
Finance Receivables

Periodically, Fleetwood Credit Corp. sells retail contracts it
has purchased from dealers of Fleetwood RV products.
The finance company sold $143,318,000, $75,510,000 and
$55,156,000 of such contracts in fiscal years 1990, 1989

and 1988, respectively. Included in the valuation of these
transactions are the expenses of the sale, amounts
associated with related interest rate hedging transactions,
and unamortized interest subvention. There was no gain
or loss recognized on these transactions in fiscal 1990,
1989 or 1988. At April 30, 1990 and 1989, respectively, the
outstanding balance of the sold receivables was
$191,775,000 and $115,776,000.

The finance company continues to service these sold
receivables for the benefit of the purchasers, for which it
receives a servicing fee. The finance company’s maxi-
mum potential liability on these sold receivables, either in
direct obligations or under reimbursement agreements,
was $15450,000 at April 30, 1990. In the opinion of
management, the allowance for potential credit losses is
adequate to cover these obligations.

LOCTITE CORPORATION (JUN)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 7 (In Part): Commitments and Contingencies

The outstanding amount of receivables sold to financial
institutions with recourse was $522,000 at June 30, 1990
and $687,000 at June 30, 1989. Proceeds from these trans-
actions were $10,309,000 for the year ended June 30,
1990, $8,125,000 for the year ended June 30, 1989 and
$8,026,000 for the year ended June 30, 1988.

NAVISTAR INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION (OCT)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8 (In Part): Receivables

Amounts due from sale of receivables represent the
portion of the receivables sales price withheld by the pur-
chaser at the time Navistar Financial sells retail install-
ment notes receivable with limited recourse provisions.
Such amounts are generally paid to Navistar Financial as
the notes are collected. The amounts withheld can be
used by the purchasers to absorb future credit losses. An
allowance for losses on the sold notes, representing esti-
mated losses which may be charged to amounts withheld
by the purchasers of the receivables, has been netted
against the amounts due from sale of the receivables. Pro-
ceeds from the sale of these receivables amounted to
$264 million in 1990, $375 million in 1989 and $311 million
in 1988. Uncollected sold receivable balances were $441
million and $469 million as of October 31, 1990 and 1989,
respectively.

Navistar Financial has a $600 million retail notes receiv-
able sales facility available to August 1993. Unused com-
mitments under this facility at October 31, 1990, were $444
million.

16. Commitments, Contingent Liabilities and Restrictions
on Assets

At October 31, 1990, commitments for capital expendi-
tures in progress were approximately $45 million.

Transportation was contingently liable at October 31,
1990, for approximately $14 million for guarantees of debt
and for bid and performance bonds. As of October 31,
1990, Harbour Bermuda was contingently liable for claims
in the amount of $5 million.
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At October 31, 1990, the Canadian operating subsidiary
was contingently liable for retail customers’ contracts and
leases financed by a third party. The Company is subject
to maximum recourse of $124 million on retail contracts
and $27 miillion on retail leases. Based on historical loss
trends however, the Company’s exposure to loss is not
significant.

The Canadian operating subsidiary and certain subsidi-
aries included in Financial Services are parties to agree-
ments which can be distributed to Transportation in the
form of dividends, loans or advances. As of October 31,
1990, $70 million of equity was available for distribution to
transportation.

The Parent Company and Transportation are obligated
under certain agreements with public and private lenders
of Navistar Financial to maintain the subsidiary’s income
before interest expense and income taxes at not less than
125% of its total interest expense. No income main-
tenance payments were required for the three years
ended October 31, 1990.

17. Financial Instruments with Off-Balance-Sheet Risk

In order to meet the financing needs of its cutomers and
to reduce its exposure to fluctuations in exchange and
interest rates, the Company is a party to certain financial
instruments and contractual obligations through the nor-
mal course of business which may involve elements of
credit and market risk in excess of amounts recognized in
the Statement of Financial Condition. These financial
instruments include receivables sold with limited
recourse, interest rate swaps, financial guarantees, for-
ward exchange contracts and letters of credit. Credit risk
for these off-balance-sheet financial instruments is con-
centrated in North America and the trucking industry.

Note 8 and Note 16 discuss receivables sold with
limited recourse; Note 14 describes the interest rate swap
agreements; Note 16 discloses information about finan-
cial guarantees. The market risk on forward exchange
contracts and the credit risk on letters of credit are not
material.

RALSTON PURINA COMPANY (SEP)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in millions, except per share date)

Commitments and Contingencies (In Part)

At September 30, 1990, the Company had third party
guarantees outstanding in the aggregate amount of
approximately $40.0. These guarantees relate to financial
arrangements with customers, suppliers, and other busi-
ness relationships. The Company sells certain of its trade
accounts receivable and notes receivable to others sub-
ject to defined limited recourse provisions, which include
repurchase by the Company of delinquent notes receiva-
ble. The Company is responsible for collection of the
accounts and remits the proceeds to the purchaser on a
monthly basis. During 1990, the Company sold, on aver-
age, accounts receivable totaling $53.0 each month. At
September 30, 1990, $19.0 of transferred receivables were
outstanding and subject to recourse provisions.

At September 30, 1990, the Company’s primary con-
centration of credit related to approximately $60.0 of trade
accounts receivable due from several highly leveraged

customers. Consideration was given to the financial posi-
tion of these customers when determining the appropriate
allowance for doubtful accounts.

SPX CORPORATION (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6 (In Part): Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

The Company has a leasing program whereby certain
lease receivables are sold to financial institutions with
limited recourse. In the event of default by a lessee, the
financial institution has recourse equal to their net lease
receivable. In turn, the Company receives the collateral-
ized lease equipment. The total recourse available to the
financial institutions is limited per agreement. In 1990,
1989 and 1988, $21,115,000, $7,390,000 and $2,907,000 of
lease receivables were sold to financial institutions gener-
ating $2,453,000, $997,000 and $418,000 in other income.
At December 31, 1990 and 1989, lease receivables held by
financial institutions which are subject to recourse were
$33910,000 and $16900,000. Correspondingly, allowances
for recourse liabilities net of manufactured standard cost
value were $1,685,000 and $785,000 at December 31, 1990
and 1989.

SUNDSTRAND CORPORATION (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial Instruments With Off-Balance-Sheet Risk

The Company is party to financial instruments with off-
balance-sheet risk in the normal course of business to
meet financing needs and to reduce its own exposure to
fluctuations in exchange rates. These financial instru-
ments include financial guarantees, a revolving receiva-
ble sale arrangement, and forward exchange contracts.
These instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements
of credit and/or exchange rate risk in excess of the amount
recognized in the financial statements.

Financial guarantees are conditional commitments
issued by the Company to guarantee the payment of cer-
tain liabilities of unconsolidated afiliates and unaffiliated
entities to third parties. These guarantees are issued
primarily to support borrowing arrangements, and are
scheduled to expire, subject to extension, during 1991.
The Company guarantees the payment of certain liabili-
ties arising in connection with an employee relocation pro-
gram. These guarantees are collateralized by residential
properties, as deemed appropriate.

The revolving receivable sale arrangement enables the
Company to sell certain current trade receivables to a
financial institution through March 1991, while continuing
to service the accounts. Under the agreement’s recourse
provision, the Company is obligated to repurchase any
uncollectible receivables sold up to a maximum of nine
percent of the total contract amount.

Forward exchange contracts are contracts for delivery
or purchase of foreign currencies at specified future
dates. At December 31, 1990, the Company had contracts
primarily maturing during 1991 to sell the equivalent of
$54.1 million and to purchase $35 million in foreign
currency.
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The Company’s exposure to credit loss for receivables
sold is represented by the recourse provision and for
financial guarantees is represented by the contractual
amount of these guarantees. For forward contracts, the
contract amounts do not represent exposure to credit loss
but represent currency exposure if the other party fails to
perform under the contract.

The contract amounts and the maximum credit loss in
the event of non-performance by any of the parties is as
follows at December 31, 1990:

Maximum
o Contract Credit
(Amounts in millions) Amount Loss

Financial instruments whose contract
amounts represent credit risk:
Financial Guarantees $65 $ 6.5
Financial instruments whose contract
a_n;(ounts exceed the amount of credit
risk:
Receivable sale arrangement $23.3 $27

Concentrations of Credit Risk

ALUMINUM COMPANY OF AMERICA (DEC)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in millions, except share amounts)

G. Financial Instruments

Under a power contract that expires no earlier tha 2011,
Alcoa s entitled to a fixed percentage of the annual output
from a Northwest U.S. hydroelectric facility. Alcoa makes
minimum annual payments of $4 whether or not it
receives power. Alcoa could be required to increase its
participation if other parties to the contract defaulted. If all
other parties had defaulted as of December 31, 1990,
Alcoa’s maximum liability would have been about $200.
There Is no reason to believe the other parties will default
or that power will not be provided.

At December 31, 1990 Alcoa had open currency
exchange commitments of $2,221. These contracts are
part of a worldwide program to minimize foreign exchange
operating income and balance sheet exposure. The con-
tracts generally mature within 12 months and are prin-
cipally unsecured forward exchange contracts with banks.

ARVIN INDUSTRIES, INC. (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 16—Off-Balance-Sheet Risk and Concentrations of
Credit

In 1990 the FASB issued Statement No. 105 which
requires disclosure of information about financial instru-
ments with off-balance-sheet risk and about concentra-
tions of credit risk for all financial instruments.

Off-Balance-Sheet Risk: The Company, on occasion,
uses forward exchange contracts and options to hedge its
exposure in foreign currencies. The options and forward

exchange contracts are used to minimize the impact of
foreign currency fluctuations on the Company’s revenues
and costs and are not used to engage in speculation. At
December 30, 1990 the amount of the Company’s options
and forward exchange contracts outstanding was not
material.

Concentrations of Credit Risk: Financial instruments
which potentially expose the Company to concentrations
of credit risk, as defined by Statement No. 105, consist
primarily of trade accounts receivable.

The Company'’s customer base includes virtually every
significant automotive manufacturer and a large number
of well known jobbers, distributors and installers of
automotive replacement parts in North America and
Europe. Although the Company is directly affected by the
well-being of the automotive industry, management does
not believe significant credit risk exists at December 30,
1990.

BAXTER INTERNATIONAL INC. (DEC)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Concentration of Credit Risk and Financial Instruments

The company provides credit, in the normal course of
business, to hospitals, private and governmental institu-
tions and health-care agencies, insurance agencies and
doctor’s offices. The company performs ongoing credit
evaluations of its customers and maintains allowances for
potential credit losses which, when realized, have been
within the range of management’s expectations.

Baxter utilizes financial futures, options and interest
rate cap and collar agreements to minimize the com-
pany’s exposure to adverse movements in interest rates
related to various debt instruments. Gains, losses and
premiums paid on those instruments are deferred and
amortized as a discount or premium to the financing over
the life of the respective issues.

During 1990, the company purchased one-year interest
rate caps with prinicipal amounts totaling $700 million.
During 1989, the company entered into a two-year interest
rate collar agreement with a principal amount of $100 mil-
lion. Both of these agreements relate to hedges which will
protect the company from extreme volatility in interest
rates through December 31, 1991.

The counterparties to the interest rate cap and collar
agreements are characterized as well-respected, major
financial institutions. To decrease the risk of nonperfor-
mance which may result in credit losses, the company
diversifies its selection of counterparties.

The company invest the majority of its excess cash
(primarily generated in Puerto Rico) in certificates of
deposit with major banks located there. These certificates
typically have a maturity of 30-45 days. The company has
not experienced any losses on its certificate of deposit
investments.
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(BDRE%\;VN & SHARPE MANUFACTURING COMPANY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 (In Part): Significant Accounting Policies
Credit Risk

Financial instruments which potentially subject the
Company to concentrations of credit risk consist prin-
cipally of temporary cash investments and trade receiva-
bles. The Company places its temporary cash
investments with high credit quality financial institutions
and, by policy, limits the amount of credit exposure to any
one financial institution. Concentrations of credit risk with
respect to trade receivables are limited due to the Com-
pany’s large number of customers and their dispersion
across many different industries and countries worldwide.
As of December 29, 1990, the Company had no significant
concentrations of credit risk.

CBS INC. (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8 (In Part): Commitment and Contingent Liabilities (Dol-
lars in millions)

The Company is required by SFAS No. 105, “Disclosure
of Information about Financial Instruments with Off-
Balance-Sheet Risk and Financial Instruments with Con-
centrations of Credit Risk,’ to disclose significant concen-
trations of credit risk regardless of the degree of such risk.
At December 31, 1990, the Company held U.S. Govern-
ment securities of $816.7 and securities of gas and electric
utilities of $575.2 (of which $223.4 were collateralized by
U.S. Government securities). Subsequent to December
31, 1990, the Company reduced its holdings in these secu-
rities in connection with the funding of its tender offer
(note 15) and these concentrations are no longer consid-
ered significant.

CMI CORPORATION (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 (In Part): Description of Business and Summary of
Significant Accounting Policies

Business and Credit Concentrations

The Company's customers are not concentrated in any
specific geographic region, but are concentrated in the
road construction business. No single customer
accounted for a significant amount of the Company’s
sales in 1990 and 1989 (see note 3 regarding 1988) and
there were no significant accounts receivable from a sin-
gle customer at December 31, 1990. The Company
reviews a customer’s credit history before extending
credit. The Company establishes an allowance for doubt-
ful accounts based upon factors surrounding the credit
risk of specific customers, historical trends and other
information. To reduce credit risk, the Company generally
requires a down payment on large equipment orders.

E-SYSTEMS, INC. (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note A (In Part): Significant Accounting Policies

Financial Instruments and Risk Concentration - Finan-
cial instruments which potentially subject the Company to
concentrations of credit risk consist of cash equivalents,
billed accounts receivable and unreimbursed costs and
fees under cost-plus-fee contracts. The Company'’s cash
equivalents consist principally of U.S. Government securi-
ties and Eurodollar accounts with high credit quality finan-
cial institutions. Generally, the investments mature within
90 days and therefore are subject to minimal risk. Billed
accounts receivable and unreimbursed costs and fees
under cost-plus-fee contracts result primarily from con-
tracts with the U.S. Government or prime contractors with
the U.S. Government and some international customers
(principally governments). Contracts involving the U.S.
Government do not require collateral or other security.
The Company conducts ongoing credit evaluations of
domestic non-U.S. Government customers and generally
does not require collateral or other security from these
customers. The Company generally requires international
customers to furnish letters of credit or make advance
payments in amounts sufficient to limit the Company’s
credit risk to a minimal level. Historically, the Company
has not incurred any significant credit related losses.

HUNT MANUFACTURING CO. (NOV)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands except share and per share amounts)

17. Off-Balance Sheet Risk and Concentrations of Credit
Risk
Off-Balance Sheet Risk:

As of December 2, 1990, the Company had $76 of for-
eign exchange contracts outstanding, all of which were in
European currencies. The forward exchange contracts
generally have maturities which do not exceed six months
and require the Company to exchange foreign currencies
for U.S. dollars and British pounds sterling at maturity, at
rates agreed to at inception of the contracts.

Letters of credit are issued by the Company during the
ordinary course of business through major domestic
banks as required by certain vendor contracts. As of
December 2, 1990, the Company had outstanding letters
of credit for $854.

Concentrations of Credit Risk:

Financial instruments which potentially subject the
Company to concentration of credit risk consist principally
of temporary cash investments and trade receivables. The
Company places its temporary cash investments with
high credit quality financial institutions and, by policy,
limits the amount of credit exposure to any one financial
institution. Concentrations of credit risk with respect to
trade receivables are limited due to the large number of
customers comprising the Company’s customer base,
and their dispersion across many different industries and
geographies. As of December 2, 1990, the Company had
no significant concentrations of credit risk.
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(IBEEYCS)TONE CONSOLIDATED INDUSTRIES, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 14 (In Part): Commitments and Contingencies

Concentration of credit risk

The Company sells its products to agricultural, indus-
trial, construction, commercial, original equipment manu-
facturers and retail distributors primarily in the Midwest
United States. The Company performs ongoing credit
evaluations of its customers’ financial condition and,
generally, requires no collateral from its customers. The
Company’s ten largest customers accounted for approxi-
mately 30% of sales in 1990 and approximately 35% of
notes and accounts receivable at December 31, 1990.
Notes and accounts receivable include an installment
note receivable from its largest customer in the amount of
$3.4 million payable in four equal quarterly installments,
plus interest, commencing May 1991.

PIONEER HI-BRED INTERNATIONAL, INC. (AUG)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 9. Financial Instruments With Off-Balance-Sheet
Risk and Concentrations of Credit Risk

At August 31, 1990, the Company had forward contracts
and options for the sale of various European currencies
totalling $38,857,000 maturing from February, 1991, to
April, 1991. the Company also had a forward contract for
the purchase of C$7,200,000 (Canadian dollars) maturing
September, 1990.

The Company’s financial instruments subject to credit
risk are primarily trade accounts receivable and cash and
cash equivalents. Generally, the Company does not
require collateral or other security to support customer
receivables. At August 31, 1990, the Company had the fol-
lowing significant concentrations of financial instruments
subject to credit risk:

United States $61,038,000
ltaly 76,395,000
East Europe 12,173,000
Soviet Union 7,739,000

Within the United States, the majority of the Company’s
business is conducted with individual farm operators
located throughout the country. The majority of the Com-
pany's business in ltaly is transacted with distributors and
cooperatives. In East Europe and the Soviet Union, the
Company conducts business primarily with government
sponsored companies and agencies.

Government Regulations

ALLIED-SIGNAL INC. (DEC)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 (In Part): Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies

Environmental expenditures that relate to current oper-
ations are expensed or capitalized as appropriate. Expen-
ditures that relate to an existing condition caused by past
operations, and which do not contribute to current or
future revenue generation, are expensed. Liabilities are
recorded when environmental assessments and/or
remedial efforts are probable, and the costs can be
reasonably estimated. Generally, the timing of these
accruals coincides with completion of a feasibility study or
the Company’'s commitment to a formal plan of action.

Note 18 (In Part): Commitments and Contingencies

The Company is subject to a number of investigations,
lawsuits and claims (some of which involve substantial
amounts) arising out of the conduct of its business, includ-
ing those relating to commercial transactions, govern-
ment contracts, product liability and environmental safety
and health matters. In accordance with the Company’s
accounting policy described in Note 1 of Notes to Finan-
cial Statements, generally liabilities are recorded for
environmental matters following the completion of feasi-
bility studies. Although the Company does not currently
possess sufficient information to reasonably estimate the
amounts of the liabilities to be recorded as a result of
pending studies, they may be significant to the consoli-
dated results of operations. While the results of investiga-
tions, lawsuits and claims involving the Company cannot
be determined, management does not expect that these
matters will have a material adverse effect on the consoli-
dated financial position of the Company.

ALLIS-CHALMERS CORPORATION (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Commitments and Contingent Liabilities (In Part)

The Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and the
Hlinois Environmental Protection Agency have requested
information in connection with seven hazar